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DIRECTORS' REPORT 

 

To, 

The Members, 

MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited 

Ahmedabad. 

 

Your Directors have pleasure to present the Thirteenth (13th) Annual Report of your Company 

together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended on March 31, 2020. 

 

The Company's financial performance for the year under review along with previous year’s figures 

is given hereunder: 

 

SUMMARISED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:      

(Amount in INR) 

 

Particulars  March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Interest Income 37,73,80,852 32,16,61,634 

Gain on Assignment of Financial Assets 1,81,67,834 - 

Income from Operations & Other Sources  32,99,030 24,45,834 

Total Income 39,88,47,716 32,41,07,468 

Total Expenditure  35,10,34,594 27,85,49,206 

Profit before Depreciation and Taxes  4,78,13,122 4,55,58,262 

Depreciation and Amortization  53,54,536 31,66,353 

Profit before Taxes 4,24,58,586 4,23,91,909 

Provision for Taxation (including Deferred Tax) 1,01,33,581 1,58,72,618 

Profit after Taxes 3,23,25,005 2,65,19,291 

Profit brought forward from previous year 8,24,08,438      70,236,234  

Add/(Less) : Item of other comprehensive income 

recognised directly in retained earnings  (3,09,861)          3,12,127  

Less : Opening Ind AS Adjustment on adoption of Ind AS 

116 (Net of Tax)  (3,58,633) - 

Profit available for Appropriation 11,40,64,949 9,70,67,652 

Appropriations   

Reserves u/s. 29-C of the NHB Act, 1987 and Special 

Reserve u/s 36(1) (viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961   
88,90,000 1,02,70,000 

Dividend Paid (including Interim dividend) 10,61,320 36,32,838 

Dividend Distribution Tax on Dividend  2,18,208 7,56,376 

Surplus Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 10,38,95,421 8,24,08,438 
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE: 

 

The portfolio at the end of the year 2019-20 was INR 286.54 Cr., showing an increase of 6.03% 

as compared to the previous year. The quality of the portfolio remained robust during the period 

which has always remained the main plank of the company. The stage III assets net of provisions 

of the company during the period under review were 0.25% as compared to the previous year 

being 0.26%. This performance is withstanding the various macro headwinds the industry has 

been facing since some time aggravated by the onset of Covid 19 pandemic. 

 

During the year under review the Interest Income of the Company is INR 37.74 Cr. in comparison 

to the previous year income of INR 32.17  Cr. showing an upward trend of 17.32%. Further, the 

total income of the Company has also increased at 23.06% in comparison to the previous 

Financial Year. 

 

The profit after taxes stands up to INR 3.23 Cr. during the year compared to the profits of INR 

2.65 Cr. during the Previous Year which shows an increase of 21.89% profits compared to the 

Previous Year.  

 

The company will very cautiously observe the development in the affordable space given the 

current unprecedented situation and will calibrate its strategy and execution policies accordingly 

anchoring to the belief that this type of distortion shall also pass and the real potentiality of the 

segment remains intact giving sufficient opportunities of growth going forward post the pandemic 

period.   

 

The current government’s various initiatives are expected to further expand the housing segment 

in order to realise the dream of housing for all.  

 

The company is committed to deliver quality credit to this sector and is on the mission: 

 

“To be a very significant provider of efficient financial services in the housing loan 

segment, thereby being the catalyst in realizing the dreams of the millions of 

households, especially among the LIG and MIG class in semi urban and rural areas and 

create value on a very large scale.” 

 

The Company continues to focus on creating quality assets, aware of the fact that, extending loans 

to the informal and the rural class of the society is in its nascent stage and hence it has its own set 

of challenges, which is being dealt very carefully and efficiently. As stated earlier, the Board has 

taken a conscious decision to build up the portfolio slowly during the initial years of operations and 

concentrate more on understanding the market we serve and setting the suitable credit evaluation 

process. "Extending credit where it is due." remains the basic plank and putting the same into 

practice requires abundance of perseverance and patience. The key positive of the same is 

building up of quality assets.  



 
 

MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited 

Annual Report 2019-2020 

 

RURAL INITIATIVE : 

 

The rural initiative continues to remain one of the major focuses of the Company. The company 

believes and practices the policy of adapting to the ground level realities as fast as possible. Rural 

housing finance is undoubtedly a huge market, characterized by number of challenges ranging 

from financial literacy to acceptable titles of the property. However we are confident of finding 

sustainable solutions to each of the challenges, we face during our journey.  

 

We firmly believe that once the business cycle is set, regular business may be expected from all 

the areas of operations. The company follows the business model of serving such villages through 

dedicated relationship officers who are responsible to offer them customized housing financing 

solution. Based on the experience of these villages necessary change in the business model will be 

implemented to explore the latent potential of the segment. 

 

SYSTEMS AND OPERATIONS: 

 

The current year also sharpened our learning curve to a considerable extent. The feedback from 

the customers, relationship officers and the vigilant analysis of the credit team enabled us to frame 

a well-articulated credit screens which we very firmly believe will be a major lever to serve the 

targeted segment effectively. The effectiveness of the credit screen is reflected in the quality of the 

portfolio. The company is now focusing to improve its turnaround time for disbursing the loans 

without compromising with the quality of credit. Various efforts are undertaken such as training 

the relationship officers, the branch credit officers, and the credit team at the central processing 

unit. 

 

Adequate care is taken for providing efficient post disbursement services to the customers. 

 

Various educative programs organized by NHB (National Housing Bank) give us in depth insight of 

the housing finance activities, process, appraisal techniques and the focus of the government in 

this sector. 

 

RESOURCES: 

 

The Total Equity of the Company as on March 31, 2020 increased to INR 52.84 Cr. due to the 

contribution of additional capital of INR 10 Cr. in 1,00,00,000 6% Optionally Convertible Preference 

shares by MAS Financial Services Ltd. Number of institutions have shown keen interest in 

participating in the future debt and the capital requirement of the Company. Company is quite 

optimistic to tie up their financial requirement for the year 2020-21. 
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MAS’ RESPONSE TO COVID-19: 

 

We are more resilient and determined than ever before to face this unprecedented challenge that 

we have witnessed never before. The main plank during the pandemic was to closely engage with 

our borrowers and understand and educate them on the various aspects of not only the loan taken 

from us but also on their overall financial planning. This resulted in to a very positive response 

from almost all the borrowers and we are thankful to them for demonstrating a very high level of 

financial discipline. The Company on its part extended moratorium during the period of lockdown 

to all the eligible borrowers. 

 

The human resource of the company stood up to this challenge and ensured continuity irrespective 

of their location of work which was ably supported by the technology and the software team. In 

consistence to the belief of the Company team MAS demonstrated high level of capabilities and 

grit in facing this challenge. 

 

The financial implications of this pandemic will unfold over the next few quarters which is 

endeavored to be mitigated through prudent COVID provisioning to the extent of 0.78% of our on 

book assets. All out efforts will be made to engage with the borrowers and monitor each and every 

account closely to maintain the quality of the assets which has been the hallmark of our working 

over these years. 

 

The high capitalization levels and an immaculate track record have kept the Company in good 

stead in maintaining comfortable liquidity position and also healthy ALM. 

 

NATIONAL HOUSING BANK (NHB) COMPLIANCES: 

 

MRHMFL continues to comply with the guidelines issued by NHB regarding accounting standards, 

capital adequacy, concentration of credit, credit rating, 'Know Your Customer'- (KYC), fair practices 

code and capital market exposures. The Company has provided for impairment of loans and 

advances as per IND AS 109 prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per 

the NHB Circular No. NHB(ND)/DRS/Policy Circular No.89/2017-18 dated June 14, 2018. The 

National Housing Bank Act, 1987, empowers NHB to levy a penalty on Housing Finance Companies 

for contravention of the Act or any of its provisions. NHB has not levied any penalty on MRHMFL 

during the year.  

 

HUMAN RESOURCE: 

 

We understand the importance of this very important resource and are always eager to harness 

the latent potentiality of our young team. Continuous training and motivational programs play an 

important role in their performance. The Company throughout the year supported its team to 

excel.   
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DIVIDEND: 

 

Your Directors recommend a final dividend at a fixed rate of 6% p.a. to the preference 

shareholders amounting to INR 33,11,475/- (Rupees Thirty Three Lakh Eleven Thousand Four 

Hundred and Seventy Five Only) and a final dividend at the rate of 0.48% to the Equity 

Shareholders amounting to INR 10,18,867/- (Rupees Ten Lakh Eighteen Thousand Eight Hundred 

and Sixty Seven Only) for the financial year ended on March 31, 2020. 

 

The Finance Act 2020 has repealed the Dividend Distribution Tax (DDT). Companies are now 

required to pay / distribute dividend after deducting applicable taxes. 

 

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

 

The Company continues to operate in the same business and there is no change in the nature of 

business during the period under review. 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 

POSITION OF THE COMPANY: 

 

COVID-19: 

 

At the end of the financial year under review, COVID-19 spread across the world resulting in a 

global crisis. Almost all the countries in the world were affected, infecting millions of people. 

 

India also started to see the impact by March 2020 with a rising number of people getting infected 

across the country. In order to enforce social distancing to contain the spread of the disease, the 

lockdown was imposed across the country which affected various business segments. The 

Government of India and the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) had announced several measures to 

contain the adverse economic impact on business caused by this pandemic. 

 

Your Company has abided by the guidelines issued by the Central Government, State Governments 

and various statutory and regulatory authorities, from time to time.  

 

The Reserve Bank of India announced on March 27, 2020, April 17, 2020 and May 23, 2020, 

‘COVID-19 Regulatory Package’ on asset classification and provisioning. In terms of the RBI 

guidelines, the lending institutions have been permitted to grant a moratorium of six months on 

payment of all instalments/interest as applicable, falling due between March 1, 2020 and August 

31, 2020 (‘moratorium period’). In this regard, a Board approved policy has been implemented by 

your Company. the Company has offered EMI moratorium to its customers based on requests as 

well as on a suo-moto basis. The Company had made additional provisions as on March 31, 2020 

amounting to Rs.2.02 Crores against the potential impact of COVID-19. 
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The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic would impact the Company’s provision on assets and 

future results will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain. This uncertainty 

relates to, among other things, any new information concerning the severity of the COVID-19 

pandemic, and any action to contain its spread or mitigate its impact. Some of these actions will 

be determined by policies at the national level, while others will be determined by measures 

adopted by the Company. Given the uncertainty over the macro-economic condition, the impact of 

the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of this report, and 

the Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes in economic conditions. 

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

 

In terms of the transitional provisions applicable to Statutory Auditors under the Companies Act, 

2013, Rajpara Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 113428W), Ahmedabad 

were appointed as the statutory auditors of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years in the 10th 

Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on June 2, 2017. 

  

However, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, vide its Notification dated 7th May, 2018 amended 

provisions of Rule 3(7) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and accordingly, provisions 

of requirement of ratification of appointment of auditor at every general meeting is dispensed with. 

Therefore, at the ensuing general meeting members are not required to ratify Auditor’s 

appointment and M/s. Rajpara Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad (FRN: 113428W), 

will continue to act as auditors of the Company till the conclusion of the 15th AGM of the Company 

to be held in the year 2022. 

 

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS BY BOARD ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR 

ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING 

COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS: 

 

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report. 

The provisions relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report are not applicable to the 

Company. 

 

There were no instances of frauds reported by the Auditors during the period under review. 

 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS: 

 

The Company is Housing Finance Company registered with NHB not accepting public deposits and 

is prohibited from accepting public deposits and therefore the Company has not accepted deposits 

from public during the year under review. 
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS PER SECTION 92(3) OF COMPANIES, ACT, 2013: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the extract of Annual 

Return for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 in Form MGT-9 made under the provisions of 

92(3) of the Act form part of the Board's Report as Annexure A (MGT-9). 

 

INFORMATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AND ITS MEETINGS: 

 

 Composition and Category of Directors on date of this report is: 

 

Name of the 

Director / Key 

Managerial 

Personnel 

No. of other 

Directorships* 

No. of Board 

Meetings 

attended 

during 

2019-2020 

Attendance 

at the AGM 

held on 

19/06/2019 

Whole-time Directors 

Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi 

Chairman & Managing 

Director 

DIN: 00044852 

3 6 Yes 

Mr. Mukesh Gandhi 

Whole-time Director & 

Chief Financial Officer 

DIN: 00187086 

4 6 Yes 

Mrs. Darshana Pandya 

Director & Chief 

Operating Officer 

DIN: 07610402 

1 6 Yes 

Independent Directors 

Mr. Bala Bhaskaran 

Independent Director 

DIN: 00393346 

3 6 Yes 

Mr. Chetan Shah 

Independent Director 

DIN: 02213542 

1 5 Yes 

Mr. Subir Nag 

Independent Director 

DIN: 02169915 

2 4 No 

Key Managerial Personnel 

Mr. Darshil 

Hiranandani 

Company Secretary 

Nil 6 Yes 

* Excluding Directorship of MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited; 
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We believe that our Board needs to have an appropriate mix of Executive and Independent 

Directors to maintain its independence, and separate its functions of governance and 

management. Further, Mrs. Darshana Pandya, Director & Chief Operating Officer of the Company, 

is designated as Woman Director for the Company in terms of second proviso to the Section 149 

(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Composition of Board fulfills the regulatory requirements.  

 

 Details of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) who were appointed or 

have resigned during the year: 

 

During the year under review there is no change in the Directors or KMP of the Company. 

 

All the directors of the Company have confirmed that they are not disqualified from being 

appointed as Directors in terms of section 164 & 165 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

 Directors eligible for retirement by rotation: 

 

In accordance with the requirement of Companies Act, 2013 and pursuant to the applicable 

provisions of Articles of Association, Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi, Chairman & Managing Director of the 

Company is eligible to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible 

offers himself for re-appointment.  

 

The Board of Directors in its meeting held May 20, 2020, on the recommendations of the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC), further recommends to the members of the 

Company to re-appointment of Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi (DIN: 00044852), as director liable to retire 

by rotation. 

 

 Board Meetings: 

 

Regular meetings of the Board are held at least once in a quarter to review the Quarterly Results 

and other items on the agenda, and also on the occasion of Annual General Meeting (AGM). 

Additional Board meetings are convened to discuss and decide on various business policies, 

strategies and other businesses. The Company Secretary drafts the Agenda for each meeting, 

along with explanatory notes, in consultation with the Directors, and distributes these in advance 

to the Directors. 

 

The gap between two consecutive meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty days as 

provided in section 173 of the Act.  

 

Every Board Member can suggest the inclusion of additional items in the agenda. 

 

The Company had 6 Board Meetings during the financial year under review. 
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Sr. No. Date of Meeting 

Total Number of 

Directors as on the 

date of Meeting 

Number of Directors 

attended 

1.  24-Apr-19 6 5 

2.  18-Jul-19 6 5 

3.  28-Aug-19 6 6 

4.  12-Sep-19 6 6 

5.  23-Oct-19 6 6 

6.  22-Jan-20 6 5 

 

Mr. Darshil Hiranandani, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Board. 

 

Independent Directors and Evaluation of Directors and the Board: 

 

In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the Company has 

three Non-Promoter Independent Directors in line with the Companies Act, 2013. The Company 

has received necessary declaration from each independent director under Section 149 (7) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149 (6) of 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

With the objective of enhancing the effectiveness of the board, the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee formulated the methodology and criteria to evaluate the performance of the board and 

each director. The evaluation of the performance of the board is based on the approved criteria 

such as the board composition, strategic planning, role of the Chairman, non-executive directors 

and other senior management, assessment of the timeliness and quality of the flow of information 

by the Company to the board and adherence to compliance and other regulatory issues.  

 

The Board of Directors of the Company were satisfied with the outcome of the performance 

evaluation process of the Directors, Board and its Committees. They were of the view that the 

Directors have been discharging their roles and responsibilities as expected by the Board and the 

regulatory provisions and the Board is duly constituted representing various expertise, skill sets 

and qualification required for the banking business. There was no observation during the 

performance evaluation in the current year. 
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INFORMATION OF COMMITTEE AND ITS MEETINGS 

 

 Audit Committee: 

 

Our Audit Committee comprised of 3 Directors as on March 31, 2020: 

 

a. Mr. Bala Bhaskaran - Chairman 

b. Mr. Chetan Shah  - Member 

c. Mr. Mukesh Gandhi - Member 

 

Mr. Darshil Hiranandani, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee.  

 

The composition of committee inter alia meets with the requirement of Section 177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The Scope of Audit Committee is enhanced in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The Company has established a vigil mechanism and overseas through the Committee, the 

genuine concerns expressed by the employees and other Directors. The Company has also 

provided adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors who express their 

concerns. The Company has also provided direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee 

on reporting issues concerning the interests of co employees and the Company. The board has 

approved a policy for vigil mechanism which has been hosted on the website of the Company. The 

weblink for the same is www.mrhmfl.co.in  

 

The Company had 5 Audit Committee Meetings during the Financial Year under review: 

 

Sr. No. Date of Meeting 

Total Number of 

Members as on the 

date of Meeting 

Number of Members 

attended 

1.  24-Apr-19 3 3 

2.  18-Jul-19 3 2 

3.  19-Aug-19 3 3 

4.  23-Oct-19 3 3 

5.  22-Jan-20 3 3 

 

 Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

 

The Company constituted its Remuneration Committee on 6th October, 2011 and the nomenclature 

of the Remuneration Committee was changed to “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” on 

20th February, 2015 pursuant to section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the 

http://www.mrhmfl.co.in/
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Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 by way of resolution passed in 

accordance with, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Our Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised of 3 Directors as on March 31, 2020: 

 

a. Mr. Bala Bhaskaran - Chairman 

b. Mr. Chetan Shah  - Member 

c. Mr. Subir Nag - Member 

 

Mr. Darshil Hiranandani, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee. 

 

The Company had 1 Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meeting during the Financial Year 

under review: 

 

Sr. No. Date of Meeting 

Total Number of 

Members as on the 

date of Meeting 

Number of Members 

attended 

1.  24-Apr-19 3 2 

 

The composition of committee inter alia meets with the requirement of section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Further, criteria for making payment, if any, to nonexecutive directors are 

provided under the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company which is hosted on the 

website of the Company viz; www.mrhmfl.co.in 

 

The role and responsibilities, Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration 

including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and 

other related matters are in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

 

In terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors would like to state that: 

 

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures. 

 

(b) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view 

of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the 

Company for the year under review. 

 

(c) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of 

http://www.mrhmfl.co.in/


 
 

MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited 

Annual Report 2019-2020 

the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

 

(d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

 

(e) The directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and 

that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 

 

(f) The directors have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such system are adequate and operating effectively. 

 

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SUB-

SECTION (6) OF SECTION 149: 

 

The Company has received declarations from each Independent Director of the Company under 

section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the criteria of independence as 

prescribed under sub section (6) of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186: 

 

The Company being a Housing Finance Company registered with National Housing Bank with the 

principal business, inter alia, of Housing Finance, the provisions of Section 186 except sub-section 

(1) are not applicable to it. However, there are no investments made during the year in any 

Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 186(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

hence no particulars thereof as envisaged under Section 134(3)(g) are covered in this Report. 

 

PARTICULARS CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED 

TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 188: 

 

The particulars of Contracts or Arrangements made with related parties pursuant to Section 188 

during the year are furnished in Annexure B (Form AOC-2) and is attached to the report.  

 

AMOUNT, IF ANY, WHICH THE BOARD PROPOSES TO CARRY TO ANY RESERVES: 

 

During the year under review INR 88,90,000/- transferred to reserve fund under Section 29-C of 

NHB Act, 1987 & Special Reserve U/s 36(1)(viii) of Income-tax Act, 1961. 

 

CAPITAL: 

 

1. AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL: 

 

During the year under review, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was revised from INR 

30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Crores only) to INR 35,00,00,000-/ (Rupees Thirty Five Crores only) 

vide a resolution passed by the Board of Directors on August 28, 2019 and subsequently approved 
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by the Shareholders in their meeting held on August 29, 2019. 

 

The Authorised Share Capital as on March 31, 2020 was: 

 

INR 35,00,00,000-/ (Rupees Thirty Five Crores only) divided into 3,50,00,000 (Three Crores and 

Fifty Lakh) Shares of INR 10/- each, which is further divided as INR 24,00,00,000/- (Rupees 

Twenty Four Crores Only) divided into 2,40,00,000 [Two Crores Forty Lakh] Equity shares of INR 

10/- each and INR 11,00,00,000/- [Rupees Eleven Crores Only] divided into 1,10,00,000 [One 

Crore Ten Lakh] Preference Shares of INR 10/- each 

 

2. PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL: 

 

During the year under review, the Company had issued 1,00,00,000 6% Optionally Convertible 

Preference Shares of INR 10/- each to MAS Financial Services Limited. 

 

The Paid Up Share Capital as on March 31, 2020 was: 

 

INR 31,22,64,040 /- (Rupees Thirty One Crore Twenty Two Lakh Sixty Four Thousand and Forty 

Only) divided into 2,12,26,404 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each and 1,00,00,000 6% Optionally 

Convertible Preference Shares of INR 10/- each. 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

 

Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption: 

 

Since the Company is operating in service sector, the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 regarding conservation of energy and Technology Absorption are not 

applicable. 

 

Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo: 

 

The Company has no Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo. 

 

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL: 

 

The Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(5)(viii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 re-

emphasizes the need for an effective Internal Financial Control system in the Company which 

should be adequate and shall operate effectively. The Company has devised proper system of 

internal financial control which is commensurate with size and nature of Business. Even, the Board 

has appointed M/s. MAAK & Associates, Chartered Accountants as an Internal Auditor of the 

Company pursuant to provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 in order to ensure 

proper internal financial control. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT: 

 

Company’s Risk Management framework provides the mechanism for risk assessment and 

mitigation. The Company has a risk management policy approved by the Board for identifying, 

evaluating, monitoring and minimizing the identifiable risks in the organization. The Company also 

has Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) and Audit Committee for overseeing the risk 

management measures. 

 

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Company. 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

 

The Company has not employed any individual whose remuneration falls within the purview of the 

limits prescribed under the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 

of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT  
 
A detailed analysis of your Company’s performance is discussed in the Management Discussion and 
Analysis Report, which forms part of this Annual Report.  
 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE: 
 
The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its employees. 
 
Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant 
to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013. 
 

DISCLOSURE FOR MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS: 
 
The provision of Application of Cost Record in Compliance of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 & 
in respect of section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company. 
 
GENERAL DISCLOSURE:  
 
Your Directors state that the Company has made disclosures in this report for the items prescribed 
in section 134(3) of the Act and Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 to the extent the 
transactions took place on those items during the year. 
 

Your Directors further state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following 
items as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review: 
 



a. Details of Annual Report,on Corporate Social Responsibility as Company is not falling within the
criteria as prescribed u/s 135df the Companies Act, 2013;

b. Issue of Equity Shares with dlfferential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise;
c. Isslre of shares (inclubing .sweat equity shares) to employees of the Compar\y under any

scheme save and ESOS;

d. No significant or material orderS were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
impact the going concern status and Company's operations in future
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

 Industry Structure and Developments: 

 

The Housing finance sector has gained momentum after the income tax rebate on home loans 

which was introduced in the year 1999. Owing to the tax advantage and growing income level, 

the period 2005 to 2010 is characterized by rising demand for housing. Further the number of 

new HFCs established post 2008 has considerably increased; since most of the new HFCs had a 

parentage with banks or NBFCs, the overall leverage level of HFCs remained close to 6x 

(times). The number of HFCs more than doubled from 43 in 2008 to 91 in 2018. This period is 

also marked by the shift in the borrowing profile of the HFCs – from banks to debt sources.* 
* Housing Finance Companies: Performance, Regulations and Opportunity report by CARE dated January 7, 2020. 

 

Housing Finance sector has undergone a major makeover post IL&FS crisis in Sep 2018 

followed by the subsequent liquidity issues around the HFCs & NBFCs. Since then, there has 

been a series of interventions from the Government of India to facilitate adequate liquidity flow 

to these entities from the Banking sector such as, Partial Credit Guarantee Scheme (PCGS) of 

Govt. of India for buy-out of rated asset pools of HFCs/NBFCs, relaxed norms of RBI for 

securitization of assets etc.** 

** NHB’s Housing Finance Companies - Credit Growth and Funding Pattern published on February 24, 2020.  

 

The funding situation has remained fairly grim for HFCs thus far, impacting their loan book 

growth. This is an after-effect of the severe liquidity crunch faced by HFCs following the IL&FS 

default as banks, their largest lenders, turned cautious. While HFCs with a strong parentage 

continue to get funding from banks, standalone HFCs with a high proportion of non-housing 

loans and small HFCs have been the worst affected by the liquidity crunch. Raising funds from 

the capital market has also remained a challenge. 

 

With the fall in traditional borrowing routes, HFCs have begun to obtain a large portion of their 

funding through the securitisation route. 

 

The affordable housing space, which accounts for roughly 15 per cent of the overall portfolio of 

HFCs, is generating good interest in banks, and co-lending in this space will also provide 

required impetus to drive growth, given the government push towards affordable housing. 

 

Although HFCs are reworking on their business models, asset quality has been adversely 

impacted due to the stress witnessed mainly in the wholesale loan portfolio of HFCs.*** 
*** www.realty.com from the Economic Times dated March 25, 2020 

(https://realty.economictimes.indiatimes.com/news/allied-industries/hfcs-to-bounce-back-with-10-12-growth-in-

fiscal-21-brickwork-ratings/74813494)  

 

  

https://realty.economictimes.indiatimes.com/news/allied-industries/hfcs-to-bounce-back-with-10-12-growth-in-fiscal-21-brickwork-ratings/74813494
https://realty.economictimes.indiatimes.com/news/allied-industries/hfcs-to-bounce-back-with-10-12-growth-in-fiscal-21-brickwork-ratings/74813494
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 Outlook on Affordable Housing: 

 

While the pace of progress on the PMAY mission has been slower than initially envisaged, 

particularly in the urban segment, the initiative is clearly addressing the core issue of the 

national housing shortage in a systematic manner. With the Government push for affordable 

housing through provision of land, subsidies and incentives, private sector participation in the 

lower-ticket-size segment has been ramping up at a considerable pace, resulting in some 

narrowing of the existing demand-supply gap. Moreover, technical innovations have enabled 

cost and time efficiencies, thereby making the construction of such spaces more financially 

viable. Developers have thus been realigning strategies to meet market requirements and have 

been focusing on keeping average ticket sizes affordable. Sales in the sub-Rs. 50 lakh segment 

have, in fact, witnessed a considerable momentum, and given the above-mentioned 

Government incentives for development and offtake of affordable housing units, positive trends 

in both demand and supply for this segment are expected to continue going forward.  

 

Notwithstanding the expected traction in the affordable housing segment, the performance of 

the overall Indian residential real estate sector continues to be muted, owing to the prevailing 

liquidity crunch, high inventory overhang, weak affordability and subdued demand conditions. 

The residential realty segment has, in recent years, increasingly relied on the NBFCs and the 

HFCs to raise debt financing, owing to the risk perception attached with the segment by banks. 

However, with the prevailing liquidity squeeze, funding availability and cost for many real estate 

developers has been adversely impacted, causing credit stress for developers reliant on 

refinancing to support balance sheets heavy on slow-moving inventory or land assets. 

Consequently, the execution of ongoing projects and launch of new projects have also been 

negatively impacted, especially for smaller players who have been heavily dependent on such 

sources of financing, keeping the pipeline of fresh supply moderate. ICRA, however, notes that 

Government measures, such as the establishment of a Rs. 25,000-crore fund for stalled 

housing projects, may alleviate some of the execution/delivery-related issues going forward. 

Concerns on the overall stock levels, nonetheless, remain. A moderate level of new launches, 

combined with the existing inventory overhang and low sales traction, is expected to lead to 

overall inventory levels registering modest growth over the near-to-medium term, with the 

much-needed liquidation of the same being contingent on a wide-scale recovery in demand. 

Consequently, ICRA expects residential real estate developers to maintain a cautious stance 

towards new project launches and land acquisition deals. With continuing weakness in the 

home-buyer sentiment, demand is expected to remain muted, particularly for projects which 

are under development and for units with high ticket sizes. Post the incessant delays witnessed 

in project deliveries, buyers have been expressing a strong preference for completed inventory, 

that too from recognised developers with an established track record of quality and timely 

delivery, resulting in increased market consolidation, with larger players garnering higher 

market share. Structural changes, including the implementation of the RERA, the GST and the 

IBC, as well as the earlier demonetisation drive, have further underpinned this consolidation. 

Thus, larger and reputed developers with a strong focus on right pricing and delivery are 

expected to continue to record healthy sales levels. Prices, however, are likely to move on a 
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downtrend, driven not only by the continued focus of developers on keeping average ticket 

sizes affordable, but also by the high inventory overhang and overall sluggishness in demand.^ 
^ January 2020 Report on Affordable Housing by ICRA & FICCI  

 

In the Budget 2020, the Union government extended the benefit of availing additional 

deduction of up to Rs 1.50 lakh for interest paid on loans for affordable houses by an 

additional one year till 31 March 2021. 

 

The Central government has further tried to incentivize the affordable housing sector by 

providing a one-year tax holiday extension to real estate developers in the Union Budget 2020. 

Earlier, the government had announced that a tax holiday will be provided to real estate 

developers of affordable housing projects till 31 March 2020. This step will certainly boost the 

supply of affordable houses and promote it.^^ 
^^ Financial Express dated February 10, 2020 

 

 Market Scenario 

 

According to “World Urbanization Prospects - The 2018 Revision” by the Population Division of 

the UN Department of Economic and Social Affairs (UN DESA), the future increases in the size 

of the world’s urban population are expected to be highly concentrated in just a few countries. 

By 2050, it is projected that India will have added 416 million urban dwellers compared to 255 

million in China. 

 

The urban expansion in India will happen at a speed quite unlike anything the country or the 

world has seen before. While it took nearly 40 years (from 1971 to 2008) for India’s urban 

population to rise by nearly 230 million; it will take only half that time to add the next 250 

million.# 

 

India’s urban population is estimated to have grown at a CAGR of 2.8% over 2001-2011, 

resulting in an increase in the urbanization rate from 27.8% to 31.2%. The surge in urban 

population was supported by an increase in million plus cities. The number of urban 

agglomerations with more than 1 million population increased from 35 in 2001 to 53 in 2011. 

The growth of urbanization at such unprecedented level poses the challenge of meeting the 

increasing demand for affordable housing in cities. ** 

 

One of the constraints in meeting the increasing demand for affordable housing is the high cost 

of land. Other challenges include availability of finance to developers/builders towards land and 

absence of clear title which acts as deterrent for participation by financial institutions and real 

estate developers in new as well as redevelopment projects of real estate. 

 

In order to create a self-sustaining market to address the challenge of land availability and its 

high cost, the Central Government on September 21, 2017 announced a new PPP (Public 

Private Partnership) Policy for Affordable Housing. The fundamental strategy underlying Public 

Private Partnerships as an implementation strategy for affordable housing is to combine the 
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strengths of the private sector with those of the public sector in order to overcome challenges 

faced by affordable housing and to achieve superior outcomes. The 8 PPP models for 

promoting affordable housing includes six with private investments on government lands while 

remaining 2 models involves private investments on private lands. 

 

The new regulations and policy changes including the roll out of RERA and GST will help the 

industry become more organized, transparent, and accountable which will boost buyer 

sentiment in both residential and commercial segments. 
# Mc Kinsey Global Institute (MGI) Report (April 2010) 

** The Census of India, 2011 

 

- @The market scenario post COVID: 

 

As the coronavirus pandemic outbreak has slackened the economic growth across the globe, it 

is most likely to take a major toll over scores of sectors in India. This would have a multiplier 

effect on the real estate sector which was eyeing revival in times to come. However, the wrath 

of the virus outbreak will be faced by both the commercial as well as residential segments, and 

affordable housing will be the worst-hit. 

 

Riding on the support of government initiatives such as Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY), 

Housing for All by 2022, infrastructure status to the segment – to name a few – the affordable 

housing segment recorded a growth of 27% after the government announced PMAY in 2016, 

but this growth gradually decelerated owing to various factors and now it will further drop due 

to the COVID-19 woes. 

 

Despite government-initiated public-private partnership projects, developers were reluctant to 

join the segment due to various reasons such as land scarcity, unrecognized bottlenecks of 

property records, business dynamics, unfavorable weather conditions, socio-political impact 

and skilled labor supply over the entire lifecycle of the project. 

 

Though the demand for affordable housing had increased in recent times, but the lockdown 

came as a major setback for the sector which was already reeling under crisis. This would now 

further discourage the developers from barging into the affordable segment as they were 

already struggling with the cost optimisation in order to improve the bottom-line in such 

projects. 

 

Amid the COVID-19 scourge, labourers fled from the metro cities or big cities to their 

respective native lands amid fear of losing out on the earnings. The lockdown has further 

extended their stay which will now create a big-time crisis of availability of labours which would 

have a huge impact on the sector which was already struggling for want of the availability of 

skilled labour. 
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Secondly, developers will also face the problem in acquiring cheap input material as the 

manufacturing units are closed and in time to come they will also feel the heat of the shortage 

of labourers. Apart from this, manufacturers will also look to cover up for the loss they are 

suffering during the lockdown. Therefore, developers will have another uphill task to get the 

material at cheap rates. 

 

Besides all these factors, weak buyer sentiment will also hit the segment as now buyers will 

wait before investing in any kind of housing project. With limited income and fears of 

unemployment, affordable housing buyers will delay purchasing decisions, leading to a rise in 

unsold stocks. This will give rise to rental housing, and further delay in improving market 

sentiments. 
@ Financial Express dated May 5, 2020  

 

Overview 

 

We, MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited (“MRHMFL”) are a housing finance 

company registered with National housing Bank. MRHMFL has an endeavor to realize the 

dream of millions of Indian Households to “OWN A HOME”. The focus is to serve the middle 

income segment of the society, which we reckon as one of the key drivers of the housing 

industry. This segment is largely characterized by the informal but credit worthy class. This 

class is spread across the length and breadth of the country, be it urban, semi-urban or rural. 

 

Extending “Credit where it is due” remains the main plank, as far as credit delivery is 

concerned in consistent with the endeavor of the group since the last two decades of building 

quality assets. 

 

Mission of MRHMFL is to be a very significant provider of efficient financial services in the 

housing loan segment, thereby being a catalyst in realizing the dreams of the millions of 

households, especially among the LIG and MIG class in semi urban and rural areas and create 

value on a very large scale.  

 

 Focusing on fundamentals – A key for navigating through tough times: 

 

- Over the years we have learnt, experienced and practiced: “focusing on fundamentals.” 

This has enabled us to navigate through various crisis, may be liability/asset led. 

Registering a steady growth accompanied by very high quality of assets even during this 

trying time is the testimony to our focus on fundamentals. On the liability side, utmost care 

is taken on maintaining the right asset-liability mix while focusing on creating quality assets 

leading to very negligible credit losses. This has helped the company to grow profitably and 

steadily but solidly. This according to us lays a very strong foundation for future scalability. 

It is worth mentioning that this type of working is highly respected by our lenders and 

investors.  
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 Loan Products 

 

MRHMFL’s major focus has been to provide home loans to individuals and families for 

purchase, construction and extension and renovation. MRHMFL provides loans to individuals 

who are salaried, self-employed professionals, self- employed non-professionals and 

agriculturist. MRHMFL also provides construction finance to developers who are developing 

housing projects and commercial properties on the basis of detailed evaluation of the project. 

Apart from home loans MRHMFL provides loan for purchase, construction of commercial 

property on non-agricultural land situated within municipal/local development authority limits. 

 

MRHMFL also offers home loans under the Affordable Housing Fund (AHF) scheme wherein 

loans are given in rural areas for following categories viz. backward classes or Minority 

Community or Women owners or families having annual household income less than INR 3 

lakh. Since NHB offers refinance at concessional rate of interest under the scheme, the 

ultimate rate of interest applicable on loans to beneficiaries is regulated with a cap on the 

spread. 

 

MRHMFL has also signed an MOU with the NHB which is the Central Nodal Agency under the 

Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY) for the Credit Linked Subsidy Scheme (CLSS) for both 

EWS/LIG categories. The subsidy received from the Government through the Central Nodal 

Agency under this scheme, is being passed on to the beneficiaries by way of prepayment with 

a reduction in their instalments. 

 

 Marketing Efforts 

 

To ensure a deeper geographic reach, MRHMFL has been sourcing retail business through third 

party channels by appointment of MRHMFL Referral Associates. Referral Associates only source 

loans while MRHMFL retains control over the credit, legal and technical appraisals.  

 

MRHMFL is operating in four states - Gujarat, Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh and Rajasthan. 

MRHMFL has 69 offices across these four states.    

 

MRHMFL conducts outreach programmes from its retail offices to potential taluka places. The 

outreach marketing programme also serves as collection centre for collecting instalments 

besides providing services of enquiry handling and file opening. 

 

 Disbursements 

 

MRHMFL disbursed INR 92.09 Crores during the year as against INR 128.59 Crores in the 

previous year. MRHMFL disbursed loans of INR 77.63 Crores (previous year INR 81.23 Crores) 

for home purchase and renovation. 

 

MRHMFL disbursed home loans to 736 families (previous year 596 families) and the average 
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home loan to individuals was maintained at INR 0.08 Crores. 

 

MRHMFL disbursed loans of INR 8.10 Crores (previous year INR 7.61 Crores) for purchase of 

Non Residential Property/Commercial Property and INR 6.35 Crores (previous year INR 39.74 

Crores) to developers. 

 

 Loans 

 

The loan approval process at MRHMFL is decentralized with varying approval limits. Approvals 

of lending proposals are carried out by retail sanctioning committees/persons up to the limits 

delegated.  

 

Approvals beyond certain limits are referred to the Committee of Management. Larger 

proposals, as appropriate, are referred to the committee of directors, set up by the Board.  

 

During the year, MRHMFL’s total outstanding loans increased to INR 286.54 Crores from INR 

270.24 Crores and registered a growth of 6.03%. 

 

MRHMFL’s total outstanding home loans to individuals of INR 226.68 crores constitute 79.11% 

of the total outstanding loans. Loans to individuals for non-residential premises (NRP) of INR 

23.06 Crores constituted 8.05% of the total outstanding loans. The outstanding loans to 

developers of INR 36.80 Crore constituted 12.84% of the total outstanding loans. 

 

 Provision for Impairment of Loans  

 

The Company has recognised impairment loss on loans based on the ECL model as required by 

Ind AS 109. Accordingly, MRHMFL has made a provision for impairment of INR 0.35 Crore 

towards Stage I loans and INR 0.54 Crore towards Stage II loans.  

 

MRHMFL’s Stage III loan assets as at March 31, 2020 were INR 0.98 Crores on which MRHMFL 

has made a provision of INR 0.26 Crores. 

 

Moreover MRHMFL has reassessed its ECL model on account of COVID-19 pandemic and have 

made an additional provision of INR 2.02 Cr. on loans. 

 

MRHMFL therefore carries a total provision of INR 3.17 Crores on its total assets as per IND AS 

109.   
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 NHB Guidelines and Prudential Norms 

 

MRHMFL has complied with the guidelines issued by NHB regarding accounting guidelines, 

prudential norms for capital adequacy, concentration of credit, credit rating, Know Your 

Customer (KYC) guidelines and Anti Money Laundering (AML) Standards, Fair Practices Code, 

grievance redressal mechanism, recovery of dues. The Company has provided for impairment 

of loans and advances as per IND AS 109 prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and as per the NHB Circular No. NHB(ND)/DRS/Policy Circular No.89/2017-18 dated June 

14, 2018. 

 

MRHMFL’s total borrowings as at March 31, 2020 of INR 222.49 Crores were within the 

permissible limit of NHB Directions.  

 

MRHMFL’s CAR as at March 31, 2020 was 40.69% as against NHB’s prescribed limit of 12%. 

The Capital Adequacy on account of Tier I Capital was 32.57% while the Capital Adequacy on 

account of the Tier II Capital was 8.12%. 

 

 Risks & Concerns 

 

Risk Management is the process by which the company identifies, measures, monitors and 

controls its risk exposure in order to ensure that risks are within the tolerance level set by the 

company and are clearly understood at relevant levels across the Company. 

 

Asset Liability Management Committee [ALCO]  

 

For management of Market Risk, the Board has constituted the Asset Liability Management 

Committee (ALCO). It functions on the basis of a policy detailing the objectives & scope of 

Asset Liability Management in the company, duly approved by the Board. The role of ALCO is 

to: 

 

a. Review at periodic intervals the Liquidity Risk through Structural Liquidity and Dynamic 

Liquidity, Interest Rate Risk sensitivity. 

b. Review the pricing of various products of the company. 

c. Evaluate new business products, any variants of the existing products or any cost cutting 

measure, with particular focus on the pricing aspects, and make suitable recommendations 

to the company. 

 

Credit Risk Management 

 

For management of credit risk, the board has constituted Credit Policy. Operational team 

functions on the basis of a policy detailing the objective and scope. The company has adopted 

mechanism of categorization of borrowers in different categories on the basis of their profile 

and risk attached. 
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The company has recognized following risk mitigants: 

 

- Adjusting the cost of credit according to the credit strength of the borrower. 

- Credit tightening, or reducing the amount of credit available to higher risk applicants;  

- Diversification or increasing the portfolio mix of borrowers.  

- Interest rate sensitivity analysis. 

 

Operational Risk 

 

Operational Risk is the chances of loss associated with company’s operations. Examples of such 

loss events are (I) external fraud, (ii) internal fraud, (iii) damage to physical  assets, (iv) loss 

on account of faulty business practices and procedures, (v) business  disruption and system 

failures (vi) Employment practices and workplace safety (vii) Execution Delivery and Process 

Management etc.  

 

Operational Risk of the company is overseen by a Director & COO along with internal members 

of the company set up for the purpose. Internal control system would be set up led by 

Manager Operation which would report to Director & COO. Major discrepancies if any would be 

reported to audit committee by Director & COO. 

 

The company has recognized following risk mitigants: 

 

- Task Segregation: Effective segregation of tasks and duties reduces internal theft and 

risks related to fraud. This prevents one individual from taking advantage of the numerous 

aspects of transactions and business processes or practices. 

 

- Curtailing complexities in business processes: Reducing complexity in different 

business processes radically mitigates operational risks. Curtailing manual activities and the 

number of people and exceptions that rise during the implementation of business processes 

is important. 

 

- Reinforcing organizational ethics: Creating a strong ethical compass within the 

organization is highly effective in mitigating operational risks management. Organizational 

ethics can be reinforced by combining personal values and principles of the workforce with 

the ideology of the organization. 

 

- The right people for the right job: Having the right people in the right jobs can reduce 

issues pertaining to business process execution and skill and technology usage. This also 

results in appropriate workforce utilization, adherence to timelines, enhanced quality, and 

fewer errors and process breakdowns. 

 

http://www.businessdictionary.com/definition/amount.html
http://www.businessdictionary.com/definition/applicant.html
http://www.businessdictionary.com/definition/diversification.html
http://www.businessdictionary.com/definition/portfolio.html
http://www.businessdictionary.com/definition/borrower.html
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- Monitoring and evaluations at regular intervals: Business processes are more 

effective with well-designed performance indicators in place. Key Performance Indicators 

(KPIs) are critical for timely detection and mitigation of risks, provided they are 

continuously monitored and reviewed. This helps to identify discrepancies proactively and 

manage them accordingly. 

 

- Periodic risk assessment: Periodic assessments of all facets of operational risks bring 

more relief to organizational management. It is imperative to be risk-ready by gauging 

regulatory obligations, IT assets, skills, competencies, processes and business decisions. 

 

- Look back and learn: Risk incidents and various remedial activities employed in the past 

make way for some of the most effective strategies to counter future risks. Previous risk 

occurrences help to implementing a stronger, proactive operational risk management 

framework. It also supports real-time amendments that suit the current operating scenario. 

 

Market Risk 

 

Market risk is the potential loss due to changes in market prices or values. It is also known 

as systematic risk or un-diversifiable or volatility risk. This type of risk is both unpredictable 

and impossible to completely avoid.  

 

- Making adequate Loss provisions to cover expected losses. 

- Screening alternative courses of action by performing a risk assessment, and enforcing a 

threshold criterion for acceptable risk. Alternatives that fail to meet the set criterion are 

rejected. 

- Assessment of potential demands for liquidity during a stressful period relative to the 

potential sources of liquidity. 

- Expanding the size and number of available sources, for example, the interbank market. 

 

 Central Registry 

 

The Government of India has set up the Central Registry of Securitisation Asset 

Reconstruction and Security Interest of India (CERSAI) under section 21 of the SARFAESI 

Act, 2002 to have a central database of all mortgages created by lending institutions. The 

object of this registry is to compile and maintain data relating to all transactions secured by 

mortgages. All Banks & Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) which fall under the purview of 

SARFAESI Act are required to register with CERSAI and submit the data in respect of all 

properties mortgaged in its favour. The lending institutions are required to pay fees for 

uploading the data of mortgage. 
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 Internal Audit and Control 

 

MRHMFL has an adequate system of internal control in place which has been designed to 

provide a reasonable assurance with regard to maintaining of proper accounting controls, 

monitoring of operations, protecting assets from unauthorized use or losses, compliance 

with regulations and for ensuring reliability of financial reporting. MRHMFL has documented 

procedures covering all financial and operating functions. 

 

MRHMFL has robust internal audit programme, where the internal auditors, an independent 

firm of chartered accountants, conduct a risk-based audit with a view to not only test 

adherence to laid down policies and procedures but also to suggest improvements in 

processes and systems. Their audit program is agreed upon by the Audit Committee. 

Internal audit  observations and recommendations are reported to the Audit Committee, 

which monitors the implementation of such recommendations.  

 

 Statement of Profit and Loss 

 

Key elements of the statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2020 are: 

 

 Profit before tax grew by 0.16% and Profit after tax grew by 21.89% as against the 

previous year.  

 Current year income tax provision amounted to INR 1.01 Crore as compared to INR 1.58 

Crore in the previous year. The effective income tax rate for the current year was 23.87% 

against 37.44% in the previous year. 

 Pre-tax return on average assets was 1.46% in the current year as against 1.62% in the 

previous year. Post-tax return on average assets was 1.11% as against 1.01% in the 

previous year. 

 The Earnings Per Share (Basic) was INR 1.52 for the current year against INR 1.26 for the 

previous year. 

 

 Human Resource 

 

The Company believes that the quality and dynamism of its human capital has enabled it to 

significantly enhance customer experience and stakeholder's value. In order to sustain its 

growth the company works relentlessly towards being customer-focused, performance-

driven and ready for the future. The company provides employment and growth 

opportunities to more than 200 employees with the human resource strength growing with 

the size and operation of the company. The talent management strategy of the Company 

strives to deliver its unique talent promise of 'building holistic business leaders. The 

enthusiasm of staff members continued to be high in sustaining positive growth of 

disbursements and in maintaining healthy recoveries. With the high level of commitment 

and loyalty by staff members, MRHMFL is confident to face the challenges of the tougher 

market conditions. 



 
 

MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited 

Annual Report 2019-2020 

 

 Cautionary Statement 

 

The statements made in this report describing the Company’s objectives, estimations, 

expectations or projections, outlooks constitute forward-looking statements within the 

meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results may differ from such 

expectations, projections, among others, whether express or implied. The statements are 

based on certain assumptions and future events over which the Company has no direct 

control. The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify and revise any 

of the statements on the basis of any subsequent developments, information or events. 
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ANNEXURE A TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 

MAS RURAL HOUSING & MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED 

 

FORM NO. MGT-9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

 

As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2020 

 

[Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company 

(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.] 

 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 

  

1. CIN U74900GJ2007PLC051383 

2. Registration Date 24/07/2007 

3. Name of the Company MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited 

4. 
Category / Sub-category of the 

Company 
Company limited by shares 

5. 
Address of the Registered office  & 

contact details 

4th Floor, Narayan Chambers, 

B/h Patang Hotel, Ashram Road, 

Ahmedabad-380 009. 

Ph No. – 079 – 4110 6500 / 733 

Website : www.mrhmfl.co.in 

E-Mail : darshil_hiranandani@mas.co.in 

6. Whether listed company No 

7. 
Name, Address & contact details of the 

Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. 

KFin Technologies Private Limited 

Tower B Plot No: 31 & 32, Selenium, 

Financial District, Nanakramguda, Gachibowli 

Hyderabad, Telangana - 500 032 

P: +91- 040 – 67162222 

 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY: 

 

(All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be 

stated.) 

 

Sr. No. 
Name and Description of main products / 

services 

NIC Code of the 

Product/service 

%  to total turnover of 

the company 

1. Activities of Housing Finance  65922 100.00% 

 

  

http://www.mrhmfl.co.in/
mailto:darshil_hiranandani@mas.co.in
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III. PARTICUALRS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name and 

Address of the 

Company 

CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/Associate 

% of 

shares 

held 

Applicable 

Section 

1. 

MAS Financial 

Services Limited 

 

6, Narayan 

Chambers, Ground 

Floor, B/h Patang 

Hotel, Ashram 

Road, Ahmedabad 

- 380 009. 

L65910GJ1995PLC026064 Holding 59.67 Section 2(46) 

of Companies 

Act, 2013. 

 

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN: 

 

(Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

 

i) Category-Wise Shareholding: 

  

Category of 

Shareholders 
No. of Shares held as on April 1, 2019. No. of Shares held as on March 31, 2020. 

% 

change 

during 

the 

year 
A. PROMOTERS Demat Physical Total 

% of 

Total 

Shares 

Demat Physical Total 

% of 

Total 

Shares 

(1) Indian 

a) Individual / HUF 8561211 Nil 8561211 40.33 8561211 Nil 8561211 40.33 Nil 

b) Central Govt. 

Or State Govt. 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

c) Bodies 

Corporate  
12664893 Nil 12664893 59.67 12664893 Nil 12664893 59.67 Nil 

d) Bank / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

e)  Any other Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

SUB TOTAL: (A) 

(1) 
21226104 Nil 21226104 100.00 21226104 Nil 21226104 100.00 0.00 

 

(2) Foreign 

a) NRI- Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

b) Other 

Individuals 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

c) Bodies Corp. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
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d) Banks/FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

e) Any other Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

SUB TOTAL: (A) 

(2) 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

TOTAL 

SHAREHOLDING 

OF PROMOTER  

(A)= 

(A)(1)+(A)(2) 

21226104 Nil 21226104 100.00 21226104 Nil 21226104 100.00 Nil 

 

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING 

 

(1) Institutions 

a) Mutual Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

b) Banks/FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

c) Central govt. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

d) State Govt. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

e) Venture Capital 

Fund 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

f) Insurance 

Companies 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

g) FIIS Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

h) Foreign Venture 

 Capital Funds 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

i) Others (specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

SUB TOTAL 

(B)(1): 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

(2) Non Institutions 

a) Bodies 

corporates 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

i) Indian Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

ii) Overseas Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

b) Individuals 

i) Individual 

shareholders 
300 Nil Nil *0.00 300 Nil Nil *0.00 Nil 
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holding  nominal 

share capital upto 

Rs. 1 lakhs 

ii) Individuals 

shareholders 

holding nominal 

share capital in 

excess of Rs. 1 

lakhs 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

c) Others (specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

SUB TOTAL 

(B)(2): 
300 Nil Nil *0.00 300 Nil Nil *0.00 Nil 

 

TOTAL PUBLIC 

SHAREHOLDING 

(B)= 

(B)(1)+(B)(2) 

300 Nil Nil *0.00 300 Nil Nil *0.00 Nil 

 

C. SHARES HELD 

BY CUSTODIAN 

FOR  GDRS & 

ADRS 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

GRAND TOTAL 

(A+B+C) 
21226404 Nil 21226404 100 21226404 Nil 21226404 100 Nil 

* Insignificant Shareholding. 

 

ii)  Share Holding of Promoters: 

 

Sl 

No. 

Shareholders 

Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 

year 
Shareholding at the end of the year 

% change 

in 

shareholdi

ng during 

the year 

No. of 

shares 

% of 

total 

shares 

of the 

company 

% of shares 

pledged 

encumbered 

to total 

shares 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares 

of the 

Company 

 

% of shares 

pledged 

encumbered 

to total 

shares 

1 
Mr. Mukesh C. 

Gandhi 
4040606 19.04 Nil 4040606 19.04 Nil Nil 

2 
Mr. Kamlesh C. 

Gandhi  
2486510 11.71 Nil 2486510 11.71 Nil Nil 

3 
Ms. Shweta 

Kamlesh Gandhi 
2034095 9.58 Nil 2034095 9.58 Nil Nil 

4 M/s. MAS 12664893 59.67 Nil 12664893 59.67 Nil Nil 
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Financial 

Services 

Limited 

 

iii) Change In Promoters' Shareholding (Specify, if there is no change): 

 

Sl. 

No. 
Shareholders Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of 

the Year 

Cumulative Shareholding during 

the year 

1. 

Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi No. of Shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

No of shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company 

 

As at 01/04/2019 2486510 11.71 2486510 11.71 

Date wise Increase/Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during 

the year specifying the reasons 

for increase /decrease(e.g. 

Allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

equity etc):  

No change 

As at 31/03/2020 2486510 11.71 2486510 11.71 

2. 

 

Mr. Mukesh Gandhi No. of Shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

No of shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company 

 

As at 01/04/2019 4040606 19.04 4040606 19.04 

Date wise Increase/Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during 

the year specifying the reasons 

for increase /decrease(e.g. 

Allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

equity etc):  

No change 

As at 31/03/2020 4040606 19.04 4040606 19.04 

3. 

Mrs. Shweta Gandhi No. of Shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

No of shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company 

 

As at 01/04/2019 2034095 9.58 2034095 9.58 

Date wise Increase/Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during 

the year specifying the reasons 

for increase /decrease(e.g. 

Allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

equity etc):  

No change 

As at 31/03/2020 2034095 9.58 2034095 9.58 

4. MAS Financial Services Limited No. of Shares % of total No of shares % of total 
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shares of 

the 

company 

shares of the 

company 

 

As at 01/04/2019 12664893 59.67 12664893 59.67 

Date wise Increase/Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during 

the year specifying the reasons 

for increase /decrease(e.g. 

Allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

equity etc):  

No change 

As at 31/03/2020 12664893 59.67 12664893 59.67 

 

iv) Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & 

Holders of GDRS & ADRS): 

 

Sl. 

No. 

For Each of the Top 10 

Shareholders 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 

year 

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year 

No. of shares 
% of total shares 

of the company 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company 

1. 

Mr. Saumil Pandya 

As at 01/04/2019 100 *0.00 100 *0.00 

Date wise increase/decrease in 

Share holding during the year 

specifying the reasons for 

increase/decrease (e.g. 

allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

equity etc) 

No change 

As at 31/03/2020 100 *0.00 100 *0.00 

* Insignificant Shareholding. 

 

v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP: 

 

Sl. 

No. 
Particulars Shareholding 

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year 

 

For Each of the Directors & KMP No. of shares 
% of total shares 

of the Company 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

Company 

1. 

Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi – Chairman & Managing Director 

As at 01/04/2019 2486510 11.71 2486510 11.71 

Date wise increase/decrease in Share 

holding during the year specifying 

the reasons for increase/decrease 

(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

No change 
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equity etc) 

As at 31/03/2020 2486510 11.71 2486510 11.71 

2. 

Mr. Mukesh Gandhi – Whole-Time Director & CFO 

As at 01/04/2019 4040606 19.04 4040606 19.04 

Date wise increase/decrease in Share 

holding during the year specifying 

the reasons for increase/decrease 

(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

equity etc) 

No change 

As at 31/03/2020 4040606 19.04 4040606 19.04 

3. 

Mrs. Darshana Pandya – Director & COO   

As at 01/04/2019 100 *0.00 100 *0.00 

Date wise increase/decrease in Share 

holding during the year specifying 

the reasons for increase/decrease 

(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

equity etc) 

No change 

As at 31/03/2020 100 *0.00 100 *0.00 

4 

Mr. Chetan Shah – Independent Director  

As at 01/04/2019 __ __ __ __ 

Date wise increase/decrease in Share 

holding during the year specifying 

the reasons for increase/decrease 

(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

equity etc) 

No change 

As at 31/03/2020 __ __ __ __ 

5 

Mr. Subir Nag – Independent Director 

As at 01/04/2019 __ __ __ __ 

Date wise increase/decrease in Share 

holding during the year specifying 

the reasons for increase/decrease 

(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

equity etc) 

No change 

As at 31/03/2020 __ __ __ __ 

6 

Mr. Bala Bhaskaran – Independent Director 

As at 01/04/2019 100 *0.00 100 *0.00 

Date wise increase/decrease in Share 

holding during the year specifying 

the reasons for increase/decrease 

(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

equity etc) 

No change 

As at 31/03/2020 100 *0.00 100 *0.00 
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7 

Mr. Darshil Hiranandani – Company Secretary 

As at 01/04/2019 __ __ __ __ 

Date wise increase/decrease in Share 

holding during the year specifying 

the reasons for increase/decrease 

(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

equity etc) 

No change 

As at 31/03/2020 __ __ __ __ 

* Insignificant Shareholding. 

 

(Preference Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Preference) 

 

i) Category-Wise Shareholding: 

  

Category of 

Shareholders 
No. of Shares held as on April 1, 2019. No. of Shares held as on March 31, 2020. 

% 

change 

during 

the 

year 
A. PROMOTERS Demat Physical Total 

% of 

Total 

Shares 

Demat Physical Total 

% of 

Total 

Shares 

(1) Indian 

a) Individual / HUF Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

b) Central Govt. 

Or State Govt. 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

c) Bodies 

Corporate  
Nil Nil Nil Nil 10000000 Nil 10000000 100.00 100.00 

d) Bank / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

e)  Any other Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

SUB TOTAL: (A) 

(1) 
Nil Nil Nil Nil 10000000 Nil 10000000 100.00 100.00 

 

(2) Foreign 

a) NRI- Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

b) Other 

Individuals 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

c) Bodies Corp.          

d) Banks/FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

e) Any other Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

SUB TOTAL: (A) 

(2) 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
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TOTAL 

SHAREHOLDING 

OF PROMOTER  

(A)= 

(A)(1)+(A)(2) 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 10000000 Nil 10000000 100.00 100.00 

 

B. PUBLIC 

SHAREHOLDING 
         

(1) Institutions 

a) Mutual Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

b) Banks/FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

c) Central govt. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

d) State Govt. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

e) Venture Capital 

Fund 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

f) Insurance 

Companies 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

g) FIIS Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

h) Foreign Venture 

 Capital Funds 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

i) Others (specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

SUB TOTAL 

(B)(1): 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

(2) Non Institutions 

a) Bodies 

corporates 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

i) Indian Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

ii) Overseas Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

b) Individuals 

i) Individual 

shareholders 

holding  nominal 

share capital upto 

Rs. 1 lakhs 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

ii) Individuals 

shareholders 

holding nominal 

share capital in 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
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excess of Rs. 1 

lakhs 

c) Others (specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

SUB TOTAL 

(B)(2): 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

TOTAL PUBLIC 

SHAREHOLDING 

(B)= 

(B)(1)+(B)(2) 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

C. SHARES HELD 

BY CUSTODIAN 

FOR  GDRS & 

ADRS 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil  

 

GRAND TOTAL 

(A+B+C) 
Nil Nil Nil Nil 10000000 Nil 10000000 100.00 100.00 

 

ii)  Share Holding of Promoters: 

 

Sl 

No. 

Shareholders 

Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of 

the year 
Shareholding at the end of the year 

% change in 

shareholding 

during the 

year 
No. of 

shares 

% of 

total 

shares 

of the 

company 

% of shares 

pledged 

encumbered 

to total 

shares 

No. of 

shares 

 

% of 

total 

shares 

of the 

Company 

% of shares 

pledged 

encumbered 

to total 

shares 

1 

MAS Financial 

Services 

Limited 

Nil Nil Nil 10000000 100.00 Nil 100.00 
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iii) Change In Promoters' Shareholding (Specify, if there is no change): 

 

Sl. 

No. 
Shareholders Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of 

the Year 

Cumulative Shareholding during 

the year 

1 

MAS Financial Services Limited No. of Shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

No of shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company 

 

As at 01/04/2019 Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00 

Date wise Increase/Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during 

the year specifying the reasons 

for increase /decrease(e.g. 

Allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

equity etc):  

Issue of OCPS 

As at 31/03/2020 10000000 100.00 10000000 100.00 

 

iv) Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & 

Holders of GDRS & ADRS): 

 

Not Applicable 

 

v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP: 

 

Sl. 

No. 

Particulars Shareholding 
Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year 

For Each of the Directors & KMP No. of shares 
% of total shares 

of the Company 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

Company 

1 

Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi – Chairman & Managing Director 

As at 01/04/2019 __ __ __ __ 

Date wise increase/decrease in Share 

holding during the year specifying 

the reasons for increase/decrease 

(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

equity etc) 

No change 

As at 31/03/2020 __ __ __ __ 

2 

Mr. Mukesh Gandhi – Whole-Time Director & CFO 

As at 01/04/2019 __ __ __ __ 

Date wise increase/decrease in Share 

holding during the year specifying 

the reasons for increase/decrease 

(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

equity etc) 

No change 
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As at 31/03/2020 __ __ __ __ 

3 

Mrs. Darshana Pandya – Director & COO 

As at 01/04/2019 __ __ __ __ 

Date wise increase/decrease in Share 

holding during the year specifying 

the reasons for increase/decrease 

(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

equity etc) 

No change 

As at 31/03/2020 __ __ __ __ 

4 

Mr. Chetan Shah – Independent Director 

As at 01/04/2019 __ __ __ __ 

Date wise increase/decrease in Share 

holding during the year specifying 

the reasons for increase/decrease 

(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

equity etc) 

No change 

As at 31/03/2020 __ __ __ __ 

5 

Mr. Subir Nag – Independent Director 

As at 01/04/2019 __ __ __ __ 

Date wise increase/decrease in Share 

holding during the year specifying 

the reasons for increase/decrease 

(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

equity etc) 

No change 

As at 31/03/2020 __ __ __ __ 

6 

Mr. Bala Bhaskaran – Independent Director 

As at 01/04/2019 __ __ __ __ 

Date wise increase/decrease in Share 

holding during the year specifying 

the reasons for increase/decrease 

(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

equity etc) 

No change 

As at 31/03/2020 __ __ __ __ 

7 

Mr. Darshil Hiranandani – Company Secretary 

As at 01/04/2019 __ __ __ __ 

Date wise increase/decrease in Share 

holding during the year specifying 

the reasons for increase/decrease 

(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 

equity etc) 

No change 

As at 31/03/2020 __ __ __ __ 
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V. INDEBTEDNESS: 

 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for 

payment: 

(Amount In INR) 

Particulars 
Secured Loans 

excluding deposits 
Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year 

i. Principal Amount 2,54,60,41,089 Nil 1,65,75,000 2,56,26,16,089 

ii. Interest due but 

not paid 
Nil Nil Nil Nil 

iii. Interest accrued 

but not due 
36,61,581 Nil 2,96,048 39,57,629 

Total (i+ii+iii) 2,54,97,02,670 Nil 1,68,71,048 2,56,65,73,718 

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year 

 

 Net Addition / 

(Reduction) 

(37,69,97,952) 5,70,10,461* 28,04,529 (31,71,82,962) 

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year 

i. Principal Amount 2,16,79,10,829 5,70,10,461 1,85,25,000 2,24,34,46,290 

ii. Interest due but 

not paid 
Nil Nil Nil Nil 

iii. Interest accrued 

but not due 
47,93,889 Nil 11,50,577 59,44,466 

Total (i+ii+iii) 2,17,27,04,718 5,70,10,461 1,96,75,577 2,24,93,90,756 

* INR 5,70,10,461 represents Liability Component of 1,00,00,000 6% Optionally Convertible Preference Shares issued by 

the company during the current year and thus shown under Unsecured Loans. 

 

Note:  All the deposits are security deposits received from corporate customers against 

loans disbursed. 
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:  

 

(Amount In INR) 

Sl No. 
Particulars of 

Remuneration 

Name of the MD/WTD/Manager 

Total Amount 

Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi 

Chairman & 

Managing Director 

Mr. Mukesh Gandhi 

Whole-time 

Director & Chief 

Financial Officer 

Mrs. Darshana 

Pandya – 

Director & Chief 

Operating 

Officer 

1. 

Gross salary 

a. Salary as per 

provisions contained 

in section 17(1) of 

the Income Tax. 

1961. 

 

b. Value of perquisites 

u/s 17(2) of the 

Income tax Act, 

1961 

 

c. Profits in lieu of 

salary under section 

17(3) of the Income 

Tax Act, 1961 

 

Nil 

 

 

 

 

 

Nil 

 

 

 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

 

 

 

 

Nil 

 

 

 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

 

 

 

 

Nil 

 

 

 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

 

 

 

 

Nil 

 

 

 

 

Nil 

2. Stock option Nil Nil Nil Nil 

3. Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil 

4. 

Commission 

- as % of profit 

- others (specify) 

   

Nil 

Nil 

 

Nil 

Nil 

 

Nil 

Nil 

 

Nil 

Nil 

5. 

Others, please specify 

(Electricity Charges 

Reimbursement) 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Total A Nil Nil Nil Nil 
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B. Remuneration to other directors: 

(Amount In INR) 

Sl. No. 
Particulars of 

Remuneration 

Name of Directors 

Total Amount 
Mr. Bala 

Bhaskaran 

Mr. Chetan 

Shah 
Mr. Subir Nag 

1 

Independent Directors 

a. Fee for attending board 

committee meetings 

1,30,000 90,000 40,000 2,60,000 

b. Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil 

c. Others please specify. Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Total (1) 1,30,000 90,000 40,000 2,60,000 

2 

Other Non Executive Directors 

a. Fee for attending board 

committee meetings 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

b. Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil 

c. Others, please specify. Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Total (2) Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 Total (B)=(1+2) 1,30,000 90,000 40,000 2,60,000 

 

C. Remuneration To Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / Manager / WTD: 

 

(Amount In INR) 

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration 
Key Managerial 

Personnel 
Total 

  Company Secretary  

1. 

Gross Salary 

a. Salary as per provisions contained in section 

17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 

b. Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income Tax 

Act, 1961 

c. Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of 

the Income Tax Act, 1961 

 

620,739 

 

620,739 

2. Stock Option Nil Nil 

3. Sweat Equity Nil Nil 

4. 

Commission 

- as % of profit 

- others (specify) 

 

Nil 

Nil 

 

Nil 

Nil 

5. Others, please specify Nil Nil 

Total 620,739 620,739 

 

  



l-rd -,1

VII, PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

NONE

For & On behalf of the Board

43,5 RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE

Date ; October 28, 2020
Place : Ahmedabad

bf Directors of
CE LIMITED

I

LESH C. GANDHI
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIREGTOR

DIN: 00044852

t,", .': ,

"dlt.A$ 
Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited

Artnttr,tl [iePort 2 019-2020
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ANNEXURE B TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

MAS RURAL HOUSING & MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED 

 

FORM NO. AOC -2 

 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the company with 

related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 

certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

 

I.  Details of Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions at Arms length basis for the year ended 

March 31, 2020. 

 

Sl No. Particulars Details 

a.  Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship  MAS Financial Services Limited (MFSL) 

b.  Nature of contracts / arrangements / transaction Availing of Services 

c.  Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transaction One Year  

d.  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transaction including the value, if any. 

MFSL agrees to provide MRHMFL within the 

premises the amenities, services, facilities-

Usage of commercial premises of MFSL, 

furniture’s & fixtures including computers, 

telephone lines, networks, use of water and 

water supply, and other necessary amenities 

for carrying on business activities smoothly. 

e.  Justification for entering into such contracts or 

arrangements or transactions. 

MRHMFL is in requirement of the premises, 

assets and infrastructure which is available 

with MFSL. So, to fully utilise the premises, 

MRHMFL has requested MFSL to provide 

several amenities, services, facilities-Usage of 

commercial premises for carrying on business 

smoothly. 

f.  Date of approval by the Board  18/07/2019 

g.  Amount paid as advances, if any No such amount was paid as advances. 

h.  Date on which the special resolution was passed in General 

meeting as required under first proviso to section 188  

N.A 
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Sl. No. Particulars Details 

a. Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship  MAS Financial Services Limited 

b. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Availing of Services 

c. Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Two Years 

d. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any  
 
 
 
 

 

MRHMFL appoints MFSL as recovery 
agent to collect outstanding 
instalments and other dues from its 
customers and MFSL in consideration 
accepts appointment and agrees to 
provide the said service under the 

terms and conditions as set forth. 

e. Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or 
transactions. 

MRHMFL is in requirement of services 
for recovery of dues from customers 
at its various branches and MFSL has 
network executives at its various 
branches. So, to avail its services, 
MRHMFL has requested MFSL to 
provide   services of recovery agent. 

f. Date of approval by the Board  14/03/2019 

g. Amount paid as advances, if any No such amount was paid as 
advances. 

h. Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting 
as required under first proviso to section 188  

N.A. 

II.  
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Sl. No. Particulars Details 

a. Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship  MAS Financial Services Limited 

b. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Availing of Services 

c. Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction One Year 

d. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 

including the value, if any  

The Executive Management of MAS 

Financial Services Limited will share 

several intellectual services to MAS 

Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance 

Limited to carry out the Operations of 

the Company effectively. Since the 

remuneration for their services is paid 

by MAS Financial Services Limited and 

considering various parameters to look 

in to the activities of the Company, 

MRHMFL will pay an amount decided 

by the Board of Directors as Cross 

Charge payment to share the Cost of 

Remuneration of the Executive 

Management. 

e. Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or 

transactions. 

MRHMFL is in requirement of various 

intellectual services of the Executive 

Management of MAS Financial 

Services Limited to carry out the 

Business Operations of the Company 

effectively considering various 

parameters to look in to the activities 

of the Company. 

f. Date of approval by the Board  23/10/2019 

g. Amount paid as advances, if any No such amount was paid as 

advances. 

h. Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting 

as required under first proviso to section 188  

N.A. 



r lnl ,
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Sl No. Particulars Details

a. Narnc(s) oi thc relared p;nyr& naiurc of relat onsh'p N.A.

tr. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction N.A,

c. Duration of thc contracts/arrangements/transaction N.A.

d. Salicnt terms of the contracts or drranqements or transaction
J

including the value,
N.A.

c. Justification for entering into such contracts or arfanqernents or transactions. N.A,

f Datc of approval by the Board N.A,

q. Amount paid as advances, if any N,A,

h. Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required
under first proviso t6 section 188 li

N.A.

III. Details of Contracts or Affangements or Transactions not at Arms length basis.

For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of
4A5 RURAL HOUSING & MOR TIMITED

MLESH C. GANDHI
Date : October 28, 2020
Place : Ahmedabad

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECToR
DIN: 00044852

$$$ l{ural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limitcd
Ann rral lleport 2019-2020
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ANNEXURE C 

 

POLICY ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

1) Prelude 

 

The Company is a Housing Finance Company registered with the National Housing Bank, and is 

engaged in providing home loans rural, semi-urban and urban areas. 

 

The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) places a lot of emphasis on Related Party Transactions. 

Provisions of the Act along with the relevant Rules governing Related Party Transactions have 

come into effect from April 1, 2014. 

 

Section 177(4) of the Act deals with approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the 

Company with related parties by the Audit Committee. 

 

All Related Party Transactions pursuant to section 188 of the Act which are not in the ordinary 

course of business and/or not on an Arm’s length basis require prior approval of the Board and if 

such transactions cross the threshold limits prescribed under the Act, such transactions also 

require the approval of shareholders of the Company by ordinary resolution and the Related 

Parties with whom transactions are being entered shall abstain from voting on such resolution(s). 

 

It also requires specified related party transactions to be disclosed in the Board’s Report along with 

the justification for entering into such transactions. 

 

As per the requirements of Notification No. NHB. HFC. CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 issued by the 

National Housing Bank (NHB) vide which the NHB notified the Housing Finance Companies-

Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016, the company shall disclose the 

policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions on its website and also in the Annual Report. 

 

2)  Objective of the Policy 

 

The objective of this policy is to set out (a) the materiality thresholds for related party transactions 

and (b) the manner of dealing with the transactions between the Company and its related parties 

based on the Act, and any other laws and regulations as may be applicable to the Company; and 

(c) lay down guiding principles and mechanism to ensure proper approval, disclosure and reporting 

of transactions as applicable, between the company and any of its related parties in the best 

interest of the Company. 

 

3) Applicability and Legal Framework 

 

This Policy on Related Party Transactions shall be governed by the Act read with Rules made 

thereunder, as may be in force from time to time and regulations, if any, of NHB in this regard. Any 
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references to statutory provisions shall be construed as references to those provisions as amended 

or re-enacted or as their application is modified by other statutory provisions (whether before or 

after the date hereof) from time to time and shall include any provisions of which they are re-

enactments (whether with or without modification).  

 

4) Definitions 

 

“Arm’s length transaction (‘ALP’)” means a transaction between two related parties that is 

conducted as if they were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest.  

 

“Related Party”, with reference to a Company, shall have the same meaning as defined in Section 

2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

“Related Party Transaction” (RPT) means – for the purpose of Companies Act, 2013, specified 

transactions mentioned in clause (a) to (g) of sub-section 1 of Section 188 of the Act. 

 

5) Policy on Related Party Transactions: 

 

All Related Party Transactions (before being entered into) must be reported to the Audit Committee 

for its approval in accordance with this Policy. 

 

The Audit Committee shall periodically review this policy and may recommend amendments to this 

Policy from time to time as it deems appropriate. 

 

6) Identification of potential related parties and transactions 

 

Identification of related parties shall be as prescribed under section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 

2013 and identification of related party transactions shall be as prescribed under section 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

7) Approval of Related Party Transactions 

 

a) Prior Approval of Audit Committee 

 

All Related Party Transactions of the Company as prescribed under the Act shall require 

prior approval of Audit Committee, whether at a meeting or by way of a Resolution by 

circulation.  

 

i) All Related Party Transactions will be submitted to the Audit Committee for prior 

approval irrespective of whether such transactions are in the ordinary course of business 

and/or at arm’s length or not. 

ii) Where the Company has entered into a master agreement with a related party, which 

stipulates details of every transaction like nature of the transaction, basis of pricing, 



 
 

MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited 

Annual Report 2019-2020 

credit terms, etc. the prior approval once given by the Audit Committee would suffice 

and Audit Committee would only note the transactions that are entered into pursuant to 

such master agreement and will not require any further approval of the Audit Committee 

unless there is any change in the terms of the master agreement. 

 

The Audit Committee may grant omnibus approval for Related Party Transactions proposed 

to be entered into by the Company subject to the following conditions: 

 

a) The Audit Committee shall, after obtaining the approval of the Board of Directors, 

specify the criteria for granting the omnibus approval in line with the Policy on Related 

Party Transactions of the Company and such approval shall be applicable in respect of 

transactions which are repetitive in nature. 

b) The criteria for making omnibus approval shall include the following which shall be 

approved by the Board:- 

 

i) Maximum value of the transactions, in aggregate, which can be allowed under the 

omnibus route in a year. 

ii) The maximum value per transaction which can be allowed. 

iii) Extent and manner of disclosures to be made to the Audit Committee at the time of 

seeking omnibus approval. 

iv) Review, at such interval as the Audit Committee may deem fit, related party 

transaction entered into by the Company pursuant to each of the omnibus approval 

made. 

v) Transactions which cannot be subject to the omnibus approval by the Audit 

Committee. 

 

 The Audit Committee shall consider the following factors while specifying the 

 criteria for making omnibus approval, namely:- 

 

a. Repetitiveness of the transactions (in past or in future) 

b. Justification for the need of omnibus approval. 

 

c) The Audit Committee shall satisfy itself on the need for omnibus approval and that such 

approval is in the interest of the Company; 

d) Such omnibus approval shall specify (i) the name/s of the related party (ii) nature and 

duration of transaction/period of transaction (iii) maximum amount of transaction that 

can be entered into, (iv) the indicative base price/current contracted price and the 

formula for variation in the price if any and (v) such other conditions as the Audit 

Committee may deem fit; 

 

Provided that where the need for Related Party Transaction cannot be foreseen and 

aforesaid details are not available, Audit Committee may grant omnibus approval for 

such transactions subject to their value not exceeding Rs. one crore per transaction. 
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The Audit Committee shall review on a quarterly basis, the details of Related Party 

Transactions entered into by the Company pursuant to each of the omnibus approval given. 

 

Such omnibus approvals shall be valid for a period not exceeding one financial year and 

shall require fresh approvals after the expiry of one financial year. 

 

Such omnibus approval shall not be made for transactions in respect of selling or disposing 

of the undertaking of the Company. 

 

b) Approval of the Board of Directors of the Company: 

 

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Act, all kinds of transactions specified under the 

said Section and which are not in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis, are 

placed before the Board for its approval. In addition to the above, the following kinds of 

transactions with related parties are also placed before the Board for its approval:  

  

1. Transactions which may be in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis, 

 but which are as per the policy determined by the Board from time to time (i.e. value 

 threshold and/or other parameters) require Board approval in addition to Audit 

 Committee approval;  

2. Transactions in respect of which the Audit Committee is unable to determine whether or 

 not they are in the ordinary course of business and/or at arm’s length basis and decides to 

 refer the same to the Board for approval;  

3. Transactions which are in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis, but 

 which in Audit Committee’s view requires Board approval.  

 

c) Approval of the Shareholders of the Company: 

 

All kinds of transactions specified under Section 188 of the Act which (a) are not in the 

ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis; and (b) exceed the thresholds laid down 

in Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are placed before the 

shareholders for its approval.  

 

8) Disclosures 

 

MRHMFL shall disclose, in the Board’s report, transactions prescribed in section 188(1) of the Act 

with related parties, which are not in ordinary course of business or arm’s length basis along with 

the justification for entering into such transaction.  
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9) Related Party Transactions not approved under this Policy  

 

In the event the Company becomes aware of a transaction with a related party that has not been 

approved in accordance with this Policy prior to its consummation, the matter shall be reviewed 

by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall consider all of the relevant facts and 

circumstances regarding the related party transaction, and shall evaluate all options available to 

the Company, including ratification, revision or termination of the related party transaction. The 

Audit Committee shall also examine the facts and circumstances pertaining to the failure of 

reporting such related party transaction to the Audit Committee under this Policy and failure of 

the internal control systems, and shall take any such action it deems appropriate. In any case, 

where the Audit Committee determines not to ratify a related party transaction that has been 

commenced without approval, the Audit Committee, as appropriate, may direct additional actions 

including, but not limited to, discontinuation of the transaction or seeking the approval of the 

shareholders, payment of compensation for the loss suffered by the related party etc. In 

connection with any review/approval of a related party transaction, the Audit Committee has 

authority to modify or waive any procedural requirements of this Policy. 

 
**** 
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NOTICE

.t
NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirteenth (13th) Annual General Meeting (Aclvl) of the members
of 1uA--: Rural Housing & f4ortgage'Finance Limited will be held at 11:00 am, on Wednesday, the
4th day of November, 2O2O at 5rh Ftoor, Nafayan Chambers, Behind patang Hotel,'Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad - 380.009 to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS: ;

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financiat statement of the Company for the year
ended March 3I, 2020 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. Tcr declare dividend on equity and preference shares.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi, (DIN 00044852), liable to retire by
rotation in terms of'Section 152(6) gf the Companies Act, 2013 and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

By order of the Board

Place :

Date :

I,t,""

Ahmeda bad
October 28, 2O2O

.JIft.A.S llula! Housing & Mortgage Fiuance Lirnited
Annlral lleport 2019-7020

Da*5fii1 Hiranandani
company secretary

(A47e86)
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NOTES: 

 

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

(AGM) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF 

HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 

 

The proxy form, to be valid and effective, should be lodged at the registered office of 

the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than forty-eight hours before the 

commencement of the AGM. 

 

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in 

the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company 

carry voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital 

of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such 

person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

 

Subject to the provisions of Section 126 of the Companies Act, 2013, dividend as recommended by 

the Board of Directors, if declared at the AGM, will be dispatched/remitted commencing on or after 

November 4, 2020. 

 

All documents referred to in the notice and the explanatory statement requiring the approval of 

the Members at the AGM and other statutory registers shall be available for inspection by the 

Members at the registered office of the Company during office hours on all working days between 

11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. on all working days of the Company from the date hereof up to the date 

of ensuing annual general meeting. 

 

In terms of the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, the amount of dividend not 

encashed or claimed within 7 (seven) years from the date of its transfer to the unpaid dividend 

account, will be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund established by the 

Government.  

 

The Notice and the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 2019-20 are being sent to 

the Members in accordance with the provisions of Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 18 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014. 

  

The Company requests those Members who have not yet registered their e-mail address, to 

register the same directly with their DP, in case shares are held in electronic form and to the 

Company, in case shares are held in physical form. 
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The Annual Report 2019-20 of the Company is also available on the Company’s website at 

www.mrhmfl.co.in 

 

For Security reasons and for proper conduct of AGM, entry to the place of the AGM will be 

regulated by the Attendance Slip, which is annexed to this Notice. Members / Proxies are 

requested to bring their Attendance Slip in all respects and signed at the place provided there at 

and hand it over at the entrance of the venue. The route map of the AGM venue is also annexed to 

this Notice. 

  

https://www.mrhmfl.co.in/
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Route Map to the Venue of AGM: 
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Form No. MGT-11 

 

Proxy form 

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
 

Name of the Member(s): _____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Registered Address: _________________________________________________________________________________ 

E-mail Id: _________________________ Folio No. / Client Id: ___________ DP ID: _____________________________ 

 

I / We being the member of MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited, holding ________ 

shares, hereby appoint 

 
1. Name: ______________________________________ Address: ________________________________________ 

E-mail Id: ___________________________________ Signature: __________________________ or failing him; 

2. Name: ______________________________________ Address: ________________________________________ 

E-mail Id: ___________________________________ Signature: __________________________ or failing him; 

 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at 13th Annual 

General Meeting of members of the Company, to be held on Wednesday, November 4, 2020 at 5th 

Floor, Narayan Chambers, Behind Patang Hotel, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad – 380 009 of the 

Company at 11:00 am and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are 

indicated below: 

 

Sr. No. Brief details of the Resolutions 

1.  Adoption of the Audited Financial Statement and Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon 

for the year ended March 31, 2020. 

2.  To declare dividend on equity and preference shares. 

3.  To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi, (DIN 00044852), liable to retire by rotation in terms 

of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

Signed this ___________day of ____________ 2020. 

 

Signature of Shareholder: 

 

Signature of Proxy holder(s): 

 

  

Affix 

Revenue  

Stamp 



 
 

MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited 

Annual Report 2019-2020 

Note:  

 

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited 

at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the 

commencement of the meeting. 

2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

3. *For the Resolutions, and Notes, please refer to the Notice of the 13th Annual General Meeting. 

It is optional to put a “√” in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the 

box. If you leave the “For’’, “Against” or “Abstain” column blank against any or all the 

resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/ she thinks appropriate. 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP – 13th AGM 

(To be handed over at the entrance of Meeting Hall) 

 

Regd. Folio /DP ID & Client ID  

Name and Address of the Shareholder(s)  

 

 

 

 

Joint Holder 1 

Joint Holder 2 

 

No. of Shares  

 

I certify that I am a registered shareholder/proxy for the registered shareholder of the 

Company. 

 

I hereby record my presence at the THIRTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company 

at Wednesday, November 4, 2020 at  the 5th Floor, Narayan Chambers, Behind Patang Hotel, 

Ashram Road, Ahmedabad – 380 009 of the Company at 11:00 am. 

 

Full name of the Member/Proxy attending the 

Meeting 

 

Member's/Proxy's Signature 
 

 

 

Note: Please fill in this attendance slip and hand it over at the ENTRANCE OF THE HALL. 

Shareholders attending the meeting are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report 

with them. 

 



RAJPARA ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

D -1102 The First, Near Hotel ITC Narmada, Behind Keshavbaug Party Plot, Vastrapur,
Ahmedabad-380 015. Phone: 079-4849 3366. E mail: admin@carajpara.com

caraJpara.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
MAS Rural Housing and Mortgage Finance Limited

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements of MAS Rural Housing
and Mortgage Finance Limited which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,2020,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of
Cash Flow, the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other inegularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or erTor.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS Financial Statements based on
our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and maffers u,hich are required to be included in the audit report under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
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the hd AS Financial Statements are material misstatement.



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosules in the Ind AS Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind
AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers intemal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Ind
AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operative effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at
3l March,2020, and its financial performance including other comprehensive income, its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Notes to the Financial Statements, the extent to which the COVID-l9
Pandemic will impact the Company's financial performance is dependent on future
developments, which are highly uncertain. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

t. As required by the companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2016 ("the order'), as
amended, issued by the Cenhal Government of India in terms of sub-section (l l) of section
143 of the Act, we give in the "Annerure A' a statement on the matters specified in
parasaphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a- We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. the Balance Sheet the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
and statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books ofaccount;



d. in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with
relevant rule issued thereunder;

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

disqualified as on March 31,2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) ofthe Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in sAnnexurt B".

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule I I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Rajpara Associates
Chartered Accountants
[.RN 1

\
,1/u

Place: Ahmedabad
Date:
UDIN:

Jay Soni
Partner
M. No. 174165



RAJPARA ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

D -1107, The First, Near Hotel ITC Narmada, Behind Keshavbaug Party Plot, Vastrapur,
Ahmedabad-380 015. Phone: 079-4849 3366. E mail: admin@carajpara.com

AI{I\IExIIRE A To TI{E INDEPENDENf flTJBiib"fSREPORT
(Refened to in paragraph I under 'Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our

report ofeven date)

(D In respectofits fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

(b) The fxed assets have been physically verified by the management inn a phased

manner, designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our
opinion, is reasonable having regards to the size of the company and nature of its
business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed asset has been physically
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies between
the book records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed.

(c) No immovable property is held by the company and accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3 (i) (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

(ii) The company being Non-banking Financial Company has no inventory; Accordingly, the
provisions of clauses 3(ii) of the order are not applicable to the company.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under

section 189 of the Companies Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii) (a), (b) and

(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,2013 In
respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted

deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder.

(vi) In respect of the activities of the Company, maintenance of cost records has not been

prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act,2013.

(vii) According to information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
stafutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales

tax, wealth tan, service talq duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and

other statutory dues applicable to it.

(b) According to the records of the company, there are no disputed statutory dues for
income tar or sales tax or wealth tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of



excise or value added tax or cess.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks, financial institutions or Governmeni.
The Company has not issued any debentures.

(ix) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, term loans have
been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. Company has not raised
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officeis
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the managemeht no managerial remuneration has been paid or provided. Therefore, th!
provision of clause 3 (xi) of the order are not applicable tothe company.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3
(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177
and 188 of Companies Ac! 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS
Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has made preferential allotment of prefeience shares during
the year under review and the requirement of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 have
been complied with and the amount raised have been used for the purposes for which the
funds were mised.

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xvi) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-tA of the
Reserve Bank of India Acg 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the
order are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

For Rajpara Associates
Chartered Accountants

113428W

b)

Place: Ahmedabad
Date:
UDIN:

Jay Soni
Partner
M. No. 174165



RAJPARA ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

D -1102 The First, Near Hotel ITC Narmada, Behind Keshavbaug Party Plot, Vastrapur,
Ahmedabad-38O 015. Phone: 079-4849 3366. E mail: admin@carajpara.com

caraipara.com

AI\IIVEXI]RE B TO THE INDEPENDENT ATJDITORS'REPORT

@efened to in clause (D of paragraph 2 under 'Report on other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Actr 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MAS Rural
Housing and Mortgage Finance Limited as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding ofits assets, the prevention and detection offrauds and errors, the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the

"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be

prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,2013, to the extent applicable to an

audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an

understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the

auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suflicient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial contrbts system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls over Financiar Reporting

A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable as$rance regarding the reliability of financial- reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordanci wittr- generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over 

-financiil

reporting includes those policies and procedures that (l) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
ggmpany are being made only in accordance with authorizations bf management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding ffiention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the-compiny's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to elror 9r fraud may occui and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to-irtur" periods arl
subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial 

-reporting ."y become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compn-ance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial tontrols over financial
leporting were operating effectively as at March 31,2020, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria establshed by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note onAudit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Rajpara Associates
Chartered Accountants

113428W

Place: Ahmedabad
Date:
UDIN:

u1\,/

Partner
M. No. 174165



ga,, RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LIM|TED

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2O2O

ntlnO
Particulars Note No. As at

3l March 2020
As at

31 March 2019

21,07,45,086
2,05,087

2,54,46,03.d47

41,22,89,043
1,92,533

2,64,14,05,249

1,84,611

84,35,958
71,8't5

39,21,377

69,40,936
98,74,207

1,04,90s

59,70,400

2,21,48,s8,732

46,71,641

2,53,44,10,639

1,56,762
48,07,431

94,380
1,34,933

21,22,64,040
31

z',t,zzu.040

Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Other Financial assets

L]ABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Flnanclal Liabilities
Payables
(l)Trade Payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterpiises and small
enterprises

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Other fi nancial liabilities

Total Financial Assets

Total Financial Liabi

notes to the financial statementsSee

Total Non Financial Liabilities

Total

Total Llabilities and Equity

Total Eq

Total Non Financial Assets

Total Assets

EQUITY
Equity Share Capital
Other Equity

Non-Financial Assets
lncome tax assets (net)
Defened tax Assets (Net)
Property, Plant and Equipment
Other lntangible assets
Right-of-use Asset
Other non-financial assets

Non-Financial Liabilities
Current tax liabilities (Net)
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
Other non-financial liabilities

ASSETS
Financlal assets
Cash and cash equivalents

9
10 (a)
10 (b)
10 (c)

11

5
6

8

12
13

14

9
15

16
17

\

2020

Ltd.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directore of
.frAF Rural Housing and

Kamlesh C. Gandhi

Place: Ahmedabad
Date 2020

ln lerms of our report attached
For Rajpara & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Jay Soni
Partner
Membership No.174165

Darchana S. Pandya
(Director & Chief Operating Officer)
(DrN - 07610402)

UAyP 
'

ruuresr,t. I"nor,i
(Wnole TildDirector & Chief Financiat OfficeQ
(DrN - 00187086)

Place
Date:

Darchil Hiranandani
(Company Secretary)
(Membership No: 447986)

(Chairman & Managing Director)
(DrN - 00044852)

, I



Jil.A' RURAL HOUSING & MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED

STANDLONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR TTIE YEAR EIiIOED 3I i,ARCH 2O2O

(Amount ln O

Particulara Note
No.

Year ended
3l tarch 2020

Year ended
31 lf,erch 2019

L Revenue trom opeasoons
lnterest lncom€

Gain on assignmont of financial assets
Fees and commi$ion lncome
Total Rovenue from oporatlons

Other lncome
Total lncome

ll. Expenses
Financo Costs
lmpairment on financial instruments
Employee Bonofit Expenses
Depredetion, amortization and impairment
other expenses
Total Expenses

lll. Profit Before Tar

,V. Tax ExpenEe:
Cunent Tax
Short / (Excsss) ProMsion For Tax Relating to prior years
Oefoned tax (credit) / cfiarge
Net tax expenlo

V. Profit for thc year (lll . lV)

Vl. Othor comprehenslve lncome
Items that will not b€ roclessified to profit or loss:

Rerr€asurernont of the defined benelit liaulilies
. lncome tax imp8d on abo\re

Total
(B) ltems that will b€ reclessitied to profit or loss:

Loans and Advances through oth€r comprohensive lncome
lncome tax rolaling to items that will be redassified to prorit or loss
Total

Other comprehenglve lncome

Vll. Total comprehenslve lncorne (V + Vll

Vlll. Eaming3 per cqulty share (of ( l0 each):
Basic
Diluted

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

18

19

20
21

22
23
24

I

25

37,73,80,852

1,81,67,834

15.31.958

32,16,61,634

21,18,917

39.70.80.644 32,37,80,551

17 .67.O72 3.26.917
39,8E.47.716 32.41.07..168

24,4',t,15,154
2,18,88,035
6,U,21,517

53,54,536
2.46.09.888

19,52,73,009
90,91,888

4,90,00,174
31,66,353

2.51.U.135
35,63,89,130 28,17,15.559

4,24,58,588

99,50,000
10,360

1.73.221

4,23,91,909

1,14,20,000
(1,80,835)

/16.33.453

1,01,33,581 1,58,72,618

3,23.25,005 2,65,19,291

(4,14,087)
1.U.226

3,07,958
(85.674)

(3,09,861)

7,26,091
n.a2.757\

2,22,284

5,43,334

2,3:t.473 2.22.284

3.25,5E.478 2,67.11.575

52 1.26
1.26

ln terms of our report attached
For Rajpara & Assoclates
Chertered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Dlrectors ot
Jfcq, Rural Ho6lng and irortgage Frnance Ltd.

CA,t-l l

Jay Sonl Darchana S. Pandy.
(Director & Chief Oporating Officer)
(DlN - 07610402)

Kamlesh C. Gandhl
(Chairman & Managing Oireclor)
(DlN - 000.14852)

Partner

Membership No.174165

Darshil Hiranandanl

(Company Secretary)

(Memb€6hip No: A47986)

llukesh C. Gandhi
(Whole Time Oirec{or & Chief Financiat Ofricer)
(DrN - 001 87086)

Place: Ahmodabad

Date: 20 May 2020
Place: Ahmedabad

Dale:2OMay 2020

(



&A' RURAL HOUSING t MORTGAGE FINAI{CE LIMITED

STAT{DLONE STATE]UIENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3.I MARCH 2O2O

(A) Equlty Share Gapltal

(B) Other Equity

(Amount lnO
Reeeles and SurplusPartlcularr

Reserve fund
u/s.29€ of

NHB Act,l987

Securltier
Premlum

Equlty
component of

comPound
fananclal

lnstrument3.
ocPs

Employee coct
on dlscount on
slrares issuod

by llolding
Company

Retalned
Eamlngs

Loans and
advance3

through OCI

Total

3,36,28,885

1,02,70,000

31,50,800

1 1,80,85,041

1,84,/05,516

(1,28,12,s36)

6,79,905 7,02,36,231

2,65,19,291

3,12,127

(s,26,787)

(38,62,427)

(1.02,70,000)

12,61,41,320

2,65,19,291

3,12,127

(5,26,787)

(38,62,427)

1 1,80,8s,041

(1,28,12,536)

4,34,9E,855 12,12,35,841 56,32,980 6,79,905 8,2'1,0E,438 25,38,56,029

88,90,000

(38,36,781)

3,45,37,882

(3,s8,6s3)

3,23,25,00s

(3,09,861)

(12,79,528)

(88,90,000)

11,87,276

(3,58,633)

3,23,25,005

8,77,415

(12.79,5281

(38,36,781)

3,45,37,882

Profit for th6 year

Other comprehensive income (net of taxes)

Dividend on Equity Shares induding DDT

Dividend on Preference Shares including
DDT
Transfer to Reservo fund u/s. 29-C of NHB
Act,1 987
Additons during the year in Security
Prsmlum
Adjustrnent on ac@unt of premature
converslon to equity share

Transition impact of lnd AS 116 (Net of Tax)

OthEr comprehensive income (net of taxos)

Dividond on Equity Shar€s including DDT

Oivid€nd on Preferonce Shares including
DDT
Transfer to ReseNe fund u/s. 2$C of NHB
Act,1987
Equity component of 6% OCPS issued
during the period (net of lax)

Balance at 31 tarch 2020

Profit for the year

12,12,35,811 3,63,34,081 6,79,9055,27,88,E65 10,38,95,.121 11,E7,276 31,61,21,369

ln terms of our report attiached

For Rarparr & Assoclato!
Charter€d Accountants

o\A

Jay Sonl
Partner

Membeship No.174165

Place: Ahmedabad

For and on behalf of the Board of Directcrr o,
dla, Rural Houslng E Flnance'Ltd.

t

I

J

a

Darshana S. Pandya
(Director & Chlef Operating Officer)
(DlN - 07610402)

Darshil Hiranandanl
(Company Secretary)
(Mernbership No: A47986)

Placc: Ahmedabad

Kamlesh C,

(Chairman &
(DrN .00044852)

(Wholo Director E Chiof Financial Ofiice4

Afid.bd

Date: 20 2020 Date:20 2020

(DrN - 00187086)

Balanc..t 3l lf,arch 2018
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&4, RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE L|M|TED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2O2O

(Amount in <)

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
3{ March 2019

A" CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit Before Tax
Adiustments for :

Depreciation and Amortisation
Finance Costs
Provision for impairment on financial assets
Loss assets written off (net)
lnterest lncome
lnterest lncome from lnvestments and Deposits
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments
Gain on derecognition of leased asset

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

Changes in Working Capital:
Adjustments for'(increase)/decrease in operating assets:
Loans and Advances
Deposits given as Collateral
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Other non-fi nancial asset
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade Payables
Advance from Borrowers
Other financial and non-financial liabilities
Provisions

CASH GENERATED FROM / (USEO IN) OPERATIONS

Finance Costs paid
lncome Tax Paid (Net)
lnterest lncome Received

CASH FLOW FROM 
' 

(USEO IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital
Assets

expenditure on Property, Plant & Equipments and tntangiblel

Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipments and lntangible
Assets
lnterest lncomelrom lnvestments and Deposits
cAsH FLOW (USED tN) |NVEST|NG ACT|VIT|ES (B)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of equity Shares
Proceeds from lssue of Optionally Convertible preference Shares
Repayment of principal component of lease liability
Proceeds from debt securities and borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
l,let lncrease / (Decrease) in Working Capital Borrowings
Dividends paid including dividend distribution tax
cAsH FLOW FROM 

' 
(USED tN) F|NANC|NG ACTtVtTtES (C)

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EOUIVALENTS (A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Ca6h and Gaeh Equivalents at the end ofthe year
(Refer Note , below)

53,54,536
24,41,15,154

1,92,05,403
26,82,632

(36,56,41,319)
(1,1 7,3s,533)

(1 2,108)

4,24,58,586

,10-60_35.235r

s1,66,353
19,52,73,009

16,14,867
74,77,021

(31,40,16,006)
(75,25,032\

(1,2171

4,23,91,909

fi 1.40.1 1.005r

7,62,83,600
(s0,648)
(12,5541

(40,45,612)

12,98,759
(35,53,1 77)

(s,03,26,317)
21.429

(6,35,76,649)

1.96.15.880

(65,65,94,361)
16,055

1,30,0E2
(11,05,s91)

7,92,079
33,26,339

(5,33,1 4,099)
(7.17.160)

(7,16,19,0961

r70-74 66 6561

(23,73,94,834)
(1,02,39,351)
36.53.31.620

(4,39,50,769)

11.76.97.435

(20,44,95,543)
(94,46,087)

31.08_41 .058

(77,90,85,7521

9.68.99.428

(7,64,296)

1,17,39,533

1 0,00,00,000
(30,09,290)

44,00,00,000
(81,80,99,783)

(30,47E)
(51,16.309)

7,37,36,666

1,O9,75,237

(7,51,1 16)

3,813

75,25.032

10,99,99,881

1,43,00,00,000 
|

(s6,1 5,20,56s) 
|

(6,20.7u)l
(43.89.214)l

(68,21,86,324)

67,77,729

(28,62,55,860) 97,34,69,340

(20,1 5,r#1,957)

41.22,89,043
2r,07,45,086

29,80,60,745

11.42,28,298
41,22,89,O43



!fCA' RURAL HOUSING & MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2O2O

(Amount in 3

at 3l As at 3l
March 2019Notes: March 2020

1 year comprises:

Cash on Hand

Balances with banks
14,06,088 10,57,820

41,12,31 ,22320 998
and a3 Balance Sheet 21,07,45,086 41

2 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "lndirect Method" as set out in the lndlan Accounting Standard
Cash Flows specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

7 on Siatement

3 The Company applied lnd AS 1 16 at 1 April 2019, using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative information is
restated and the cumulative effect of initially applying lnd AS 1 16 is recognised in retained earnings at the date of initial application.

4 The Company as at 31 March 2020 has undrawn borrowing facilities amounting to t 3600 lakhs that may be available for future operating
and to settle capital commitments.

5 Change in liabilities arising from financing activities
tn

{ April 2019 Cash Flows 3t March 2020

than debt securities 2,53,44,1 0,639 85,87,1 89 2,21,48,58,732
from activities 189 732

' Non-cash changes includes the effect of recording financial liability at amortized cost, amortization of processing fees etc.

See accompanying explanatory notes forming part of the financial statements

ln terms of our report attached
For Rajpara & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
lmcAj3 Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Ltd.

\ t
C^h

tr

Jay Sonl
Partner

Membechip No.174165

Darshana S. Pandya
(Director & Chief Operating Offlcer)
(DrN - 07610402)

Kamlesh C. Gandhi
(Chairman & Managing Director)
(DrN - 000448s2)

\"*

I

Darshil Hiranandani
(Company Secretary)
(Membership No: A47986)

Mukesh C. Gandhl

Whole Time Director & Chief Financial Officer)
(DrN - 00187086)

Place :Ahmedabad

Date : 20 May 2020

Place: Ahmedabad

Date : 20 May 2O?-0

$il'dSd a



FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2O2O

RURAL HOUSING & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LIMITED

,1. CORPORATEINFORMATION

sA5 Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited ('"lhe Company") iS public company incorporated under the provisions
Companies Act, 1956. It is registered as Non Deposit taking Hous ing Fina nce Company with the Nationa Housing Bank ("NHB)
The Compa ny provides housing loans tn the segment of Affordable Housing tn Rural & Urban areas, Commercial loans andloans for construction of affordable houses. The activities of the company are spread all over Guja rat, Maharashtra, MadPradesh & Rajasthan.

The company's registered office is at 4th Floor, Narayan chambers, B/h Patang Hotel, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad, Gujarat, lndia380009.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared tn accordance with the lndian Accounting Standards"lnd AS) as per the Companies (r nd ran Accounting Standards) Rules 201 amended from time lo time and notifiedsection 33 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act") along with other relevant provisions of the Act and Master Circular-Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 20'l0 ('Master Directions') issued by NH B.

2,2 Basis of measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
defined benefit plans which are measured at fair value and or amortised cost at the end of each ,"portinj p"rioo.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees (e which is the currency of the primary economic
in which the Company operates (the ,'functional 

currency,').

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the standalone financial statements tn conformity with lnd AS requ ires management to make estimates
assumptions considered tn the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported
and expenses during the period

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognisedprospectively in the period in which the estimates are revised and iuturi periods are affected.

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global heatth pandemic from covlD-19:
The company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to covtD-1 I the carryingof loans. developing the

on
n assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties tn the global economic conditions becausethis pandemic, the company AS at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and externalinformation including cred it reports and

sources
related information, economic forecasts. The company has performed analysis onassumptions used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The impactcovr D-' 9 on the Company's financial statements may d iffer from that estimated at the date of approval of these financialstatements.

Judgements

ln the process of applying the company's accounting policies, management has made judgements, which have a significant riskcausing material adjustment lo the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the nLxr-financial year.

i) Business mode! assessment

Classification end measurement of financia assets depends 0n the results of business model and the solely payments
principal and interest ('sPPr) test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of
assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting
relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets rs evaluated and their performance measu red, the risks
affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managefti of the assets are pensated.
Company monitors the financial

com
assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income thatderecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons ate consistent withobjective of the business for which the asset was held. Mon itoring iS part of the Company's continuous assessment ofthe business model lor which the financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it ts not appropriate

has been a change tn bus iness model and SO a prospective change to the class ification of those assets.
whether

a-t

a
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2O2O

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the standalone financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

i) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabilig in an
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions
(i.e. €n exil price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When
the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets,
they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include lhe use of valuation models. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing
fair values. For further details about determination of fair value refer note 3.8 and note 40.

li) Effective lnterest Rate ("ElR") method

The Company's EIR methodology, as explained in Note 3.1(A), recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural tite of toani qiven / taken and
recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates al various stages and other characleristics of the-oroduct fif" *.f"
(including prepayments and penalty interest and charges). - ' -l

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life.cycle
instruments, as well as expected changes to interest rates and other fee incomel expense that are integral parts
instrument.

iii) lmpairment of financlal asset

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the
estimalion of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining iirpairment losses and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of fictors, changes in which can
result in different levels of allowances.

The Company's expected credit loss (the "ECL') calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that ar6
considered accounting judgements and eslimates include:

a) The Compan/s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial
assets should be measured on a life time expected credil loss (the "LTECL.) basis.b) Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs.c) Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and economic inputs, lending interest rates and
collateral values, and the effect on probabili$ of defauit (the "PD"), exposure at default line 

,;enO1 
a-nd loss given default

(the "LGD").
d) Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs into

the ECL models.

It has been the Company's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when
necessary.

of thel
of thl
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iv) Provisions and other contingent liabilities

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of
inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and regulatory investigations and
in the ordinary course of the Company's business.

litigation

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and considers
outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where the probability of outflow is considered
probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed.

to

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes into
number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similai incidents.
judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.

For further details on provisions and other contingencies refer note 3.16.

account a

These estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and other factors, including expeclations of future events
may have financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances The
believes that the estimates used tn preparation of the standalone financial statements are prudent and reasonable.

2.5 Presentation of the standatonc financial statements
The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months
the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date [non-current) isiresented in Note 3g.

Financial assets and financial liability are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net
in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a
event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

i) The normal course of business
iD The event of default

3.

3.1

A.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES

Recognition of lnterest tncome

EIR method

Under lnd AS 09, interest income rs recorded using the effective interest rate method for all financial instruments measured
amortised cost, financial instrument measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive lncome ('FVOCt) and
instruments designated at Fair Value through Profit & Loss account ('FVTPL). The EIR is the rate that exactly discou nts
future cash receipts through the expecled life of the financial instrument or when appropriate, shorter period, to the net
amount of the financial asset.

B.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of lhe ElR. The Company iecognises interest incomi using a rate of return
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of retum over the expected lifL of thl financial instrument.

lnterest income

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR lo the gross carrying amount of 1nancial assets other than
impaired assets..

When linancial asset becomes credit impaired and IS therefore, regarded AS 'stage 3' the Company calculates inlerest
on the net basis. rf the financial asset cures and ts no longer credit impaired, the Company reverts lo calculating interest income

gross basis.

Ir tit : +5t 'r

e
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3.2 Financial lnstrument - lnitial Recognition

A. Date of recognition

A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
instrument of another entity.

B.

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities, deposits and bonowings are initially recognised on
trade date, i.e. the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

lnitial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model
managing the instruments (Refer note 3.3(A). Financial assets and liabilities are initial ly recognized at amortised cost or fair
Transaction costs that are direcily attributable to the acquisition
the cost on initial recognition.

C. Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilifles

or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, a re adjusted

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business moclel for managing the assets and the asset,s contractua
terms, measured at either.
i) Amortised cost
iD FVOCT

iiD FWPL

3.3 Financial assets and liabilities

A. Financial Assets

Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve
business objective.

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated
and is based on observable factors such as

a) How the performance of the bus iness model and the fina ncia assets held within that business model are eva luated
reported to the Company's key management person nel.

b) The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that bus iness model) and tnparticular the way those risks are managed
c) How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation ts based on the tair value of the

assets managed or on the contractual cash flows col lected).
d) The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company's assessment.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst c€lse' 0r 'stress case'
into account. rf c€lSh flows after initial recognition are realised in way that rs d ifferent from the Company's origina expeclations,
Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates
information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased linancia assets going fonrvard.
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SPPI test

As a second step of its classification process, the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to identify whether
they meet the SPPI test.

'Principal' for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the
life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/ discount).

The most significant elements of interest wilhin a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of money
and credit risk. To make the SPPI asscssment, the Company applies judgement and considers relevant factors such as the period
for which the interest rate is set.

ln contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in lhe contractual cash flows thal
are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the amount outstanding. ln such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FWPL.

Accordingly, the financial assets are measured as follorvs:

l) Financial assets carried at amortlsed cost ("AC")
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if il is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order
to collecl contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii) Financial assets measured at FVOCI
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if il is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured at each reporting date at fair value with such changes
being recognised in the Other Comprehensive lncome (OCl). The interest income on these assets is recognised in profit or
loss. The ECL calculation for debt instruments at FVOCI is explained in subsequent notes in this section.

On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from other comprehensive
income to profit or loss.

iii) Financlal assets at FVTPL
A financial asset which is nol classified in any of the above categories are measured at FWPL.

The Company classifies financial assets which are held for trading under FVTPL category. Held-for-trading assets are recorded
and measured in the balance sheet at fair value. lnterest and dividend income is recorded in interest income or dividend
income respectively according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to payment has been established. Gain and losses
on changes in fair value of debt instruments are recognised on net basis through profit or loss.

B. Financia! Liabillty

i) lnitial recognltion and measurement
All financial liability are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial liabili$, wltich are not at fair value through profil or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

iil Subseguentmeasurement
Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

3.4 Reclasslfication of financial assets and liabillties

The Company does not reclassiff its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.
The Company did not reclassiff any of its financial assets or liabilities in the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

3.'
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3.5 Derecognltlon of financial assets and liabilities

A. Derecognitlon of financial assets due to substantiat modification of terms and condltions

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions have been
to the extent that, substantially, it becomes new loan, with the difference recognised AS derecognition gain or loss, to the
that an impairment loss not already been recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified AS Stage for
measurement purposes.

B. Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

i) Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, part of a financial asset or part of a grou p of similar fina ncial assets) iS derecog
when the contraclual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive the conlractua
flows rn transaction tn which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset ate transferred or
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownersh ip and it does nol retain
of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount (measured at the date
derecognition) and the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any niw liability assumed) is recognised
the statement of profit and loss.

in

Accordingly, gai n on sale or derecog nition of assigned portfolio are recorded upfront ln the stalement of profit and loss as per
AS 109. AISo, the Company recognises servicing income a percentage of interesl spread over tenure of loan tn CASES where
retains the obligation to service the transferred financial asset.

As per the guidelines of RBI' the company is required to retain certain portion of the loan assigned to parties in its books
Minimum Retention Requirement (MRR). Therefore, it continue to recognise the portion retained by ii as MRR.

ii) Financialliability

A financial liability ts derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged cancelled or expires. Where an existing
financial liability ts replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different lerms or the terms of an existing liability
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification iS treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
new liability The difference between the carrying value of the orQinal financial liability and the consideration paid IS recognised
the statement of profit and loss.

3.6 lmpairment of financial assets

A. Overview of the ECL principles
ln accordance with lnd. AS 1.09, the Company uses ECL model, for evaluating. impairment of financial assets other than
measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTpL).

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal lo:i.) The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result fiom those default events on lhe financial
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

ii.) Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that resuh from all possible default events over the life of
financial instrument)

Both LTECLs and 12 months ECLs are calculated on colleclive basis.

Based on the above, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described below:

Stage l: Stage consists of accounts having Days Past Due ('DPD) upto 30 days. When loans are
recognised the Company recognises an allourance based on 12 months ECL. Stage loans
those loans where there ts no significant credit risk observed and also includes facilities where the
risk has been improved and the loan has been reclassified from stage 2. also includes upgraded stage
loans of which DPD slatus are upg raded to 0 DPD.

Stage 2: Stage 2 consists of loans accounts having DPD above 30 but upto 90. When a loan has shown
significant increase tn credit risk since origination the Company records an allowance for the
ECL.

Stage 3 consists of loan accounts having DPD above g0. Loans considered credit impaired. The
records an allowance for life time ECL.

Stage 3:

life

as

1
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B. The calculation of ECLs

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined belor and the key elements are, as follows:

PD The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only
at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and iS still tn the portfolio.

EAD The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes
the exposure afier the reporting date, including repayments

LGD The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. lt is based on
the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from
the realisation of any collateral. lt is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

The Company has calculated Probability of Default (PDs), Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss Given Default (LGDs) to
impairment loss on the podfolio of loans and discounted at an approximation to the ElR. At every reporting daie,
calculated PDs, EAD and LGDs are reviewed and changes in the fonr.rard looking estimates are analysed.
The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

the

Stage 1: The 't2 months ECL rs calculated as the ponion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events
financial instrument that are possible within the 2 months ater the reporting date. The Company calculates the

months ECL allowance based on the expectation of default occu rring tn the 2 months following the reporting
These expected 12-months default probabilities are applied to a forecast EAD and multiplied by the expected
and discounted by an approximation to the original EIR

Stage 2: When loan has shown significant rncrease tn credit risk srnce origination, the Company records an allowance
the LTECLS. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the
of the inslrument. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted by an approximation to the original EIR

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognises the lifetime expected credit losses for these loans.
method is similar to that for stage 2 assets, with the pD set at 100%.

Significant incrcase in credit risk

The Company monitors all financial assets including loan commitments issued that are subject to impairment requirements,
ASSCSS whether there has been significant increase tn credit risk srnce initial recogn ition. ln assessing whether the credit risk on
financial instrument has increased significantly srn@ initial recognition, the Company compares the risk of default occurring
the financial instrument at the reporting date based on the remaining matu rrty of the instrument with the risk of a default occurring
that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current reporting date when the financia instrument was first recognised. ln
making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that ts reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience that iS available without undue cost or effort. However when a financial ASSET exceeds 30 days
due, the Company considers that significant increase in credit risk has occurred and the asset iS classified in Stage 2 of
impairment model, t.e. the loss allowance iS measured as the lifetime ECL.

Definition of default

The definition of default is used in measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss allowance is based
12-month or lifetime ECL.

Financial assets in default represent those that are at least 90 DPD in respect of principal or interest and/or where the assets
othenvise considered to be unlikely to pay, including those that are credit-impaired.

C. Loans and advances measursd at FVOC!

The ECLs for loans and advances measured
sheet, which remains at fair value. lnstead,

at FVOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets in the
an amount equal to the allowance that would anse if the assets were measured

amortised cost ts recognised in ocr AS an accumulated impairment amount, with corresponding cha r9e lo profit or loss.
accumulated loss recognised in

D. Forward looking lnformation

ocr is recycled to the profit and loss upon derecognition of the assets.

Companyln its ECL models, the
of

relies on broad range of fonrard looking macro parameters and estimated the impact on

a

a

a

a
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3.7 Write-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entireg after reasonable efforts for recovery have been made and when
Company has stopped pursuing the recovery. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on financial instrument on
statement of profit and loss.

3.8 Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would
participants at the measurement

be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability tn an orderly transaction between
date, regardless of whether that price ts directly observable or estimated using another

technique. ln estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company has taken into accou nt the characteristics of the
or liabil itv if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at lhe
date.

ln addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1 , 2, or 3 based on the degree
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the signifiiance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level financial instruments: Those where the inputs used tn the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets
identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as
only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when
there a@ binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date;

Level 2 financial instruments: Those where the inputs that are used for valuation a nd are significant, are derived from directly
indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument's life. Such inputs include quoted prices
similar assets or liabilities; in active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments tn inactive markets and observable inputs
than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads; and

'Level 3 financial instruments: Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

3.9 Recognition of other income and expenses

Revenue (other than for those items to which lnd AS 109 - Financial lnstruments are applicable) is measured at fair value
consideration received or receivable. lnd AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers ouflines a single comprehensive
of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and superiedes current revenue recognition guidance found
lnd ASs.

of

The company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in lnd AS 1 
.15 

:

Step 1: ldentify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that
enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract thit must be met.

Step 2: ldentifo performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to
transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects
entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf ofparlies.

to

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than
performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts
amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfyingiach performance obligation.

step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the company. satisfies a performance obligation

e
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A, lnterest income on Bank deposits & Other tncome

Interest income on Bank deposits is accounted on accrual basis. Other Operating lncome such as Service Charges, Stamp
Document Charges etc. are recognised on accrual basis.

B. Fees and commission income

Fees and commission income such as stamp and document charges, guarantee commission, service income etc. are recognised
on point in time basis.

C. Sale of Service
The Company on de-recognition of financial assets where right to servrce the derecognised financial assets for fee ts
recognises the fair value of future service fee tncome over servrce obl igations cost on net basis as service fees income ln
statement of profit and loss and corresponding creates a seNice asset rn balance sheet. Any subsequent increase ln the fair
of service assets ts recognised AS service income and any decrease ts recognised AS an expense ln the period tn which it
The embedded interest component tn the service asset is recognised AS interest income tn line with lnd AS 09
lnstrument'.

D. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs on financial liabilities is recognised using the EIR method.

Borrowing Costs are the interest and other costs that the Company incurs tn connection with the borrowing of funds
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifuing assets are capitalised as part of the cost of
assels. A qualiffing asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

All other bonowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period for which they are incurred.

3.10 Cash and cash equavalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short{erm balances (with an
maturi$ of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily converiible into
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.ll Propefi, plant and Equipments

Property, plant and equipment ("PPE") r

PPE comprises its purchase price net
subsequently recoverable from the tax

are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost
of any lrade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than

authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its
use and other incidental expenses. Subseq uent expenditu re on PPE afier its purchase is capitalized only if it iS probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably,

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to write down the cost of property and equipment to their residual val
over their estimated useful lives as specified under schedule ll of the Act.

The estimated useful lives are, as follows:

i) Office Equipment - 3 to 15 years
iD Furniture and Fixtures - 10 years
iii) Vehicles-Syears

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date on which such asset is ready for [s intended use.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

PPE is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying imount of the assit) is
recognised in other income / expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is aerecognisjo.

t
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3.12 lntangible Assets

The Company's other intangible assets include the value of soffware and trademark. An intangible asset is recognised only when its
cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the
Company.

lntangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-.{ine method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, and is included in depreciation and amortisation in the statement of profil
and loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:
i) Software: 3 years
ii) Trademark: 10 years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year
end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3'13 lmpairment of non financial assets ' property, plant and equipment and intangable assets

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at the each Balance Sheet date are reviewed for impairment. lf any indication
of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and if the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their
recoverable amount, impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as an expense, for such excess amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future
cash flows to their present value based on an appropriale discount factor. When there is indication that an impairment loss
recognised for an asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.14 Leasing

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of lnd AS 116. ldentification of a lease
requires significant iudgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated
renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option
to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. ln assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the
option to terminate the lease.

ln determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period of a lease, the Company applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable. A lease is no longer enforceable when the lessee and
the lessor each has the right to terminate the lease without permission from the other party with no more than an insignificant
penalty.

The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of
leases with similar characteristics.
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3.15 ReUrement and other employee benefits

Defined contribution plans
The Company's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans]
and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the]
employees. 

I

D,efined benefit plans 
I

The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the Company at the time ofl
resignation / retirement. The gratuity is paid @15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuityl

The gratuity liability amount is contributed to the approved graturty fund formed exclusively for gratuity payment to the employees.j
The gratuig fund has been approved by respective lncome Tax authorities. 

I

The liability in respect of gratuity and other posfemployment benefits is calculated using the Projected Unil Credit Method andl
spread over the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees' services. 

I

As per lnd AS 19, the service cost and the net interest cost are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Actuarial gains andl
losses arising due to differences in the actual experience and the assumed parameters and also due to changes in the assumptions]
used for valuation, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive lncome (OCl). 

I

Short-term employee benefits 
I

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short{erm employee benefits.l
Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the expected cost of exgratia are recognised in the period in which the employee rendersl
the related service. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid when there is a present legal or constructivel
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

I

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under: 
I

(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of futurel
compensated absences; and 

I

(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur. I

3.16 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A. Provisions

Provisions arb recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, the Company determines the
level of provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre{ax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the liability. The
expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

B. Contingentliabilaty

A possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrenc€ or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly wilhin the control of the Company or; present obligation that arises
from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability are disclosed as contingent liability and not
provided for.

C, ContingentAsset

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrenoe of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are not
recognised and disclosed only when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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3.17 Taxes

A. Cunenttax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid
to, lhe taxation authorities. Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the period as delermined in
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the lncome Tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax relating lo items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax ilems are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
equity.

B. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the standalone
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted bv the
end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end ot eacn r"porting
period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensivel
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or equity. I

I

I

Defened tax assets and liabilities are offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing tax laws and thel
Company has a legally enforceable right for such set off. - 

I

c. Goods and gervices tax / value added tares paid on acquisitlon of assets or on incurrlng expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/ value added taxes paid, except when the tax incurred on a
purchase of assets or availing of services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of lhe expense item, as applicable.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the
balance sheet.

3.18 Earnings PerShare

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax (i.e. profit attributable to ordinary equity holders) by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax (i.e. profit attributable to ordinary equity holders) as adjusted
for after-tax amounl of divirlends and interest recognised in the period in respect of the dilutive potintial ordinary shares ind is
adjusted for any other changes in income or expense that would result from the conversion of the dilutive potential ordinary shares,
by the weQhted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share as increased by the weighted
average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all diiutive potLntiat
ordinary shares

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share
from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period,
unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independenily f6r each'period
presented. The number of equity shares and potentialty dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits,
right issue and bonus shares, as appropriate.
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3.19 Dividends on ordinary shares

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is
authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the Act, final dividend is authorised when it is
approved by the shareholders and interim dividend is authorised when the it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.
A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equily.

The Company declares and pays dividends in lndian rupees. The Finance Act 2020 has repealed the Dividend Distribution Tax
(DDT). Companies are now required to payldistribute dividend after deducting applicable taxes.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement recognised
directv in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amount of the
assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

4 . STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies neur standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification
which would have been applicable from April 1,2020.

n
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2O2O

(Amount in O

Particulals As at
31 March 2020

As at
3l March 2019

14,06,088

20.93.38.998

10,57,820

41.12.31.223
21,07,45,086

'11.22.89.043

2,0s,087 1,92,533
2,05,O87 1.92.533

Note 5. Cash and Cash Equlvalents
Cash on Hand
Balances with Banks:

ln CunenU Cash Credit Accounts
Total Cash and Cash Eguivalents

Note 6, Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents
ln Cunent Accounts (Refer Note below)
Total Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Note: Balance represents balance with banks in earmarked account i.e. "Colleclion and payout Account,',

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 20lg
Particulars

At fair value
through OCI

At
amortised cost Total At fair value

through OCI
At

amortised cost
Total

Note 7. Loans
(A) (i) Term Loans
Total (A).Gross
Less: lmpairment loss allowance
Total (A) - Net

(B) (i) Secured by tangible assets
(ii) Unsecured

Total (B)-Gross
Less: lmpairment loss allowance
Total (B).l.let

(C) (l) Loans in lndia
(i) Public Sector
(ii) Private Sector

Total (C)€ross
Less: lmpairment loss allowance
Total (c) (t) -Ner

(C) (ll) Loans outside tndia
Less: lmpairment loss allowance
Total (C) (ll)- Net
Total and

16,59,69,515 2,40,96,88,740 2,57,56,58,255 2,65,38,98,396 2,65,38,98,396

147

1 't5

15

1 1 147 147

147

111 1

740
1 1 1

,|

Notes:
1' During the cunent year the company has made assignment transactions and have anived at a business model whose objective is achieved
both collecting contractual cash fows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial 

"rt"t 
gir" rise on specified dates

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For this purpose, the Company has classified and measured its assignment eligible portfolio frorn euarter 4 ot 2019-20at FVOC|.

Accordingly, in the cunent quarter, difftrence between the fair value of loan and carrying amount has been recognised as a separate
of loans and advances, in the FVOCI reserve, nei of related defened taxes.

2. Loans granted by the Company are secured or partly secured by Registered / mortgage property, Securities, assignments
Life lnsurance policies and Company guarantees

Equitable of other
lor and/or Personal guarantees Undertaking cleate security andl or

Collateral
'and

lor to

As at
3l March 2020

As at

3. Percentage of loans against gold to total assets

4. The Company has advanced loans to its officer. Principal amount of such loans outstanding is:

Particulars

O.00o/o

19,78,885

0.00%

21,91,756
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(Amount In ?l

7.1 An analysls of changes in the groes carrylng amount of loans le glron below

FY 2019-20 FY 2018-t9PaillcularB
Stage I Stage 2 Stase 3 Total Stase I Stage 2 Stago 3 Tota!

carrylng amount openlng balance
Changes in opening credit exposures (net ol
repayment and excluding write ofD

New assets originated (net of repayment).
Transfers from Stage 1

Transfers from Stage 2
Transfers from Stage 3
Amounts wriften off

Groes 2,56,70,52,185
(85,04,61,754)

80,69,77,191

(6,77,20,642)

1,03,52,771

(5,06,921)

7,71,37,078
(2,86,44,826)

20,15,599

6,67,62,791
(1,29,91 ,029)

(35,21,534

97,09,133
(19,042)

9,57,851

26,38,259

(40,78,8s4)

2,65,38,98,396
(87,91,25,622)

80,89,92,790

(81,07,30e)

1 ,91,71,51,209
(50,05,24,475)

1,17,60,29,191

(5,17,80,246)

2,80,67,369

(18,93,864)

7,98,51,136

(1 ,35,91 ,131)

3,93,731

4,59,49,821
(3,19,46,077)

(35,20,402)

77,75,711

(19,31,363)

58,30,425

38,78,708

(58,44,348)

2,00,47,81,056
(51,60,46,969)

1,17,64,22,922

(1,12,58,614)
Grose carrylng amount cloaing batance 2,18,5,92,829 10,07,58.079 92,07,U6 2,57,56.58.255 2,56,70,52,185 7,71,37,O78 97,09,133 2.65.38.98.396

' Nry .$€t oriolEbd .r. $.ce ass.b rfl.t hrye ei[l.r r.matngd tn st g€ I d hav€ t€c.rE stsgf, 2 or A ii 0re ,,a!. end.

7.2 tLcorclllrdon otEcL t t nc. L gnntr !.tow:
FY 2019-20 FY 2018.19Partlculals

Stage'l Stase 2 Stage 3 Total Stage t Stage 2 Stase 3 Total
ECL allowance - openlng batance
Changes in opening credit exposures (net of
repayment and excluding write off)

New assets originated (net of repayment)
Transfers ffom Stage 'l

Transfers from Stage 2
Transfers from Stage 3
Amounts written off

52,58,610
(28,48,394)

27,86,870
(1,76,281)

22,81,551

1,82,294

45,55,642
1,86,78,335

3,96,668
1,65,720

(26,49,384)

26,78,895
16,99,731

10,561

3,67,833
(1,82,2m',)

(15,07,807)

1,24,93,147

1,75,29,672

31,83,538

(15,07,807)

33,69,714

(3e,75,912)

31,67,314

(2,U,111)
25,67,225

3,34,380

52,85,307

21,00,691

22,256

1,81,U7
(30,33,660)

22,23,259
24,25,982

23,064
4,66,435

(3,34,380)

(21,25,46s)

1,08,78,281

5,50,762

(21,25,465)

31,89,570

ECL allowance - closlng balance 74,84,560 2,11.46.981 30,67,009 3,16,98,550 52,58,610 45,55,642 26.78.895 1.21.93,117

rum!.r ot dayB p3st due lhalt odnd6 [re mor.tdtm poiod tor tne puDole of a*€t da.liicadon a6 p€r 0E potid.

uncertain at this point of time. The Company has conducted a qualitative assessment and has considered a
higher

The increase in ECL was driven by an increase in the gross amount of the portfolio, movements between stages as a result of insease in credit risk and change in probability of default due to estimated impact of
COVID-19 pandemic. The extent to which COVIO-I9 pandemic will impad cunent estimates of ECL is

probability of default to faCor in the potential impact of COVlD'l g on impairment allowances. For further details, refer note no. 41.1

o

,.,!;

1+
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(Amount in Q

Particulars As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Note 8. Assets
Security deposits
lnterest accrued but not due on loans and advances
Sundry Debtors

Total Other Financial Assets

12,41,148

1,57,66,253

2,24,O74

11,90,500

1,54,56,554

1,72,31,471 1,66,47.054

Note 9. lncome Tax
The components of income tax Gxponae for the years ended 3l March 2o2o and 2019 are:

Current tax
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years
Defened tax
Total tax charge

Current tax
Deferred tax

AB at
31 March 2020

As at
3l March 2019

99,50,000
10,360

1,73,221

1,14,20,000
(1,E0,83s)

46,33,453
1,01,33,581 r.58.72.6r8

99,60,360

1,73,221 46,33,453

Note: The Taxation Laws
to provide an

(Amendment) Ordinance, 201I contained substantial amendments in the ncome Tax Act, 196 1 and the Finance (No
Act, 201I option to domestic companies to pay rncome tax at concessional rate. The Com pany has elected to applv
concessional tax rate. Accord ingly, the Company has recognised the provision for tncome tax and re-measured the net deferred tax assets at
concessional tax rate for the half year ended 30 September 201I and continued to apply the concessional tax rate tor the year ended 3 ,|

2020. Further, the opening net deferred tax assets in
6.61 lakh recognised in the financial statements for the

9.1 Reconciliation of the total tax charge

The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and

the books of the Company had been re-measured at lower rate with one-time impact of
yeat ended 31 March 2020.

loss differs from the ta,x charge that would apply if all profits had been charged at
corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by lndia's domestic tax rate for the years ended 31
March 2020 and 3 March 20 1 9 is, as follows:

Accounting profit before tax
Applicable Tax Rate
Computed Tax Expense
Tax effect of :

Non deductible items
Additional Deduction
Adjustment on account of change in tax rate
Others

Tax Expenses recognised in Statement of profit and Loss
Effective Tax Rate

As at
31 March 2020

As at
3l March 2019

4,24,58,586

25.17Y0

1,06,86,826

5,32,912
(12,23,379)

1,84,134
(46,e12)

4,23,91,90S

27.820/o

1,17,93,429

70,58,590
(28,43,713)

(1,3s,688)

1,01,33,581

23.87Y0

1,58,72,618

37.44o/o

Note 9.2 Deferred Tax

Particulars As at
31 March 2020

As at
3't March 2019

Asset / Liability (Net)
The movement on the defened tax account is as follows:

At tho start of the year DTA / (DTL)

CrediU(Charge) to Other Equity
CrediU(Charge) for Loans and advances through OCI
crediu(charge) for Remeasurement of the defined benefit liabilities through ocl
CrediU(Charge) to Statement of Profit and Loss
At the end of OTA /

69,40,936

(1,14,96,61s)

(1,82,757)

1,04,226
(1,73,221

1,16,60,063

(85,674)

(46,33,4s3)
(48,07,431) 69,/t0,936

a
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(Amount in O

The following table 3hows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the lncome tax expense:

As at
3l March 2019

CrediU(Charge)
to Other Eoultv

CrediU(Charge)
to Profit or Loss

Recognbed in
oct

As at
3l March 2020

Component of Deferred tax s3set, (llabillty)
Defened tax asset / (liability) in relation to:
Oifferenco bet\,lreen writlen down value of fixed
assets as per books of accounts and income tax

lmpact of fair value of assets
lncome taxable on realised basis
Compound Financial lnstrument
Defened tax on prepaid finance charges
lmpairment on financial assets
Recognition of Leas€ Asset & liability
Expenses allouable on payment basis
Total

(60,476)

26,E7,366

8,00,914

34,75,594

37,538

('t,16,17,246)

1,20,631

1,27,O52

4,789
(58,68,967)

7,96,779

85,656

45,02,932

1,45,173

33,365

(1,82,7s7)
1,04,226

66,576

(1,77,968)
(30,77,37s)

(1,08,20,467)

8,86,570

79,78,526

2,65,804

70,903
69,.O,936 fi,14,96,615) (1,73,2211 (78.531)

As at
3l March 2018

CrediU(Charge)
to Other Equitv

CrediU(Charge)
to Profit or Loss

Recognlsed in
oct

As at
31 March 2019

Component of Deferred tax asset, (liabllity)
Defened tax asset / (liability) in relation to:
Difference betrrcen written down value of fixed
assets as per booki of accounts and income tax
lncome taxable on realised basis
Defened tax on prepaid finance charg€s
lmpairment on financial assets
Expenses allolnble on payment basis
Total

(6,74,756)

16,94,066

1 t,7E9

28,30,63E

77,98,326

6,14,28O

'to,78,974

7,89,125

6,44,955
(77,60,787)

(8s,674)

(60,476)

26,87,366

8,00,914

34,75,594

37,538
1,r6,60,063 (46.33.453t (85,674)

t48.O7.431

GF[l't.FE
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in
Note 10. Property, Plant and Equipments and lntanglblc assets

Plant and Assets
Nature of Assets Office

Equipments
Furniture

and Flxtures Vehicles Total Software Other
lntangibles Total

47,74,419
5,67,857

5,485

15,10,781

1,58,711

1,02,37,086 1,65,22,286
7,26,568

2,53,653
14,549 10,000

2,53,653

24,549

53,36,791

5,66,393

16,69,492

1,57 ,721

1,02,37,086 1,72,43,369

7,24,114

2,68,202

40,182

10,000 2,78,202

40,182

59,03,184

25,34,583

14,06,027

4,459

18,27,213

1,29,467

1,69,945

1,02,37,086

16,28,830

15,04,769

,79,67,483

42,92,880

30,80,741

3,08,384

86,1 14

87,021 162

10,000 3,18,384

86,114

87,183

4,79,322

15'

1,81,823

2 31,33,599

15,0't,218

162

21,62,363

1,73,135

72,272

162

1,000 73,272

44, 5,173 1,81,235

13,81,314

46,34,817

86,08,256

,525

1,67,539

2,45,407 't,162

14,00,640 1 ,70,080 71,03,187 98,74,207 95,067 1,04,905

Additions
Disposals

As at 31 March 2020

DepreciationrAmortlsatlon
At I Aprll 2018
Depreciation/Amortization Charge
Disposal

At 3't March 2019

Depreciation/Amortization Charge
Disposal

As at 31 March 2020

Net Block Value:
At I April 2018

At31 March2019
As at 31 March 2020

Cost
At 1 April 2018
Additions

Disposals

At31 March 2019

14,87 ,711 1 71,815

is as follows:
tn

The details of the right-of-use asset held by the

Note 10(c) Rightof-use Asset

72,73,401

70,13,478

31,18,901

30,92,

Office Premlsea
At 1 Aprll 2019
Additions for the period

Disposals

As at 31 March 2020

Amortisation
At I April 2019
Additions

Disposals

As at 31 March 2020

Net Block Value:

As at 31 March 2020
39,21

a

firl
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tn

Particula15 As at
3l March 2020 3t March 2019

As

2,51,7U
70,084

64,00,2145

1,28,478

14,77,434

'14,182

55,000

39,40,666

3,88,345

5,22,581

1,87,59,1 8,990

1 5,75,12,000

13,44,78,144

5,70,10,461

(1

1,395

2,30.39.69.447

12,12,86,000

12,07.53,770

31,873
(1,16,30,451

,48,58,732 10,639

2,21,48,58,732 2,53,44,10,639

Note 12. Borrowlngs (Other than Debt Securities) (At amortised cost)
(a) Term loans (Refer Note No. 12.3)

(i) from Banks
(ii) from National Housing Bank
(iii) from Financial lnstitutions

(b) Liability component of @mpound financial instruments (Refer Note No. 12.1)
(c) Loans repayable on demand

(i) from banks - Cash Credit (Refer Note No. 12.2)
Less: Unamortised Borroiling Cost
Total (A)

Note l{ assets

Total (B) to with

Total other non-flnanclal assets

Prepaid expenses
Advances to employees

Balance with Govemment Authorities
Gratuig Fund

OtherAdvances

Borrowings in lndia

Bonowings outside lndia

,732

Note l2.l
(a) Liability component of compound financial instruments represents liability component of 1,00,00,000 670 optionally convertibte preference
C'OCPS) issued at face vatue of ? 1O each on 12th September 2019.

(b) Reconcillation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beglnning and at the end of tho reporting period:

As at 3l March at 3l March 20lgParticulanB
No. of Shareg ln No, of Sharos in

00,00,000 10,00,00,000

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Add: lssued during the period (Refer Note (a) above)

Preferonce6% Optionally

at the end of the 1

Details of shares held by each shareholder more than 5% shares:

As at 31 March at 31 March 2019
Glass of shares / Name of shareholder

shares held
of o/o ng in

that class of shares held
of % holding

that class of

JacAF Financial Services Limited

670 Optionally Preference

1,00,00,000

(d) Terms/ rlghts attached to preference shares
1'00'00'000 ocPS are having a par value of ? 1o each per share. These ocPS carry a right to be paid fixed preferential dividend at the rate of 6%annum.

The holder of the preference share capital, in respect of such capital, has a right to vote cnly on resolulions placed before the company whichaffect the rights attached to his preference shares.

Bankfrom secured Firstby pari-passu theon standardcharge receivables theof with cc/oDothercompany lenders (exceptportfolio fromgenerated vaflous loansterm sanctioned variousby banks/Rnancial oninstitutions exclusivean The areloans alsobasis). guaranteedMr. ChimanlalKamlesh Gandhi and MukeshMr Gandhi.Chimanlal

The preferen@ shares acarry non-cumulative dividend and areright convertibleoptionally into sharesequity at a betoprice atdetermined timetheconversion The toIS beoptionConversion/Redemption excrcised 33.33%for of the tnshares 5ththe for of33.33% theyear shares thetn 6th yearfor of33.33% theremaining shares thetn 7th thefrom ofdate oftssueyear shares.these

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of borowngs and interest.

Note {2.2
Cash Credit ts



TIA' RURAL HOUSING & MORTGAGE FINAT{CE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2O2O

(Amount ln I
12.3 Detalls oftetms ot rcdemPtlolr/repayment 8nd socurlty provided in rsspect of dobt strurifles and borrowings:

PartlculaE As.t
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 20lg Torme of R€domptlon/ Ropayment Secudty

Tm Loanl 50,00,000 1,50,m,000 Repaymsnt in 8 Quarterly tnstatments from
11t't1f2018.

The Term loan shatt b6 secured btfrst Enking tna-;xctGiG
chargs on standard reeivablos of the Company (identifed loan
assels) sufficient to prcvide security cover of the outstading
am@nt of the term loan on a continuous basis, during the tenur€
of the term loan. Personal Guaranlee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi &
Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loaftll 2,50,00,000 7,50,00,000 Repayment in I Quartedy lnstalments from
11112t2018.

The Torm loan shall be secured by fist mnking and exclusire
charge on standard r6cEivables of thB Company (identified loan
assots) sufficient to prcvide securily @ver of the outstanding
amounl of the term loan on a ffitinuous basis, during thg tenure
of the term loan. Personal Guaranteo of Mr. Kamtosh Gandhi &
Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

T€m Loan-lll 3,75,m,000 8,75,00.000 Repayment in 8 Quart€rty lnstalments from
27t03f2019.

TIE T6m toan shalt be secured by nrstEnhng-no-rcGG
charg€ on standard rec€ivables of the Company (idsnrjfied loan
assets) sumcignt to provide socurity @ver of th6 outsttrding
amount of the tEm loan on a continuous basis, during th€ tBnure
of the tem loan. Pe6onal Guarantee of Mr Kaml€sh Gandhi I
Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Tem Loan-lv u,22,6',t9 4,21,1 3,095 R€payment in 24 Quarterly lnstatments
starting frcm 01/09/201 4

Loan is secured by hypothecation cnarge on porttotio creaeO
form ths bank financa. Corporate Guarante€ of Jfl.e,g Financial
ServiGs Ltd. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr.
Mukesh Gandhi.

Tsm Loan-V '10,10,98,284 13,35,41,667 Repayment in 24 Qusrtsrly lnstalments
starling from 31/031201 7

Loan is secured by hypothecation cnarge on portfolio creaeO
form th6 bank finance. Personal Guarantee of Mr. KamlEsh
Gandhi & Mr. Mukesh Gandhl.

T€m Loan-Vl 4,58,33,333 6,25,00,000 Repayment in 24 Quart€rly lnstaiments
starting from 3'l/0320'l 7

Loan is secursd by hypothecation crrarge-nlortfotio-cre6G
form the bank finan@. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamtesf
Gandhi & Mr. Mukosh Gandhi.

Term Loan-Vll 3,74,99,995 5,41,66,663 F(epayment in 24 Quarterly lnstalments
beginning frcm 3'l/0720'16

Loan is secured oy xffi
Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Tem Loan-Vlll 2,49,99,996 3,33,33,328 Ropayment in 24 Quarterly lnstalm€nts
starting from 3(y06120't 7

Loan is secured by Hypothe€tion on eceivables. persom
Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Tem Loan-lx 5,41,66,663 6,66,66,664 Repaymsnt in 24 Quarterly lnstalments
starting from 3CY061201 7

Loan is so@red by Hypothocaton on reciivaOtes=esonat
Guarantee of Mr Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-X 't,78,57,202 3,21,42,96 Repayment in 28 Quartsrly lnstalmonts from
3qal2014

Loan is secured by Hypothe€tion on receivables. Corporate
Guarante€ o, lfl3JB Financial Services Ltd. personal Guarantee
of Mr. Kamlssh Gandhi & Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Tom Loan-Xl 37,50,000 87,50,000 Repayment in 20 Ouarterty lnslalments from
31/03t2016

Hypothe€tion of the R€@ivables arising out oiomvarO tenOr4
of Rup@ Tsrm loan extsnded by the Bank. Corpsats Guarante€
of Jfi.15 Financial Services Ltd. personat Guarantee of Mr
Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr. Mukash Gandhi.

Term Loan-Xll 1,66,66,664 2,49,99,996 Repaymont in 24 Quanody tnstalmonts
b€ginning from 30/062016

Term Loan-Xlll 7,97,88,617 9,58,33,333 R€payment in 24 Quartsrly tnstatm€nts
starting from 31/012019

Ths Loan is secured by Exclusivs charge Ey way 01

hypoth€cation on standard assets portfolio of rsceivables
(axcluding stressed assets).personal Gusrantee of Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhi & Mr. Mukosh Gandhi.

'Term Loan-XlV 4,62,@,0't9 5,00,@,0@ Ropayment in 2n Quarterty trstatments
starting from 30/0912019

The Loan is strursd by Exclusive charge by waylol
hypothecation on standard a,ssets portfolio of re€ivabl€s
(exduding stresssd assots).P6r$nal GuaEntes of Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhi & tur. Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-XV '13,75,00,000 23,75,00,0@ Repaymont in 10 Quarterty lnstalments
sterting from 28/02D019

Loan is secured by Hypothecation on receivaotei. FEE6i
Guarantee of Mr. lGmtesh Gandhi, Mr. Mukesh Gandhi & Mrs
Shweta Gandhi.

'ferm Loan-XVl 22,@,00,0@ 25,00,c0,000 R€payment in 26 Quart6rly lnstalm€nts
starting from 28/022019

Loan is secured by Hypothecation on receivables. persona
Guarantee of Mr. lGmlesh Gandhi, Mr. Mukesh Gardhi & t rs
Shweta Gandhi.

Term Loan-Xvll 87,50,000 1,37,50,000 R€payment in 24 Quarterly lnstatmenta irom
19t032ua.

First & Exclusive chargffi
book debts, which are financed to be financed by the company
out of the bank fnanc€. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhi & Mr. Mukssh candhi. & Mrs, Shwota K. Gandhi.

T6rm LoarFXVlll 2,04,11,000 3,20,79,000 Repayment in 24 Ouarterly lnstalments from
19/032016. debts, which are tnanced to b€ tinanced by the

of the bank fnance. Pe6onal Guarantee of Mr.
& Mr. Mukesh Gandhi. & Mrs. Shweta K. Gandhi.

E way ot

Loans from Banks

of Mr. Ksmlesh Gandhi & Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.
on



$A' RURAL HOUSING A MORTGAGE FINANCE UMITEO

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARC]I 2O2O

(Amount lnO

12.3 Detalb oftoms ofrcdsmdlon/rePayment and securlty provlded ln respect of debt a€curitles and borowings:

Particulan Aa at
3l March 2020

As at
3l March 2ol9 Tems of Rodemptlorv Repayment SBcurity

Tsm LoarXlX 6,7't,62,106 7,91,66.673 Repaymont in 24 Quarterly lnstalments ftm
31/03t2018.

The Tem loan shall be s*ured by first ranking and exclusive
charge on standard receivables of tho Company (identified loan
assels) sufficjent to provide one time smrity cover of the
outstanding amount of the tem loan on a continuous basis,
during th€ tonurs of tho tem loan. Personal Guaranls of Mr.
Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

Tm Loan-XX 3,64,1 1,084 6,66,66,672 Rapayment in 36 monthly lnstalmEnts frm
3ry0420,18.

The Term loan shall bo socured by nrst ranfingrenO erctusive
charg€ on standard rscoivables ot th€ Company (idontifiEd loar
sssets) sufficient to prcvide ona tim6 socurity @ver of lh€
outstanding amount of the tgm loen on a continmus basis,
during the tenure of lhe term loan. personal Guaranteo of Mr
Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.

T6rm LoarXXl 21,00,@,000 28,m,00,000 Ropaymont in I Quarterly Instalments trom
27112D019.

The T6rm loan shall bs srursd by fint ranrcngEnd €xclusiv€
charge on standard rec€ivsbles of the Company (identified loar
assets) sufricient to provid€ strurity @ver of the outslanding
amount of the tern loan on a continuous basis, during the tenur€
of the lerm loan. PeEonal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlosh Gandhi &
Mr. Mukosh Gandhi.

Tem Loarxxll 4a@,46,232 50,00,00,0@ Repayment in 18 Qu€rterly lnstahsnts frm
30/062019.

The Term toan shafl be securb- by-Et Enkift.il-ilffi
charge on standard reeivables of the Company (identifed loan
ass€ts) sufficionl to provide srcurily @ver o, lhe outstanding
amount of lhe tem toan on a @ntinuous basis, during the tsnure
of the tem loan. Personal Guarantoe of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi &
Mr. Mukosh Gandhi.

Tem L@n-XXlll 10,07,96.1 75 Repayment in 24 Ouartarly lnstatments from
31t'12t2020.

The Loan is secured by Exclusive cnarge Oy way o
hypolhectim on standard asets portfolio of reivabtes
(exc.luding stressed assets).personal Guarfltee of Mr. Kamlesl
Gandhi & Mr. Mukesh Gsndhi.

Term Loar)(XlV 15,10,50,0@ Repayment in 24 Quarlerly lnstalmgnts frm
30106,D021.

The Loan is secured by Exctusive dnEe fy way 01

hypothecation on standard assets plrtfolio of reeivables
(exduding strsssod assets).per$nal Guarantes of Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhi & Mr Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-XXV 1,87,50,000 Repayable in 24 Quarterty instatments from
28tV2r2U4.

Loan is secured oy nypottrecation ctrdrge-n poffiii6GEiE
fom the bank ,innce. Corporate Guarantes of 4e1S Financlal
Services Ltd. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi E Mr.
Mukesh Gandhi.

Term LoaG)C(Vl 4,45,@,449 Ropayment in I Quartedy lnstalments
starting from 07/1020'l 7

LGn is scured oy rirst@
Rec€ivables which are not more than 30 days
overdue. Psrsonal Guarantes of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr
Mukesh Gandhi.

1,87,59,16,900 2,30,39,69,447
Total Tem Loam from
Bankg

Loam frm OtheE

Tsrm Loan-XXVll 2,65,90,0@ 3,97,36,000 Ropayment in s9 euarterty- tniGimEnG
frcmO'llO7120'17

ol

Gandhi.
Person€l Guarantee of Mr Kamlesh Gandhi &

Tom Loan-Xxvllt 79,44,OO0 R€payment in 39 Quarterly lnstalment frm
o1n7DO17

First & Exclusive nyp@
@mpany. Personsl Guarantee of Mr. lGmlesh Gandhi & Mr
Mukesh Gandhi.

Term Loan-)(XlX 79,.1.1,000 Repaymont in 39 Quarterly lnstalment frm
01lo7Do17

Firet & Exclusivs Hypothecation of Specifrc ReceivaO-tes-6i'i6l
mmpany. Persoml Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi & Mr.
Mukesh Gandhi.

Tsrm Loan-nq 2,78,53,000 3,44,61,000 Ropaymonl in 39 Quartedy lnstatments
trofi 0111012017

First & Exctusive Hypothecation of=p€ciil R;GiiaEG; ;
company. Personal Guarantes of Mr. Kamtesh Gandhi & Mr.
Mukesh Ganrthi.

Term Loan-)(XXl 7,76,0@ Repayable in 27 Quarterly instalm€nts from
01to7Do13.

A lirst sxctustvo moigage ano o-ErrrsixctGiiE'iFEft6-5ffi!
of hypothffition of such of the b@k debts, which are finanGd i
to bs finan@d by the Company. Corporate Guarantee of EAF
Financial Seruices Ltd.

T6rm Loan-)Oo(ll 1,68,64,000 3,04,25,000 Repayment in 5'l Quartedy lnstalments
fton01n7l2014

A first oxclusive mortgage and or a fire4 exclnsive charge by way
of hypotheetion of such of the book debts, which are financed /
to be financ€d by the Company. Comorate cuarant€e of $3F
Financial Seruices Ltd,

T€m Loal}.xxxlll 2,84,55,000 Repayment in 60 Quarterty lnstatmenls
trcm01l'lol20'19

First & Exclusive ttypottrecation ot-peonc nEGii6GiiiT!
company. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi &,rJr.
Mukesh candhi.

Term Loan-)OCXIV 1,77,50,000 Repayment in 60 Ouarterly hstalments
ftom 0111012019

& ot

Gandhi.

personal Glaranto€ of Dlr. Kamlesh Gardhi &
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!IA' RURAL HOUSING & MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITEO

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2O2O

ln
't2'3 t)etalls oft€rms ot rodtmptlon/rePayment and securlty provided ln re3pGct of debt socudties and borrcwngs:

As at
3l Mrrch

A8 at
3l March 20to Tems of Rodempflolr/ Ropaymsnt Securlty

tn

01to712020 of Mr. KamlBsh Gandhi & Mr.
Mukesh candhi.

Porsonal

,27
from 30[092018

1'.|

by way of hypothecation cn the

rs

Gandhi.

of thg Borrcwer

of the
Mr.

tuolrj. 1il08r2017
m

loan availed.

slaning from 15101D018
tn

debts
loan availed.

is

8,61,'r

from 3CYlll2019

Personal GuarantoE of Mr. Kamlesh

LGn by charge
of the Borowor otby on thohypolhocatimway

r@ivables treated ftm the of the
ML

I proG€ds
Gandhi &

Tom Losns from
2s,19$0,444t 4,N,39,77O

Term Loans 2,16,79,09,/$4 2,54,60,09,217

on



s.A, RURAT HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LIMTTED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2O2O

(Amount in

Particulars As at
31 March 2020

As at
3l March 2019

47,93,889

11,50,577

56,42,720
44,98,145

1,85,25,000

0

36,61,s81

2,96,048

3,69,520

1,65,75,000

5,84,99,111

62

lnterest accrued but not due on borrowings
lnterest accrued but not due on others
Dues to the assignees towards collections from assigned receivables
Lease Liability as per lnd AS 116
Security Deposits from borrowers (Refer Note No. 1 below)
Amount Received under credit Linked subsidy scheme (Refer Note No. 2 below)
Advances received against loan agreements
Total other financial liabilities

Note 13. Other financial

,947

Note:
1. All the security deposits from borrowers as on 31 March 2020 & 31 March 2019 arefrom Corporate entities.

2' The Credit t-int<eo suosioy amount as on 31 March 20'19 represents the amount received from National Housing Bank atend of the previous year pending oedit to customer accounts based on their eligibility.

1

1

22 092

Note 14. Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Compensated Absences
Total Provisions

Note 15. Other non-financia! liabilities
Statutory remittances

Tota! other non-fi nancial liabilities
1



s.A"s RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE LTM|TED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2O2O

(Amount in ?)

Particulars As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Note 16. Equity Share Capltal
Authorized Shares:

2,40,00,000 Equity Shares of t10 eadl
(As at 31 March 2019:2,30,00,000 Equity Shares of (10 each)

1,10,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each
(As at 31 March 2019: 70,00,000 preference Shares of t10 each)

lssued, Subscrlbed and Fully Paid-Up Shares:
2,12,26,404 Equity Shares of ?10 each tulty paid up

(As at 31 Mardr 2019: 2,12,26,404 Equity Shares of (10 eaclr)

24,00,00,000

11,00,00,000

23,00,00,000

7,00,00,000

35,00,00,000 30,00,00,000

21,22,64,040 21,22,64,040

21.22.64.040 21.22_6t_O1,J

16.1 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars
As at 31 MarCh7020-

No. ofShares (Amount in Q No. ofShares (Amount in Q
Shares

Outstanding at the beginning of the period / year
lssued during the year
Converted from 8% Optionally Convertible preference Shares
during the year

at the end of the period /

2,12,26,404 21,22,64,040 1,80,34,920

23,40,423

8,51,061

18,03,49,200

2,34,04,230

85,10,610

2,12,26,404 21,22,il,040 2,12,26,4M

16.2 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than s% shares:

Class of shares / Name of shareholder Number of
shares held

% holding in
that class of

sharas

Number of
shares held

% holdlng in
that class of

shares
Equity Shares

SAjr Financial Services Limited (Hotding Co.)
Mukesh C. Gandhi
Kamlesh C. Gandhi

Shweta Kamlesh Gandhi

1,26,64,893

40,40,606

24,86,510

20,34,095

59.67o/o

19.04o/o

1'.! .710/o

9.58%

1,26,64,893

40,40,606

24,86,510

20,34,095

19.040h

11.7',\o/o

16.3 Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of t 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one voteper share. The Company declares and pays dividends in lndian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to
the approval ofthe shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

ln the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entifled to receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares freld by the shareholders.



frA' RURAL HOUSING A MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 TARCH 2O2O

(Amount ln O

PartlcularS As 8t
3l March 2020

As at
3l March 2019

a.

b.

c.

Note 17. Other Equlty
Equity component of compound ffnanclal lnstruments- Optlonally Convertiblo preferenco shares

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Less: Dividend on 870 OCPS
Less: Dividend DistriMioo Tax on 8% OCPS
Add: Equity component of 6% OCPS issued during the period (net of tax)
Less: Equity component of 8olo OCPS converted into Equity Share Capital
Outstanding at the end of the year

IPO Dlscount glven by Holdlng company
Outstranding at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

R6erve fund urs. 29-C ot NHB Act,t987:
Opening Balance

Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1 987

Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36(i)(viii) of lncome Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the
purposes of Stiatutory reserve u/s 29C of The NHB Act, 1 987
Total

Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year
Add:
a. Amount transfered u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

b. Amount of S@ial Reserve u/s 36(i)(viii) of lncome Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the
purposes of Statutory reserve u/s 29C of The NHB Act, 1987

Less:
a. Amount appropriated u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987
b. Amount withdrawn from Special Reserve L/s 36(ixviii) of lncome Tax Ac{, 1961 traken into

ac@unt for the purposes of Statutory reserve u/s 29C of The NHB Act, 1987

Closing Balance
a. Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1 987
b. Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36(ixviii) of lncome Tax Acl, 1961 taken into account for the

purposes of Statutory reserve u/s 29C of The NHB Act, 1 987
c. Total

Securities Premlum
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

Retained Eamings
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Profit for the year
Item of other comprehensive income recognis€d diredly in retained earnings

Remeasurement of the defined benefit liabllities
Transition impact of lnd AS '116 (Net of Tax)

Less :Appropriations:
Reserve u/s.2$C of NHB Act,1987 & Special Reserve U/s 36(1)(viii) of lncome Tax Act,1961
Dividend on Equity Shares
Dividend on Preference Shares
Dividend Distribution Tax on Equity Dividend
Dividend Distribution Tax on Preference Dividend
Total Approprlatlons

Retalned Eamings

Other Comprehenslve lncomo
Loans and Advances through other comprehensive lncome
lmpairment on loans and advances through OCI
lncome tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Other Comprehensive lncome for the Period, Net of Tax

Total Other Equlty

56,32,980
(31,82,466)

(6,s4,31s)
3,45,37,882

1,84,45,516

(1.28.12.536)

3,63,34,08't

6,79,905

56,32,980

6,79,905

6,79,905

3,O2,481

4,35,96,384
4,38,98,865

88,90,000

3,02,481

5.24.86.384

6,79,905

3,O2,481

3,33,26,384
3,36,28,865

1,02,70,000

3,02,481

4.35.96.384
s,27,88,865

12,12,35,U1

4,38,98,86s

31,5C,800
'11.80.85.041

12,12,35,U|

8,24,08,438
3,23,25,005

(3,09,861)
(3.58.633)

12,12,35,841

7,02,36,2U
2,65,19,2S1

3,12,127

11,10,64,949

88,90,000
10,61,320

2,18,208

9,70,67,652

1,02,70,000
4,32,838

32,00,000
93,949

6,62,427
t.0t,69.528 1.6.59.214

10.38.95.421 8.24.08.438

7,26,091
6,43,942

n.42.7571
11,87,276

3t -6t .2{ -3Ae 25 3n 56 0r9



sa' RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE L|M|TED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANOALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2O2O

in

17.1 Nature and purpose of reserye

1 Equity component ot compound financial instruments- Optionally Convertible preference shares

Equity component of compound financial instruments represents Equity component of optionalty convertibte preference shares (ocpS).on transition to IND As on 1 April, 2017 Rs. 1,84,45,516 was ctasiified as Equiry component \,vhile Rs. 2,4s,10,12o (inctuding accruedRs.29,56,236) was ctassified as Debt component.
Further, during the previous year all the ocPs were converted into 8,51,061 Equity Shares having face value of Rs. 1o each at a premium of Rs.per equity share.
During the current period further 60/o Optionally Convertible Preference Shares (ocPS) were issued having lace value of RS. 0,00 ,00,000. Outwhich Rs. 3,45,37 ,E82 was classified as Equity Component (net of tax RS. 6, 7 ,246) while Rs. 5,4'l ,23,,68s (induding accrued interest Rs.was classified AS Debt component.

2,78,81

2 IPO Discount glven by Holdlng company
guring the y@t 2017'18, pursuant to initial public offering (lPo) and offer For sale, the Holding Company 41AS Financial services Limitedallotted equity shares under 

-Ernployee 
Reservation category to the eligible employees of the company at a discount of Rs.45 per share on the ,price. The total discount Rs. 679,905 has been considered as an Equity lnvestment Ly the Hotding iompany.

3 Reeerve fund u/s.2$.C ot NHB Act, l9g7:
Special Reserve has been created rn terms of Section 36(1 (viiD of the income Tax Act, 96' out of the distributable prolits of the company. AsSection 29C of N HB Act, 1987 the company IS required to transfer at least 2Oo/o of its net profits prior to distribution of dividendreserve. For this purpose any Special Reserve created by the

every year to
company tn terms of Section 36(1) (viii) of the income Tax Act, 961 rs consideredeligible transfer

4 Securitles premium
securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes in ac@rdancethe provisions of section 52 the Companies Act, 2013.

5 Surplus in Statement of profit and Loss
Surplus in statement of Profit and Loss is the accumulated available profit for the company carried forward from earlier years. These reserve arereserves which can be utilised for any purpose as may be required.

6 FVOCI - Loans and Advances
The Company recognises changes tn the fair value of loans and advances in other comprehensive rn@me. These changesthe FVOC loans and advances reserve within equity. The Company

are accumulated

loans and advances
transfers amounts from this reserye to the statement of profit and loss when

are sold.

7 Remeasurement of the defined beneflt liabiliiles
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liabilities comprise actuarial gain or loss, return on plan assets excludihg interest and the effect ofceiling, if any.
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(Amount in (}

Particulars

Yearended 3l March 2020 Yearended 3t March 2019

On financial
asseta measurcd

at FVOCI

On financial
assets meagurcd
at amortised cost

Total
On financial

assets measurcd
at FVOCI

On financial
assets measurcd
at amortised cost

Total

Note {8. lnterest lncome
lnterest on Loans
lnterest on deposits with Banks
Other interest lncome
Total

4,50,331 36,51,90,988
1,17,39,533

36,56,41,319
'1,17,39,533

31,40,16,006
7s,25,O32

1,20,596

31,40,16,006
75,25,032

1,20,596
4.50.331 37,69,30,521 37,73,80.852 32,16,61,634 32,16,61,634
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flcA5 RURAL HOUSING & MORTGAGE FINANCE LTMITED

(Amount in t)
Particulars Year ended

3l March 2020
Year ended

31 March 2019

12,108
17,54,964

1,217

3,25,700
17,67,072 3,26,917

23,30,91,755
31,65,590
12,74,243
59,69,657

6,13,909

18,32,43,015

76,83,645
43,46,349

24,41,15,154 19,52,73,009

1,85,61,461

6,43,942
26,82,632

16,14,867

74,77,021
2,19,99,035

Note 19. Other lncome
Net gain(loss) on derecognition of property, plant and equipment
Gain on derecognition of leased asset
lncome from non-financing activity
Totat

Note 20. Finance Costs
(On Financial liabilities measured at Amortised Cost)

lnterest on borrOwings
lnterest on liability component of compound financial instruments
Other interest expense
Other borrowing cost
Lease liability interest obligation
Total

Note 21. Impairment on financial instruments

Loans measured at Amortised Cost
Loans measured at FVOCI
Loss Assets Written Off (Net of Recoveries)
Tota!

90,91,888
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2O2O

(Amount in Q

Particulars Year ended
3l March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

Note 22. Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuig expense
Staff welfare epenses
Total

Note 23. Depreciation and Arnortisation
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of Right-of-use Asset
Total

Note 24. Other Expenses
Rent (Refer Note No. 36)
Rates & Taxes
Stationery & Printing
Telephone
Electricity
Postage & Courier
lnsurance
Conveyance
Travelling
Repairs & Maintenance:

Others
Professional Fees
Director's Sitting Fees
Bank Charges
Advertisement Expenses
Sales Promotion Expenses
Recovery Gontract Charges
Miscellaneous Expenses

Tota!

5,55,16,673

33,91,311
5,04,201

10,09,332

4,55,29,104

18,92,980
5,04,127

10,73,963
6,04,21,517 4,90,00,174

21,62,363
73,272

31,18,901

30,79,170
87,183

53,54,536 31,66,353

32,01,729
4,44,282
7,08,819
9,45,293
6,15,927
1,70,806
1,98,268

21,78,958
15,16,008

6,42,831
81,53,141

2,83,400
3,23,009
7,79,420

16,U,442
15,58,653
12,84,902

63,16,303
8,79,424
6,94,982

11,07,408
6,05,499
1,58,397
2,75,795

25,44,377
11,36,275

8,89,756
68,87,443
2,75,000
2,59,613

9,38,287
16,046

13,02,564
8,96,366

2,46,09,999 2,51,U,135

Note: Payment to Statutory Auditors (including Taxes)
For Statutory Audit Fees
For Limited Review of Quarterly Results
For Other Services

1,36,250
27,250
74,448

1,25,000
76,500

2,48,550
2,37,948 4.50.050
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(Amount in Q

Particulars Year ended
3l March 2020

Year ended
3l March 2019

Note 25. Earnings Per Share
(A) Basic
Computation of Profit (Numerator)
Net Profit for the period
Less: Preference dividend including tax thereon
Net Profit for the year attributable to Equity Shareholders

Computation of Weighted Average Number of Shares (Ilenominator)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares of (10 each used for calculation of Basic
Earnings per Share
Basic Earnings per Share of face value of t10 each (in ()

(B) Diluted

Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholde/s as above
Computation of Weighted Average Number of Sharcs (Denominator)

Weighted average number of Equity Shares as above
Diluted Eamings per Share of face value of t10 each (in Q

3,23,25,005 2,65,19,291
(38.36.781)

3,23,25,005

Nos.

2,12,26,404
1.52

3,23,25,005
Noe.

2,12,26,404
1.52

2,26,82,510

Nos.

1,80,52,408
1.26

2,26,82,510
Noe.

1,80,52,408
1.26

Note:
Since the number of equity shares issuable on conversion of 6% Optionally Convertible Preference Shares is not determinable
at present, the weighted average number of equity shares for computing diluted earnings per share is not ascertainable. Under
the circumstances, its consequential effect on dilution of earnings per share has not been considered.
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NOTES FORiIIII.IG PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEiIENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2O2O

Sr. No. of Relatlonship
1 Holding Company
2 Key Management Personnel

Mr. Mukesh C. Gandhi (Whole time Director and Chief Financial Officer)
Mrs. Darshana S. Pandya (Director and Chief Operating Ofiicer)
Mr. Bala Bhaskaran (lndependent director)
Mr. Chetanbhai Shah (lndependent director)

Mr. Kamlesh C and Managing

Subir director)
3 Other related parties Mrs. Shweta K. Gandhi

Mr. Saumil D. Pandya

Particulars Holding
Company

'management
perconnel Partles

Other Total

Recovery Contract charges paid

Cross-charge for Directo/s Remuneration
Expenditure reimbursed to
Reimbursement of Collection Received on behalf of
lssue of 6%-OCPS
Dividend Paid

Expense

fees

2,40,000

24,00,000

56,25,271

29,03,233

10,00,00,000

6,33,245 3,26,366

2,60,OOO

1,01 ,710

2,40,000

24,00,000

56,25,271

29,03,233

10,00,00,000

10,61,320

2,60,000

31 March
Particulars

Company
Key management

pensonnel
Other Related

Parties
Total

Recovery Contract charges paid

Expenditure reimbursed to
Reimbursement of Collection Received on behalf of
Remuneration (lncluding Bonus)
Dividend Paid

Expense

fees

13,34,667

2,40,000

32,59,110

53,30,756

2,58,000
2,40,000

25,31,121

2,75,000

34,000

8,43,715

2,40,000

32,59,1 1 0

53,30,756

2,74,000

36,32,936

75,000

26 Additlonal lntormatlon to the Financial Statements:

A Expenditure in Foreign Cunency - Nil

B. Eaming in Foreign Cunency - Nil

C, Disclosure as required in terms of Paragraph 5 of National Housing Bank Circular No. NHB/ND/DRS/po|-No. 35/201
c,ated October 11,2010 and notification no. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated February Og,ZO17 are given in
No. 44 forming part of these Financial Stalements.

27 Segment Reportlng:

The company is engaged primarily in the business of financing ancl all its operations are in lndia only. Accordingly, there is
separate reportable segment as per lnd AS 108 on ,Operating Segments'.

28 Related Party Disclosures:
(a) Related party disclosures as required by lndian Accounting Standard 24, "Related party Disclosures,,.

Llst of related parties and relationships:

Transactions with related parties are as follows:

0-1 1
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Partlculars Holding
Company

Key management
personnel

Other Related
Parties

Total

Company

1g,7g,gg5

{0,00,00,00010,00,00,000

4,68,93,821

Other Related
Partles

Key management
personnol

Loans and Advances given
6% OCPS
Guarantees outstanding

Particularc

Loans and Advances given

Guarantees outstanding 13,29,57,001

21,91,756 21,91,756

13,29,57,001

Year ended
3l March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

long term employrnent benefits

PartlcularB

Partlculars As at As at

lnterest due thereon as at year end
lnterest amount for delayed payments to suppliers pursuant to provisions of MSMED
actually paid dudng the year, inespective of the year to which the interest relates

of delayed payment adually made to suppliers during the year

accrued and remaining unpaid al the end of the year

amount of dueinterest and thefor of lnpayable period delay paymentmaking
been but thepaid beyond the butappointed day without theduring year) adding

MSMEDunder 2006Act,

amountThe furtherof interest due and even thetnremaining payable untilyears,succeeding
datesuch thewhen duesinterest as above are to the small foractually paid enterprises

of disallowance aas deductiblepurpose theunder EDMSMexpenditure 2006.Act,

amount payable to as at year€nd

Balances outstanding from rclated paftles aro as follows:

All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm's length basis.

Key managerial personnel who are under the employment of the Company are entitled to post employment benerits and other
term employee benefits recognised AS per lnd AS 9 Employee Benefits tn the financial statements. As these employee benefits
are lump sum amounts provided on the basis 0f actuarial valuation, the same IS not included above.

Tranaactlons with key managemont peltonnel are a8 follows:

The remuneration of key management personnel are determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance
individuals and market trends.

29 Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED Act) which came into force from October
2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to mrcro, small and medium enlerprises. There have been no
cases of delays tn payments to micro and small enterprises or of interest payments due to delays tn such payments. The
as required by section 22 of M SM ED Act has been given below

During the quarter ended 30 September 20'l9, the Company had raised T 10 Crores from s"q5 Financial Services Limited,
Holding Company, by issuing 60h OCPS of face value of 0 each with non-cumulative dividend right. The preference shares
optionally convertible into equity shares at price to be determined at the time of conversion. The conversion redemption option
to be exercised for 33. 33% of ocPs tn the 5th year for 33.33yo of OCPS tn the 6th yeat and for remaining 33.Uo/o of OCPS tn
7th year from the date

30

value of t 10 each.
of issue. tf the option of conversion ts not exercised then the preference shares shall be redeeme{ at the
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3t The Board of direc{ors recommended dividend of ( 0.04&- per equity share of face value of <10 each, which is subject to approval by
shareholders of the Company. Dividend on the above mentioned 6% OCPS from the date of its issue is atso proposed in thi
meeting. The amounts of dividend and dividend distribution tax are as follows:

Partlculars Dlvldend
Proposed

Divldend
Dlstrlbutlon Taxr

Total

Equity Shares 10,18,867 NIL 10,18,867

6% OCPS 33,11,475 NIL 33,11,475

. The Finance Act 2020 has repealed the Dividend Distribution Tax (DDT). Companies are now required to pay / distribute dividend
aner deducting applicable taxes.

32 Details of Total Assets Under Management (AUM) (inclu<ting assigned assets) and Total Non-performing Assets (NpA) are as
follows:

Partlculatr As at 3't.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
28,6il.48

97.79

67.12

0.34o/o

0.23o/o

27,023.62

97.16
70.37

0.36%

0.26%

33 Total amount of assigned assets outstanding as per books of the company (excluding accrued interest) as on 31st March 2020 is Rs.
2668.53 Lakh. Dues to assignees towards collections from assigned recei;ables as on 31st March, 2019 is Rs. 56.43 Lakh.

34 Balances of trade payables and loans and advances are subject to confirmation. Adjustments, if any required, will be made on
setllement of the account of the parties.

35 The company has sanctioned but undisbursed amount of loans amounting to Rs 59g.g4 Lakh as on the date of balance sheet which
are lo be disbufsed during the normal course of business.

ln

tn
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RURAL HOUSING & MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED

36 by the Company
The Company h€s appliEd th6 standards and amendments ror the fi6t tims ftr annual reporting period commencing from 1 April 2ol9

38,1 lndAS 116 Lea3e8

Nsture of the sff6t of sdoption of lnd AS 16
The Company has lease contracls for office branch prmises. Before th6 adoption of lnd AS 6, ths Compsny classified sach of its leases (as lsssea) at the inceptioneither ,inance lsase or an operatirE leass. A

the Company othEMiso it was
lease classified financa leas€

dats
was as a fr it transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership ofleased asset to classified as an opeEtirE lease. Finance leases wero c€pitalised at the @mmencement of lhe leas tfE in@ptionvalE of th6 l€as€d prop6rty or, low€r, at th6 prasert value of the minimun lease

date at

and redEtion of tfl6 base liability.
payments. Lease payrnonts were apportioned b€tween intsrest (recognised as fimnce

ln an operatirE leas€, the leased Properly was not BPitalisad ard the lease payments wers re@gnised as rent expense in profil or loss on a straight-line basis over thetorm. Any prepaid rer[ and accrEd rert were recognised under Prepayments and Trade and other f,ayabtes, respeaivety.

Upon sdoPtbn of lnd AS 1 16, th€ Comparry spPlied e single rEcognition and measurEment approach for all leas€s, 6xcgil for short-term leases 8m bass of low-value assets.The standard Prwides specitic transition requirements an<l pectical oxp€dients, whicn nas oeei afpriJly ii'" corp"ny.
Le.s€s previously eccounted for as opcrating leassg
The Company rEcognised right-d-use aSsets and leasB liabilities for thos€ leases pIoviously classified as opsratirE 16ases, exceil for short-termassels. some l6as€s, ttlE right-of-uso assgts recognised based

leases ard lsases ofwer€ on th€ amqJnt equal th6 bas€ liabilities, adjusted for arry rehted pr€paid end a€ru€d loasepreviqlsly recognised. Leas6 liatilities wor€ recognised based on lhs present valu€ of th6 rsmaining leas payments, discoJnted using the incrsmental borowing rateof initial spplication. at

The opeEting le€se @mmitments as of 31 March 2019 remnciled with l€s6 liabiliti€s as at 1 April 2O1 g as follows:

The Company also applied tha avaitable practi€l expedimts wherain it:
- used a singls discornt rats to a portfolio of leases with rssonaHy similar characteristics
- Applied trhs short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term ttrat ends wittrin ii monttrs ar tne dato of initial appti€tion

The etfacf of adoptiin lnd AS 116 as at 1 Aprit 2019 (inssase/(dsccase)) is as follws:

Summry of new accountng policies
Set out b€low are the nelv accohtirE policies of the Company upon adoption of lrd AS ,l ,l 6:

Rightd{sassts
T?re Company re@gniss right-of-usa as6ts Et Ble commeremenl dato of the lease (i.e., the date ths undErlying asset rs available for use). Right€f-usemst, bss arry accumulated depreciation ard impairmsnt losses, and adjustad lot

assels are measured

lease liabilitiss
afiy rsmeasuroment of leaso liabilities. The cost of rightd-uso assets includes the amountrecognis€d, initial dired costs incuned, and lease payments mad€ at or before lhe commsrEement date less arry leas6 incsntiYes received. Unlsss lhe Companyroasonably ceriain to obtain ol^mership of th€ l6ased asset at the end of the lsase t6rm, the recognised right-of-use assets ar€ depreciat6d stralght-line basisof its sstimatsd 6oful life and the basa tem. Right-of-use

on over tlle
assgts are subjrct to impairmant.

> Loase liabllities
At tha commsncement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilitiss measured the pr€sent value of leasspaymBnts include fxed paymsrts (includhg h-substance fixed

payments b6 made over the lease term. The
payments) less arry leas€ incentives recaivable, variable loas€ payments that dspend on an index or a rate,amounts expected to b6 paid urder rosidual value guarantees. The leass payments also includs the exetcisa pri:o of pLrchase option reasonablyCompeny and paymsrts

lndex or a
of penalties for terminating leas€, the lease

certain to be exercised bya tem reflecis ho Company exercising ttl€ option to tarminate. Tho variable lease p€yments that dodop€nd on an rate ere r€cogni!€d as expengo m the period on whbh the evont or condition th€t triggers the payment o@ufs.

ln c€lculatirE tho pressrt value of lease payments, the Gompany usas ths irsemefltal bonwing rate al th€ leas commerEemont dato the interest implicitnot readily determimble. After thB mmercmenl dats, th€ amount of leas€ liabilities ts increased
rate n the lease

addition,
to refloct the acqetion of interest and reduced for the lease payments mads.the srying amount ol lea* liabiliti6 is remEasued t therE ts modifEtion, chsnge

tn

77,52;65

avsragB incremsntal bonowirE rats as at 1 April 2Ol g

operating lsasa commitmsnts at 1 April2O19

2019

Leas liabilities aE at 1

as

2019

tn

72,73,401

1,20,631

77,52,ffi

Total

Equity

Total

Righl of us€ asssts
Defensd Tax Asset (Net)

m the ass€ssment to pJrchase th€ mderlying asset.
a a n the leas term, a change m the in-substare fixed leas€ payments or a

at
fr

if

Liabilities - Lease Liabilities
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Short term loasos and los!93 of lil.value asssts
Tha Company appliEs ths shorl-tom lease rocognition axemption to its shon-lerm leas€s 'prop€rty,

the leass
plant and s$ripment (i.e., thos€ l€as6s that havo lsase tgrm of 12

of loss from tho coanmoncamerit dats and (b not contah a puchas€ op(ion). Ir also appli6s of lo&vahJo assets rocognition sxsmptbn to l€ass of ofiica equipment
ar€ consirerod d lor valr€. Loas€ paymsnts short-lerm lsas€s and leases d lor-value ass6t3 aro recognised as expense m a slraightlins basis over lhe leaso term.

detominirB &le l€ase tsrm and assesing the lensth of tl€ norcarrcolleblo period of a leas€, the Company applies lhe dofinitim of cornract end delermines Ulg period
whi:tr OE cortract B orforcoablo. A lsaBo ts no longBr enforeablo when th€ lssffi ard ths lEssor 6eh hes the right to terminate lhe loes€ without p€missim from tha
party wilh no mso thsn an insignificant penslty.

Slgnlf,cant judgemont ln dstarmining tho ld3€ tcrm of contracb wlth ronilal optiong
TtE Compeny determirFs lhe loaso torm as the non{ancellabb tem of the leas, togothgr with arry periods covered by an odion to enend the l6a$ if it is reasombly cslain
bs exarcis€d, tr any Perbds cover€d by an optim to temimte th€ lsass, il il is r€mHy €rtsin not to b€ exercisod.

ADount! rocognbod ln the Balanco shsot rnd atatemnt of profit and lca:
SBt out bBlil, arE th€ c8rrying ffidnts of tle Companys right{f{s6 assstE ed lease liabilities and the movemcnts during the y€r

Patdculars
Right to U3o of

Assot3 Lease Liabilitieg
Bulldlngc

Rocognition on hilial applicatim of lnd As 1 t6 as at I Ap;il 2019
Deprsciatim ard Amortbetion Expsns€s
lntorest Exponsss

( Deduc{ionsyadjustment
Paymonts

72,73,41
(31,18,901 )

(2,33,123)

77,52,65

6,13,909
(2,45,231)

(36,23,1 99)

AB at 31 ilarch mm 39.21.37f &s8,14

Sot out below, aru tho amounb reognl!€d ln strtffint of profit or loar:

37 Offsotting

at 3l March 2020 and 31 March 2019. TIE column 'net amilnt sfpws the impact of Cmpanys balanc sheet if ;ll t€ ;t-off rights were Exercisad.

on Not
she.t

amount3 amount
8ot in balance

shsst
(Refer Not I

bolow)

prosonted in
balanco sheet

rocolvod against
loan tgroomont3

(Rotur Note t
bolow)

lnatrumsnt
collatoral

(Refer Note 2
b€low)

llarch 2020
and dvancos 2,55,17,73.U7 7'1,70,0@ 2,il,6,O3,U7 26,90,510 1,85,25,@0 2,52,33,W,137

ttlarch 2019

and advmces
1

Nots:

1. ?71,70,0m(3lMarch20l9: (95,76,600)advancosrecsivedagainstloanagreementsisoffsetagsinstlq3nsandadvan@s.

2. ? .|,85,25,000 (31 March 2019: I 1,65,75,000) s€crrity doposits receivad from boro,rcrs is rpt offset against toans and advances.

Ysar end6d
31 March 2020

(12,

31,18,901

6,13,909
32,01,729

68,24,928

oxponso - short-tom bes€s and leasos of lo\x valu€ assets
on dergcogrition of leas€d asst

Total amounts rocognEod in prcfit or

expense

Total amount thlt would haye boon tn or loas

in lnd AS 110

oxpenso on leas€ lhbilitigs

exp€rEe of right€f{se asets

h

not
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3, march 2020 31 March 2019Partlculatt
Withln 12 Aftor 12 months Total Wtthln 12 After 12 months Total

21,07,45,086
2,O5,087

47,38,48,409

1,72,31,475

22,98,831

83,28,225

1,84,611

2,07,07,55,238

84,35,958

71,815
16,22,546

21,07,45,086

2,05,087
2,54,46,03,647

1,72,31 ,475

84,35,958

71,815
39,21,377

83,28,225

't,u,611
69,40,936

41,22,89,043
1,92,533

57,29,43,536
1,66,47,054

9,80,108

2,06,84,61,713

98,74,207

1,04,905

39,40,666

41,22,89.043

1,92,533

2,64,14,05,249
1,66,47,054

69,40,936
98,71,207

1,04,905

49,20,77;

71,28,41.721 2,08,08,85,557 2,79,3?,27,281 r,0089.93.210 2,08,23,81,491 3,09,23.74.701

s9,70,400

63,74,29,084

2,09,46,817

1,$,762

22,47,686

't,57,74,29,U8

1,63,54,024

48,07,431

59,70,400

2,2't,48,58,732

3,73,00,841

1,56,762

48,07,431

22,47,66

46,71,641

72,92,80,260

7,U,63,474

12,98,092

94,380
1,34,933

1,80,51,30,379

1,51,81 ,473

46,71,U1

2,53,44,10,639

8,56,44,947

12,98,092

94,380
1,34,933

66,67,$.740 1,59,E5,91,103 2,26,53,41,852 80,59,.12,780 1,82,03,11,852 2,62,62,U,632

lAssETs
lFlnanclal assats
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank Balance other than ebow
Loans

Non.Flnanclal A3ret3
Curent lax ess€ts (NB{)

Defoned tax Asscts (Net)
Propedy, Plant and Equipment
Cepilal woil-in-progre3s
other lntangible a$€ts

)ther non-financial assots

LIABlLITIES
Fln.ncial Llabllltle!
Trade Pay?bles

Total outstanding duca d soditors other
lhan micro enterpris€ end small

Bonoruings (Oth€r than Debt Securities)
Other fi nancial liatilities

Non.Flnancial LlabillU03
Cunent tax liabilities (Net)

Provisions

Oefened tax liabilities (Net)

Other non-fi nanciel liebilities

Total Assets

Other Financial essets

Assel

Tot lUatitity

Net 460,90,075 4,22,51,M 52,E3,85,429 20,0,&,131 26,20,69,639 40,61,20,069

38 Matrity analysb of mset and llabllitles

The table below shoua an analysis of asaets and liatilities analysed according lo when they ar6 exp€ctod to be recovered or setlled.

ln
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2O2O

39 Employee benefit plan

Disclosure in respect of employee beneftts under lnd AS 19 - Employee Benefit are as under:

(a) Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under wtrich the company pays fixed contributions; there is no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions. The Company's contribution to Provident Fund aggregating lo< 27,73,946 (31 March 2019: {
13,22,816) and Employee State lnsurance Scheme aggregating to ? 3,01,'154 (3't March 2019: T 3,58,236) has been recognised in the
Statement of Proft or Loss und6r the head Employee Benefits Expense.

(b) Defined Benefit Plans:

Gratuity

The Company operates a defined benefit plan (the Gratuity plan) covering etigible employees. The gratuity plan is govemed by the
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level
of benefits provided depends on the membe/s length of service and salary at retirement age.

The defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks such as Actuarial risk, lnveslment risk, Liquidity risk, Market risk,
Legislative risk. These are discussed as follovrls:

Actuarial Risk: lt is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:

Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into an increase in
Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

Variability in mortality rates: lf actual mortality rates are higher than assumed morlality rate assumption than the Gratuity Bengfits will be
paid earlier than expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of c6sh flow will lead to an
actuarial lo$ or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and discount rate.

Variability in withdravral rates: lf actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity Benefits
will be paid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date.

tnvestment Risk: For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be
the fair valuo of instruments backing the liability. ln such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount
rate. This c€n result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during
the inter-valuation period.

Liquidity Risk: Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. lf
some of such employees resign/relire from the company there can be strain on the c€sh flou6.

Market Riek: Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One
actuarial assumption that has a material €ffect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in
discount rate leads to decrease in defined benefit obligation of th€ plan benefits and vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields
on the corporat€/govemment bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. ]

Legislative Risk: Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in thel
legislation/regulation. The govemment may amend the Paymont of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefts tol
the employees. This will direc{ly afiect the present value of the defined benefit ooligation and the same will have to be recognizedl
immediately in th6 year when any such amendment is effective. 

I
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2O2O

The status of gratuity plan as required under lnd AS-1 9 is as under:

nt in

Particulars As at
31 March 2020

As at
3l March 2019

i. Reconciliation of opening and ctosing Balances of defined benefit obligation

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the beginning of the year
Cunent Seruice Cost
Past service Cost
lnterest Cost
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:

Change in demographic assumptions
Change in financial assumptions
Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions)

Present valu6 of defined benefit obligations at the end of the year

ii. Reconciliatlon of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
lnteresl lncome

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income
Contributions by employer

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

iii' Reconciliation of the present value of defined benelit obligation and fair
value of plan assets
Present valuc,of defined benefit obligations at the end of the year
Fair value of plAn assets at the end of the year
Net asset / recognized in balance sheet as at the end of the year

(14,968)

4,54,719
(82.726\

11,22,959

5,54,797

84,927

17,419
(3,92,46s)

E,63,151

5,68,713

66,1 41

21,19,708 11,22,959

1 5,1 1 ,304
1,35,523
(s7,062)

6,58,421

14,1 7,568
1,30,727

(67,088)

30,097
22,48,186 't5,11,304

21,19,708

22,48,186
11,22,959

15, 1 1 ,304
1,28,478 3,88,345

iv. Composition of plan assets
100% of plan assets are edministered by LIC of lndia.

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

5,54,797
(50,s96)

5,68,713
(64,586)

5,04,20'l 5,O4,127

4,54,719
(14,968)

(82,726)

57,062

17,419

(3,92,465)

67,088
4,14,O87 (3,07,9s8)
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Particulars As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

vli. Principal actuarial assumptions
Discount Rat6 (p€r annum)
Rate of Retum on Plan Assets (p.a.)

Annual lncrease in Salary Cost
Wthdrau/Bl Rates

6.85%

6.85%

8.00%
5o/o p.a. al

younger ages
reducing to 2%

p.a. at older
ages

7.600/o

7.600/o

7.OOo/o

3% at younger
ages reducing
to 1olo at older

ages

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Gov€rnment of lndia's bond as at the balance sheet date for the
term of the obligations.

vlii, Somitivity Analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determ ination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase
mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring
the end of the reporting p6riod, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis IS given below

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

21,1 708 11

Year Year ended
31 March 201931 March 2020

Decrease Decrease
Discount + 141 19,70,049 1 1

to base due to 7.85o/o -7.Q6lo 8. -7

Growth Rate /+0. 19,' 109 367 10,41,024 1

(oh to base to -6. 6.87o/o -7 E.

x 90% / W.R. x 11 21 831 11 11
(o/o compared to base due to sensitivity) 1.01 -O.98o/o 0.1 -0.1

ix. Asset Llabllity Matching Strategieg

The Company contributes to the insurance fund based on estimated liability of next financial year end. The projected liability
is obtained from the actuarial valuer.

x. Effect of Plan on Entity's Future Cash Flor,s

a) Funding arrangoments and Funding Policy
The Company has purchased 8n rnsurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employees. Every yeat, the
Company canies out tunding valuation based on the latest em ployee data provided by the Company. Any deficit in the assets
as a result of such valuation is funded by the Company.

b) Maturity Proflle of Defined Benefit Obligation
The Average outstanding Term of the obligations (years) as at valuation date is 14.40 years.

Cash flows Distribution (%)

'lst Follo\,\,ing Year
2nd Following year
3rd FolloMng Year

32,875

1,60,371

57,2U
1,91,631

77,709

0.50%

2.20o/o

0.800/0

2.600/o

1.1Oo/o

5.70o/o

Follo^,ing Year

Follorving Year
of years 6 to l0

1

The future accrual is not considered in arriving at the above cash-flo\,s.

The EQected contribution for the next year is ? 9,01,769

(c) Other long term emptoyoe benefits
The actuarial liability for compdnsated abscncos as at the year ended 31 March 2OZO and 31 March 2019 is { 1,56,762 and < 1,34,
respectively.

tA

r
L
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NOTES FORi'ING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEiIENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDEO 31 MARCH 2O2O

(Amount in ?)

rO Flnancial tnstrument and Fair Value i,le$urement

A. Accounung cl8lslf,cauorl3 and falr value3

The carrying amount and fair value of financial inslruments including their lewls in the fair value hierarchy presented below:

emount
As rt 3l lrarch 2020

Amortised coat F\'TOCI
Falr value

21,07,45,086

2,05,087

2,37,86,34,132

12,41,148

1,57,66,253

2,24,074

16,59,69,515

Lovel I Level 2 Levol 3

2,56,74,04,6ss

1 1,81,486

Total

2,56,74,04,655

11,81,486

2,60,88,15,780 r6,59.69.515 2,55,85.86.141 2,66,85,86,14r

59,70,400

2,21,48,58,732

3.73,00,841
2,21,48,58.732 2,21,48,58,732

2,25.81.20.973

Flnanclal a3s.ts
Cash and cash equi\ralents

Bank Balance other than cesh and cash
equivalents

Loans

Secudty deposits
lnler€st Accrued on Loens and Advances
Other finencial Ass€ts

Trade Peyables

Borroilings (Other lhen Debt Securities)
Other linancial liatilities

2,21,4,8,732 2,21,8,8,732

amount
Amo[ised cost FVT@I

Falr value

41,22,89,U3
1,92,533

2,U,14,05,249
1 1,90,500

1,54,56,554

Lovel I Level 2 Levol 3

10,98,716

Total

10,98,716

3,07,05,33,879 10.98.716 10.98,716

46,71,U1

2,53,44,10,639

8,56,44,947
2,53,44,10,639 2,53,44,10,639

Financlal ass€ils

Cash and cash 6quivalents
Bank Balance other than cash and cash
equivalents

Lo€ns

Security deposits
lnterest Accrued on Loans and Advances

Financlal llabilides
Trade Payables

Bonowings (other than Debt Securities)
Olher fi nancial liatililies

2,82,17,27,221 2,53.44.10.639

The Company hss not disclosed the fair values for cash and cash equivalenls, bank balanc.6s, interest accrued but not due on loans and advances and bank
deposits, trede Payables and other tinarrcial liabilities as theso are short term in nature and their carrying amounts are a reasoneble approxjmgtion ot fail
value.

Reconcilleuon of leval 3 falr yalue mea3utsment la as follory3:

Year endod
31 lrarch 2Om

Year snded
31 March 2019

lf Loans

Balance et the beginning of the year

Additlon during the year

Gain included in OCI

- Net change in fair value (unredised)

AmoultEerecognised / repaid durinE lh6 year

20,46,15,992

7,26,091
(3.93.72.568)

Bllanco et tho end of the year 16.59.89.515

Sensitivlty analysis

not tax

lncrease Decrease

lnterest rates (1% movement)

lnteresl rates (17o movement)

31 llarch 2020

Loans

3l March 2019

Loans

(48,04,827) 63,14,430
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(Amount in Q

B. Measurementoffairvaluos

i) Valuation techniques and significant unobservable lnputs

The carrying amounts of linancial assets and liabilities which are at amortised cost are considered to be the same as their fair values as there is no
differences in the carrying values presented.

iil Financial instrumenE - fair value

The fair value of financial instruments as refered to in note (A) above have been classified into three
technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted price3 in active markets for identical
priority to unobservable inputs (Lev6l 3 measurement).

The categories used are as follorrs:

Level 1: Level t hierarchy includes tinancial instruments measured using quoted prices;

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments thal ere not traded in active ma*et is determined

categories depending on the inputs used in the
asseta or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and

using valualion technique which maximizes the us6
obseNable market data and rely as little a3 possible on entity specitic estimates. lf all significant inputs required to fair value on instrument are obseNable,
instrument ts induded tn level 2i and

Level 3: lf one or more of significant input is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

iii) Transfers botween levols I and ll

There has b€en no transfer in between level I anC level ll.

iv) Valuation techniques

Loans

The Company has computed fair value of the loans and advances through OCI considering ils business model. These have been lai valued using the base
the interest rate of loan disbursod in the last seven days of the year end which ls an unobservable input and therefore these has been considered to be
valued using level 3 inputs.

Securlty doposits

The Company has fair valued the security dop()sit using normal market rate of interest as on relevant date using cash flow method approach.

B. Capital

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent tn the business and ts meeting the capital adequacy requirements of
HFC regulator Reserve Bank of lndia (RBt) and supervisor National Housing Bank (NHB). The adequacy of the Companfs capital rs monitored using,
other measutes, the regulations issued by RBI and NHB.

Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported period. Equity share capital and other equity are
for the purpose of Companys capital management.

t Capital Managsment

The Primary obiec{ives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital
and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy cepital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes ln economtc conditions and the risk characleristics d
aclivities. ln order to maintain or adjust lhe capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, retum capital
shareholders or tssue cepital securities. No changes have been made to the objeclives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they
under constant revtett/ by lhe Board.

2 Regulatory capital

Particulsrs 2020 2019

Tier 2 Capital
Total Capital

Risk weighted assets
Tier 1 Capital Ratio (%)
Total

47,17,30.030
11.76.10.577

44,76,96,499
1,16,79,550

58,93,40,607 .15.93,76,049

32.57
40.69

27.68
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4l Flmnchl dtk managsmoril oblectlva! lnd policles

operalions and to suppod ltr oporatims. Tho Comparry's fimncjal assEts indudo lm and advan@s, cash and c€sh equivalsnB uEt derivg direcily fm its operations.

Tha ComPany is eposed to ffilit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Cmpany's board of directors has oveElt r$ponsibility for th€ sstablishmont and oveEirht of lh€
Cmpily'8 risk managoment frmewotk. The b€d of diEc-toB has established tha risk mamgemsnt committes, which is roaponsiblo for developing and moniioring lhe
Cmpany'8 dsk mamgdnent Policios. The committee reporls regularly to tha board o, diroctors on its activitias.

adh6renca to limits. Ri6k management polidss and systms aro roviemd regulady to relled changes in mart<et omoitions ind the CompErry,s activities.

The Cmpany'6 ardit coanmitteo oversees hil msnagement monitoB complianco with the Company's risk mamgement policios and procadures, and reviews ths adeqmcy of lhe
risk managemont famEwod( in reletion to thE risks facad by lho company. The audit committeE ia sssisted in its oversight rcle by intemal audil. lntomal audit undertskos both
regulsr snd ad hoc roviils of risk maneg€ment controls and procadures, lhe results o, which are rBporl€d to th€ audit @mmlttee.

41.1 credlt Rlrk

Company's receivables trorn ostomErs and loans.

The carrying am@nts of tinancial assets rspresent ths maximum credit risk exposure.

Lo8,ns and aoitanc€,s

Ths Company'E exposrc to credit risk is lnflusnced mainly by the individuai characteristis of sach customsr. However, managemenl also considers th€ ,acto6 that may infuenc€
thg mdit rlsk of its cualomor bas€, induding the d€fault risk associated wlth tho industry.

Tha risk mamgdnent committee has establish€d a crsdit policy under which each nil customer is analysed individually for creditworlhin€ss bdors the Company's st ndard
Payment and ddivery tgms and condruons are oford. The cmpEny's r€vii includes ext€rnal Etings, it th€y are available, fnancial stat€monts, credit sg€ncy intonnation,
indBtry intormatim end in some €s€a bank rsftr€ncss.

The Company's exposura to s6dit risk for losns and advancas by typ€ of count€rparty rs as follws:

Pardculrlt
3'l Merch 20m 9l tl.rch 2019

Retail qJslo,nor

HFC Loans

Financa

1,9'l,75,70,513

30,00,04,207

35,80,83,535

1,67,74,87,5U

33,56,87,835

64.07.23.029
2.57.56.58.255

An impairmant analyris is p€rlom€d at 6edr reporling deto besed on tle tacts and droJmstancas exisling on that
monoy and crodt dsk For the puposos of thig analysis, lho loan roc€ivabl€s aE c€togdsed into gDups basod m
using he Expscted cr8dil Loss (EcL) modst es per tho provisions of tnd As 'tog - Financiat instruments.

Staglng:

As Psr th€ Provision of lnd AS 109 general eppfoach all financial instfumerils are allocatod to stags 'l on iniliat rocognition. Hwovsr, il a significant inqaase in credt I

impaicd and transfBnod to stage 3.

As por lnd AS 109, Compony 8ss€ss€s whehcr thero is a signifi€nt incrBase in qedit risk 8t the reporling dato from lhe inltial recognition. Company has staged the ass€ts
on the days past (tu€s crit3ria and oth€r mailet factors sfiich signmcanily impects th6 po.tfotio.

Tho Company considsB a fnancial instrumont defaulted and thereforo Stago 3 (credit-impair€d) for ECL calculations in all cas6s when th€ borrower be@mes 90 days past duo
its contracfu el payments.

For financial assets in stagg l, u|e impairmont calcrilat€d based m dofaults that are possible in next twelve months, whoreas for financiat instrumont in stag6 2 6nd stage 3 lhe
cdoiation consk ers defait gvent ftr the llbspan of the instrument.

Grouplng:

f P"j lS 19 log,-Company is rsquir€d to group the porttolio basod on sle shared risk charactsristics. Company has assessd ths risk and its impsd on th€ various portfotios
has dividod the portfolio into folloring goups:

a. Retail Loan
b. Posct Financ€
c. Loens to other HFCS roa orMard lending

loss pro/ided br across lh€ stage is summsrlsed b€lo\M

lttt dr[3 strhl. St g. ProYlaloB

Deys

€0 Oays

Days

Stage I
Stags 1

Stage 2

Stags 2

Stase 3

12 Months provision

12 Months provision

Lifetims pmvision

Lifetime provisim

Lifetime provigm

ilarch 20192020dug

date to idontify exp€dod losses on account of time valu€
days pest dus. Eacfi group is then asssss€d for

nsk

Stago I

Stags ll

Stag€ lll

Amount of expoclgd cr€dlt loss provldsd tol

0.30%

20.86%

33.08%

3,'t6,9E,650

5.87%

27.57%

Th€ loss rates ars bas€d on edBl ssdit loss o(periEnc€ over past yosrs. Tha$ loss ratos ar6 then a jusled appropriately to refltrt diffor€n@s between @rmt ard hisrdicaemomic conditims ed the Cmpany's view of econornic conditions over tha expected lives of u|e lmn receivaues.

A
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4't.2 Llquldlty Rlsk

ensure OEt it will have stYrcient fiJ.ds to me€t its lhtilitio3 whsn d6.

The comPany monitors ils risk of I shortag€ of funds by estimating th€ firtur€ cash nNg Tt|e company's obislive is to meintrain a balanca b€twetr mtinuity of tunding
nettility tlro(€h tho c€ d cash ordit facilitiEs and bsnk loans. The Cornpalry has €ccoss to a sulllcient variety of sources ot funding.

Tho composition of th€ Cmpanys liatility mix ensurss hoalthy ast liability maturity pattem End w€[ diveEe r€souroe mix.

caPilal ad€quacy ratio of the co.nPany, a3 on 3'l March 2@o is 40.69% against rsguletory norms of 12%. Tter I capital is 32.57%. Tier il capital is 8.12% which may increase
timo to timo d€pending on the Eqjrflient and also as a sMca of structud liquidity to strenglh€n assot liability matwity pattem

ExposuB lo lkNW tisk

The table bdw summariss th€ maturity proflo of Ihs Compeny's non d€rivativs tinanciel liabilities based on contractual undiscounted paymsnts along with its carring valu€ as
Balancs Shet dato.

lmpict a8s63mont on account o, COVID.'|9

cundttThe -19covro economic thesl ts todifficultimpad growth country End extentthe of will th6on futurepredict n6gative impect d6p€ndmainly d6velopments
ofcontainm6nt $,hictr ls uncortain.covrDn9, hlghly modolECL theol was bas€d onExisting Company primarily historical of a@nonrclhe6xp€ri6ncas conditions,

andbdl8viour rEhtsd fadors. thsHence, incr€ssod about economrcfutureuncsrtainty potontial andscantrios their crediton hasloss€s tonecessitated considerimpact
whil6scanarios ECL3.measuring

brecasts up to thg date ot apprcvel of th6s€ financial statemsts. Accordingly,
lakh (as at 31 March 2019, t 124.93 lakh) which includes pot€ntial impad on

theFurlh€r, based oxrgnton aveilaUs sstimat6dhas oncomParry, information, futureut6 flowscash and bas6d ths of theimpacl appliad overlays iorpolicy Company
dotsrmin6tkmo, th6of torpupose Plovisim of financialimpairmgnt Givonassets. th6 thsovgruncartsinty maqo€conomicpotential tho has consfurergdimpact, Compsnygxttrmland in ormation crBdit gconmicandinduding rsports lh€ forprovision crsditexp€d€d

financialon asass€ts 3'r 2oz0Marcfi t 3'16.99aggragates a@ount theol ot tpandemic
Bas€dlakh. r|€ oJmnt indlcatoas futu6oI o@nomic theffiditions, Company this6nsid6B to boprovision adequate.

to which the COVID-lg pandemic will impad
nil intormation @ncsrning th6 s€verity of thsthirEs,

by ttr6 condition, ths lmpect ottho global heelth
dosely monitor any matorial changes to

6xtmtTh€ resultsftJture tleof will onCompany future whichdsp€nd devglopmEnts, uncortain,highly amonginduding,
covrD-'t9any and eclion contain orpandomic any spread its whethBr ormitigate impad gov6mment-mandated

theGivm over thsCmpany. unoortainty potontial macrH@nomic be tromdifferent estimatedthal thEatpandemlc m8y dats
thosot inancielspprcval strtoments lh68rd will tocontlnugCompany economicfuture v/hichconditions, b6will efiect togiven

futweresp€c1ive poriod.

to OEr ona I yoar to5 Osr yga6

Debt S€qrdties
Bono\flings

TredE Payaue
Lease Liatility
OthEr Financial Liabilities

As .t 3l [arch_2019

O€bt Sscurities
BonowirEs

Trad6 Pay€ble
Other Financial Liabilities

Ar.t

59,

46,71,U1
6,89,

53,55,1

2,51,355

2,75,m0

1 1,55,31,697

4,'10,

2,43,098

2,50,@0

12,35,45,008

6,45,490

5,00,m0

41

'15,50,000

37,27,47

1 I,05,298
28,13,382

1,15,70,276

15,&,744
1,O1,N,141

41,74,15,@

3,31,512

43,21,627

30,11,197

'19,79,63,242

13,

2,2'1,4,8,

46,71,641

44,9,

2,53,44,1

March 2020at
in intgrest rat6s

Ete boffiings

on Pmfit br the yoar

rate lendirE 2,57,56,58,255

1,21,56,039

50 bp incrosse

2,22,49,21,29

50 bp decreas€

2,57,56,58.255

2,22,49,21,29

foreign cllnency nsk Ths obiective of market lisk management is to manag€ and conlrol market aisk oeosures within acc€ptable parameteB, whils optimising the retum.

lntoru.t Rrto ri3k

tsnre of ths fx€d (hposits are fixed. Hoi/ever, with the continuous d€creas€ in thg retums on fix6d doposits, tho income strned on such-deposits may chang€ in fufrs based
tho inter€st rates.

The s€nsitivity analysis havs be€n ca,tied out basod on the exposur€ to interest ratos for bank d€posits, tonding and bonoilin0s carisd at variable rate.

B, Fofolgn Clmmy Rlsk

The comPany (bes mt havE my instrumont donominatEd tr t ad€d in foreign cunency. Hsn@, suci risk does mt affect the @mpany.

41.3 t.rtet Rl3k

A



cfcA, RURAL HOUSTNG & IT|ORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED

NOTES FORiTING PART OF THE STATIDALONE FINANCIAL STATEiIENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 lrlARCH 2O2O

42 Revenue from contracts wlth customers

Set out belovv is the disaggregauon of the Companys revenue from contracts with customeG and reconciliation to profit and loss account:

in

For the year For the year ended
3l March 2020 3l March 2019

of lncome
Services charges
Others

1,82,557

31 365 7
rovenua from contracb with customers

Geographlcal markets
lndia

Outside lndia
Total revenue from contracts wlth customers

32,86,922 24,44,617

7

of revenue recognltlon
Services transfened at a point in time
Services transferred over time

32,86,922 24,41,617

revenue from cuatomers

(t There have been no events atler the reporting date that require disclosure in these financiat statements.



ttrlt5 RURAL HOUSTNG & ITi|ORTGAGE FTNANCE LTM|TED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2O2O

PartlcularB Current Year Prevlous Year

(D CRAR (%)
(iD CRAR - Tier I Capital (o/o)

(ilD CRAR - Tier ll Capital (%)
(iv) Amount of subordinetod debt raised as Tier- ll Capital
(V) Amount ralsed by issue of Perpetual Debt lnstruments

40.690/o
32.57o/o
8.120h

28.41%
27.680/o
O.72o/o

rticulars Current Yoar Pr€vlou9 Year

Movement of provlslons held towards depreclatlon on lnvestments
Opening Balance

3.1

0
(ii)
(iiD

(iv)

Add: Provisions mad6 during
Less: Write-ofi / Written-bank
Closing balance

3.1 Vaiue of lnvestmenB
O Gross Value of lnvestments

(a) ln lndia
(b) ourside lndia

(ii) Provisions for Depreciation
(a) ln hdia
(b) outside lndia

(iiD Net Value of lnvestments
(a) ln lndia
(b) Outside lndia

the year
of excess provisions during the year

44 Disclosure 8s required in terms of Paragraph 5 of National Housing Bank Circular No. NHB/ND/DRS/Po|-No. 35/2010-11 dated October 11,2O1O
notmcation no. NHB.HFC.CG-DlR.1/MO&CEO/2016 dated February 09, 2017.

As the information this Annexure t3 to b€ provided as per the aforementioned NHB Circular and Notification, Presented as per the extent
of National Housing Bank Act 1 987 and Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions 2010 including framework on Prudential Norms, and other
Circulars and notilications etc. issued in this regard by the NHB from time to time and not as per the provisions of IND AS. This tn compliance
NHB Circular no. NHB (ND)/ORS/Policy Circular No.89/2017- 1 I dated June 14, 2018.

A Dlsclosures

A.1 Capital

tn

4.2 Reserve Fund u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1 987

Refer Nota No. 17 to lhe Financial Statements

A.3 lnvestments

in

it



!TA' RURAL HOUSING A UORTGAGE FINANCE LIUITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEi'ENTS FOR THE YEAR ENOED 31 MARCH 2O2O

A,tl Dorlvatlveg

4.1 Foryuerd Rete Agreement (FRA) r lntero3t Rete Swap (tRS)

1.2 Exchsnge Tradod lnter€st Rate (lR) Derlvauvo

4.3 Dlsclosurcs on Rlsk Exposuro ln Oerlvetlvos

A Oualltrtlve Dlsclo3ure

Not Applicable

QuantltaUYc Dlsclosurr



!tr8' RURAL HOUSING & i'ORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3,I MARCH 2O2O

4.5 Socurltlsauon

5.1 ForSocurltlratlonTrsnsactlon8

Amount

1 No of SPVS sponsorBd by the HFC for securitisation trensaclions
2 Total emount ol securitirod assets as per books of the SPVS sponsored
3 Total amount of exposures retained by the HFC towards the MRR as on the date of balance sheet

(l) Oft-b€lanco sh66t oxposures towards Credit Enhanccments
(ll) On-balance sheel exposures toflerds Credit Enhancoments
Amount of exposuros to securitlsation transactions

4 other than MRR
(l) Ofi-balancs sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements
(a) Exposurs to o,n securitizations
(b) Exposure to third party securitisations
(ll) On-balance she€t exposures towards Credit Enhancements
(a) Exposuro to own securitizallons
(b) Exposure to third party securltisations

5,2 Det llE of Flnanclal Assets sold to SecurlU3aUon , Reconstructlon Company tor A$et Reconstrucuon

Partlculara Current Year Prevloug Year

(D

(ii)
(iiD

(iv)
(v)

No. of accounts
Aggrogate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC / RC
Aggregate
Additional ,

consideratlon
consideration realized in respect of accounts transfened in earlier years

Aggregate gain / loss over net book value

5.3 Detalls ofAlslgnmonttransacuons undertakon by HFCS

Cur€nt Yeer Provlous Year

(i)
(iD
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

No. of accounts 185 0
Aggregate value (net of provislons) of eccounts sold to SC / RC 24.99

24.99Aggregate
Additlonal

I consideration
conSideration reelized in resped of eccounts transfened in earlier years

Aggregate gain / loss over n6l book value

5.3 Oetalls o, non-performlng flnanclal assets purchas€d , sold

A Oetsll! of non-perrormlng flnencial a3sets purchased:

Curent Yeer Prevlous Year

(a) No. ofeccounts purchas€d during the year
(b) Aggr€gate valu€ (net of provisions) of eccounts sold to SC / RC

0 0

(a) O( these, number of accounts restructured during the year
(b) Aggregateoutstanding

0 0

B Oetalls of Non-performlng Flnanclal Assets sold
in

Cursnt Yoar PrcYlou3 Year

1 No. ofsccounts sold
2 Aggregateoutstandlng
3 Aggrogateconslderatlonr€celved

0 0



flCA' RURAL HOUSING & HORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED

NOTES FORTIING PART OF THE STANOALONE FINANCIAL STATETENTS FOR THE YEAR ENOED 31 MARCH 2O2O

A.6 Asse6 Ll.blllty llanagement (Maturlty pattem of certaln ltem! ot As3ets and Ll8bilue8]

Current Year

Up to
30131

Over 1 Over 2 Over 3 OYor 6 Over I
yeara E
upto3
years

Over 3
yeaB &
uptoS
years

Over 5
yeara &
uptoT
yeal!

Ovor 7
yeer! &
up to 10
yea1l

month & months E monthr
up to 'l

year

Over 10
Years(one upto2 upto3 uptoG

monthg

Total

monthl months months

Llabllltleg

Deposlts

Borowlng! frcm
Bsnk, Fl 0.58 0.58 4.14 21.51 37.45 96.57 39.9s 12.39 1.43 2.19 216.75

Borrowlng

Curr€ncy

2.59 5.82 4.90 17.53 30.13 69.01 41.61 21.81 27.10 38.11 258.82

Forelgn Currency

Previous Year

Up to
30131

days (on6
month)

OYer I OYer 2 OYor 3 OYer 6
months &
uptol

year

Over I
yoa6 &
upto3
years

Over 3
yearc &
uptoS
yesll

Over 5
yoars &
uptoT
yeal!

Over 7
ygarE &
up to 10
yesB

Partlculars month & monthE months Over 10
Yealrupto2 upto3 upto6

months

Totsl

months months

from
4.00 3.95 11.61 '12.50 41.45 125.44 42.52 11.62 1.50 254.60

Borrcwlng

Cunency

AEEots

13.73 3.67 3.61 11.77 24.79 65.32 30.21 24.12 37.14 50.34 244.70

lnvestments

Forelgn Currency

E



tf,cA' RURAL HOUSTNG & mORTGAGE FTNANCE L[tilTED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENOED 31 MARCH 2O2O

A.7 Exposure

7.1 Expo3uro to Real EsLte Sector
n

Current Year Prevlou3 Ygar

a) Dlr€ctErposuru
(ll Resldentlal Mortg.ges
Lending fully secursd by mortgages on residentiat property that is or wiil be occupied
the bonolv€r or that b rented

- lndividual Housing Loan up to Rs. 15 Lakh
- lndlviduel Houslng Loen above Rs. 1 5 Lakh

(l) Commerclal Roal Estate
Lending socur€d by modgages on commerclal real estales (ofiico buildings, ,etail space,
multipurpose commorcial pr€mises, mufli-family rosidential buildings, multi-lenanted
commorcial prembo!, induslriel or warehouse spece, holels, land acquisition,
developmsnt and construction, stc.). Exposure would also includo non-fund based (NFB)
limits;

- lndividual Commercial Loan up to Rs. 15 Lakh
- lndividual Commercial Loan above Rs. 15 Lakh
- Builders

(lll) lnvo3tmenE ln llortgago Beckod Secudfles (tBS) and other securlflsed
erpoSulla

a) R€sidential
b) Comm€rcial Real Estate

154.99
15.29

18.84
4.00

3s.85

29.65

137.11
14.26

12.81
3.96

u.47

33.76

b) lndlr€ct Exposur€
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on Nationel Housing Bank (NHB) and
Flnance Compeni€s (HFCs)

7.2 Exposuro to Capltal Market

direct investment ln equity shares, convertible bonds, convertibl€ deb€ntures and units
equity oriented mutual funds the corpus of whicfi is not exclusuely invesled in corporate
debt;
advancos against shares / bonds / debentures or olher securities or on clean basis lo
individuals tor investment in shares (including lpos / ESOP3), convertible bonds,
convertible debentures, and units of equityLori€nted mutual funds;

advances tor any other purposeg where shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debenturBs or unitE of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primery securily;

advances for any othar purposas to the extent secured by the collateral security of
or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units ot equity oriented mutual funds i

u,here tho primary sesJrity other then shares / convertiblc bonds / convertible

secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarante€s issued on behalf
stockbrokors and market makeB;

loans sanclioned to corpoEtes against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or
(vi) sccurities or on clean bEsis for meeting pft,mote/s contribution to the equity of

oompsnles in anticipetion of raising resouroes;

(vii) bridge loens to companies against expecled equity flows / issues;

(viii) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both tegistered end unregistered)

7.3 Dotelb ol flnanclng of pargnt company products

Not Applicable

7.1 Detalis o, Slngle Borrower Llmlt (SGL) / Group Bonower Ltmlt (GBL) exceoded by tho HFC

The Company hes not exceeded lhe prudenlial exposuro limits during the year.

7,5 Unsecuard Advsnces

a) Refer Note No. 7 to the Financial Statemonts.
b) The Company has not gEntsd any advances against iniangible securities.

Currnt Year PrcYlou3 Year

0

(il)

(iiD

(iv)

(v)



dqCAJI RURAL HOUSING & iIORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED

NOTES FORIIIT{G PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDEO 31 MARCH 2O2O

Long term bsnk lecllilies (Cash Credit/Term Loan) Rs. 600 Crore CARE A (Slabl6) CARE A (Stable)

lnstrument Amount Prevlous

Long term bank facilities (C8sh CrediuTerm Loan) Rs. 500 Crore IND A (Stable); Reaffirmed and
Wrthdrawn

IND A (Stable)

lnsttument Amount Provlous Ratlng

Long term bank facilitios (Cash CrBdiuTerm Loan) Rs. 150 Crore llCRAl A (stable); Reaffi rmed
and Withdrawn

llCRAlA (stable)

term bank facilities (Cash Credit/Term Loan) Rs. 24.77 Crore CRISIL A- / Stable; Reafiirmed
and Wthdrawn

CRISIL A- / Stable

B Mlecellaneous

B.l Roglstratlon obtalnod t om othor llnenclal soctor r€gulators

The Company has not obtained r€gistretion hom other Finencial sedor regulators.

B.2 Dlsclosu'€ of Penaltles lmposod by NHB and other r€gulators

NHB has not imposed any penalty on the Company during th€ year.

8.3 Related party Trsn3actlons

Please refer note no. 28 to the Financial Statements.

B.tt R.tlng aeslgned by Crodlt Ratlng Agencl63 and mlgratlon of ra{ng durlng the yoar

8.5 Remunerstlon of DlrectorB

Ploase refer note no. 28 to the Financial Statements.

8.6 Net Prolit or Loss tor the perlod, palor porlod ltems and changos ln accounilng policles

There are no pdor period items requiring disclosure in the tinanciat statements.

8,7 RevenueRecognltlon

The Company has not postponed recognition of revenue durlng the period. Refer Note No. 3.1 and 3.9 to Financial Statements.

8.8 Accountlng st nd.rd 2l - comolldated Flnanclal statements (cFsl

Since lhe compeny does not have eny subsidiaries, Accounting Standard 21 - Consolidated Financials Statements (CFS) is not applicable to
company.



TT.A' RURAL HOUSING & MORTGAGE FINANCE LIi'ITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2O2O

ln Protlt andBreak up of 'Provlslons and Contlngencles' sho*n undEitnETeailExpend
Losa Account Current Year Prevlous Yoar

I Provisions for depreciation on lnveslment
2 Provislon made towards lncrme tax
3 Provision towards NPA
4 Provision for Standard Assets (with details like teasor loan, CRE, CRE-RH elc.)

i) Houslng Loans
ii) Commercial Real Estate (CRE)
iii) Commercial Real Estat€ - Restdential Housing (CRE-RH)

5 Other Provision and Contingencies

up Non-H

0.87

0.54
-0.01
0.05
o.24

(Rs. in Cror6)

1.32

ousing

0.15

0.02
0.10

curent Year Prevlous Y6ar

Standard Asset3
a) Total Outstanding Amount
b) Provisions made

Sub-Standard Assets
a) Total outstanding Amounl
b) Provisions made

Doubtful Assets - Category - I
a) Total Outstandlng Amount
b) Provisions med€

Doubtful Assets - Category. ll
a) Total Outstanding Amount
b) Prcvisions made

Doubtlul Assets - Category - lll
a) Total Outstanding Amount
b) Provisions made

LosB A$ets
a) Total Outstanding Amount
b) Provisions made

200.82
1.01

0.33
0.07

185.67
0.46

0.43
0.08

0.01

22.91
0.28

16.82
0.17

o.02
0.00

Proiect Houslngup
Current Year Provious Year Current Yeat Provlous Year

Standard Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount
b) Provision8 made

Sub-Standerd Assets
a) Total Outslanding Amount
b) Provisions made

Doubtlul Asseta - category - l
a) Total Outstanding Amount
b) Provisions made

Doubtlul Assets - Category. ll
a) Total Outslanding Amount
b) Provisions made

Doubtful Aslots - C.tegory. lll
a) Total Outstsnding Amount
b) Provisions made

LosB Aasets
a) Total outstanding Amount
b) Provision$ made

26.80
0.38

0.47
0.11

43.49
0.33

0.53
0.10

8.86
0.09

20.94
0.21

C AddltlonalDlsclosur€s

C.1 Provlslons and Contlngencles
ln

Total Outstandlng Amounta)
b) ProYlslons made

228.42
1.57

230.,t 3
0.97

31.78
0.37

3f .77
0.38



d[.aJr RURAL HOUSTNG & MORTGAGE FTNANCE L|M|TED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENOED 31 MARCH 2O2O

The totsl outstandlng amount mean principal + accrued interest + other charges pertaining to toans without netting off.

The Category of Doubtful Assets will be as under:

Perlod tor whlch tho assets has b€en considered as doubtful Cate
Jp to one year
ne to three years Cat€
ore than three years Cate

Note:

1

2

Current Yoar Prevlous Year

of Oeposits of twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits of the HFC

Deposits of twenty largest depositors N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N,A.

Partlculars Curront Year Prevlous Year

of Loens & Advances to twenty largest bonowers to Total Advances of the HFC

Loans & Advances to twenty largest bonowers 54.37

21.O2Vo

65.23

Current Year Prevlous Year

of toPercentage Exposures twenty bonowers customers Totalto of HFCthe onlargest Exposure
customers

Exposure to twenty largest bonowers / customers 54.37 68.48

24.91

Current Year Prevlous Year

Exposure to top ten NPA accounts 0.81 0.98

Sl. No. to

A
1

2
3
4

B
1

2
3
4

Loans

Loans

(specify)

Loans

Corporates
Others (specify)

Non-Houslng Loan3
lndividuals

o.190/o

1.73o/o

0.00%
0.00%

0.060/o

0.00%
0.000/o

0.00%

C.2 Draw Down from Reserves

There has been no draw down from reseNes during the year ended 31 March 2o2o (p.y. < NIL)

C.3 Concontratlon of Publlc Deposlt8, Advances, Exposures and NpAs

3.1 ConcentEtlon of pub[c Oepo8lts (for public Depostttaklngrholdlng HFCa)

1.2 Concentratlon o, Loans & Advances

tn

3.3 Concentratlon of all Exposur€ (includlng ofi-balance sheet exposure,

3.4 Concentratlon of NPAS

3.5 Sector.wlse NPA9

Partlculars

Partlculara

I

Partlculars

Sector



dql, RURAL HOUSING A MORTGAGE FINANCE LITITEO

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANOALONE FINANCIAL STATEiIENTS FOR THE YEAR ENOEO 31 MARCH 2O2O

CurEnt Year Prevlous Year

0.240/0

0.98
1.65
1.82

0.30%

0.74
'1.51

1.27
0.81 0.98

0.79
1.38
1.56

0.56
't.24
1.00

0.61 0.79

0.19
0.19
0.19

0.19
0.19
0.19

0.19 o19

(lV) Movemsnt of provisions for NpAs (oxcluding provisions on standard assets)
a) Op€nlng balanco
b) Additlons during the year
c) Reductions during lhe year
d) Clo3ing batance

(lll) Movement of Net NPA
a) Opcning balanco
b) Additlons during the )r6er
c) Reductions durlng the year
d) Closlng batanc€

O Net NPAS to Net Advancas (06)

(ll) Movement of NPAS (Gross)
8) Openhg balence
b) Additions during the y€ar
c) R6ductions during the )rear
d) Closlng balanco

Currant Year P.evloua Year

NIL NIL

NIL NIL

Current Ygar PrevlouB Year

0
4
4

1

2
3

ll No. ot comptaints pending at the beginning of the year
b) No. ofcomptaints received during the year
c) No. ot complaints redressed during the year
d) No. of comptaints pending at the end of the year

Pertlculers

c.4 MovomentorNPAs

in

C.5 Ovellees A$et8

c'6 o'ff'balanco Sheet SPvs 3ponsorod (whlch are requlrgd to be consolidated as per accoungng Norms)

D Dlsclosurc ot Complalnt!

D.1 CustomeBComplalnt3



sJrt RURAL HOUSTNG & iiTORTGAGE FTNANCE L|M|TED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2O2O

45 lnformation as requirBd in terms of RBI notirication no. DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2O2O are mentioned as below:

ln

AEset Classlflcetlon e! per RBI Normt

Asset
clas3ilicatlon
as per lnd AS

109

Gross Carrylng
Amount as per

lnd AS

Loss Allowances
(Provislonsl a!
r6qulred undor

lnd AS 109

Net Carrying
Amount

Provl3lon3
required 8s par
IRACP norma

betwoen lnd AS
109 provlelon!

end IRACP
notTna

Performing A33ets
Standard

2

Stage 1 2,46,56,92,829 74,84,560

2,r 1,46,981 7 11

2,45,82,08,269 1,21 ,29,738
1,839 1,56,65,142

(46,44,1

Non-Performlng Artet3 (NpAl
Substandard

Doubttul - up to I year
1 to 3 yoars

More than 3 yea!.s 3

Stage 3

Stage 3

Stago 3

35,96,1 10

56,1'.t,237

12,95,901

17,71,108

23,00,209

38,40,129

1,74,'

7,75, 1 69

10,70,609

5,20,732

6,94,499

Subtotal for

Loss 3

17,71,108 10,76,609

Other items such as guarantees,
commitrnents, etc. which ar€ in the
of lnd AS 109 but not cDverod
cunent lncome Recognition,
Classification and Provlsioning

for NPA

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

30,67,009 't8,51,77E

1

3

Stage 2
2,46,56,92,829

10,07,5E,079

92,07,t17
2,'.t1,46,981 7,96,.t 1,098

61,40,338 ,778

1,21,28,738

54,81,839 1,56,65,142

12,
Total

1

lnformation as requir€d ln terms of RBI nolification no. RBI/2019-20/220 ooR.No.BP.B c.8a21.04.u812o19-20 dat6d 17 Aprit 2o2o are rnentioned as botow:

The details of the accounts on which moratorium has been granted by the company is as belo!\r:

PartlcularE Amount ln O

Amounts in SMA,/overdue categories, where the moratorium/deferment was oxlended
Amount where asset classification bgnofits is extended
Provisions made dudng lhe O4FY2O20 in terms of paragraph 5 of the notiflc€tion (Refer Note belorv)
Provisions the and the residual

1 5,70,52,505

5,43,08,592

Note: The company has complied with lnd-As and guidelines duV approved by the Board for rpognition of the impairments. Refer Note 41.1

I

56,11,237 38,40,1 29 6,94,499

92,07,347 61,/10,33E
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